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121
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.40

Federal National Mortgage
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Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03,
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2028/10/25

.071

21,273,000

2,370,000

23,716,937

-39

Federal National Mortgage
Association Connecticut Avenue
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Class 2M2

2028/10/25

.671

18,660,000

19,970,000
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Corporation FH30G G60314

2045/9/1

.000

12,887,815

5,311,233

13,712,098

.80

13

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation Ser. 315, PO

2043/9/15

.000

16,269,214

14,564,790

12,570,042

.73

14

Federal National Mortgage
Association FN30 TBA

2047/2/1

.500

13,000,000

72,176,440

12,318,515

.72

15

WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates Trust FRB Ser.
05-AR13, Class AlC4
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14,057,854
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Trust FRB Ser. 16-1, Class A

2017/2/25

771

11,077,000

11,077,000

11,080,815

.65

17

General Electric Co

2049/12/29

.000

10,100,000

9,604,498
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Federal National Mortgage
Association Connecticut Avenue
24 Securities FRB Ser. 16-C05, 2029/1/25 | 5.221 7,623,000 7,153,000 8,120,752 | 0.47
Class 2M2
25 | WestRock MWV, LLC 2030/1/15 | 8.200 5,975,000 3,572,118 8,021,524 | 0.47

BCAP, LLC Trust 144A FRB Ser.

26 15-RR5, Class 2A2

2046/1/26 | 1.644 8,733,000 7,685,040 7,838,480 | 0.46

GS Mortgage Securities Trust

2 144A FRB Ser. 13-GC12, Class D

2046/6/10 | 4.476 8,814,000 2,341,706 7,778,616 | 0.45

JPMBB Commercial Mortgage
28 | Securities Trust FRB Ser. 14- 2047/11/15| 3.948 9,736,000 2,872,340 7,756,574 | 0.45
€25, Class XA, 10

Station Place Securitization

29 | T ust FRB Ser. 17-1, Class A 2049/2/25 | 1.673 | 7,657,000 | 7,657,000 | 7,657,000 | 0.45
30 | American Tower Corp. 2025/6/1 | 4.000 | 7,570,000 | 7,511,560 | 7,635,115 | 0.45
c )y @ (€Y)
« )y a«
(2017 )}

Putnam Short Term Investment Fund 75,587,310
U.S. Treasury Bills 2/16/17 44,261,677
U.S. Treasury Bills 2/9/17 25,818,289
U.S. Treasury Bills 2/2/17 1,829,976

(2017 )

(2017 )
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(©))
( )
2017
13
200 10 253,457 28,846 68 760
(2033 10 167,743 19,001 .28 601
(2033 L0 194,199 22,102 50 740
(20%8 10 222,916 25.370 74 767
(2011 L0 170,347 19,387 71 764
(2012 10 151,113 17,198 12 810
(2012 10 128,376 14,610 .05 802
(20%2 10 121,065 13,778 10 808
(20?& 10 103,524 11,782 77 770
(20?2 10 88,869 10,114 72 765
2016 92,522 10,530 53 744
93,139 10,600 62 753
92,387 10,515 70 763
92,068 10,478 68 760
92,164 10,489 72 765
91,340 10,395 .80 774
91,135 10,372 80 774
90,326 10,280 79 773
10 88,869 10,114 72 765
11 84,473 9,614 57 748
12 84,603 9,629 62 753
2017 84,187 9,581 .69 761
) 1994 12 14
1994 12 14 1,005 (114,379 ) 6.50 (740 )
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( )
13 (2006 11 2007 10 31 ) 0.306 ( 35 )
14 (2007 11 2008 10 31 ) 0.448 ( 51 )
15 (2008 11 2009 10 31 ) 0.456 ( 52 )
16 (2009 11 2010 10 31 ) 0.472 ( 54 )
17 (2010 11 2011 10 31 ) 0.335 ( 38 )
18 (2011 11 2012 10 31 ) 0.199 ( 23 )
19 (2012 11 2013 10 31 ) 0.220 ( 25 )
20 (2013 11 2014 10 31 ) 0.317 ( 36 )
21 (2014 11 2015 10 31 ) 0.210 ( 24 )
22 (2015 11 2016 10 31 ) 0.196 ( 22 )
2015 2017

2015 0.019 2.162 2015/ /18 7.08 806

0.018 2.049 2015/ /20 7.09 807

0.019 2.162 2015/ /18 7.05 802

0.014 1.593 2015/ /18 6.97 793

0.014 1.593 2015/ /20 6.96 792

0.014 1.593 2015/ /18 6.95 791

0.014 1.593 2015/ /18 6.85 780

10 0.014 1.593 2015/10/19 6.79 773

11 0.014 1.593 2015/11/18 6.75 768

12 0.014 1.593 2015/12/18 6.74 767

2016 0.014 1.593 2016/ /15 6.65 757

0.014 1.593 2016/ /18 6.56 747

0.016 1.821 2016/ /18 6.60 751

0.016 1.821 2016/ /18 6.65 757

0.016 1.821 2016/ /18 6.66 758

0.016 1.821 2016/ /20 6.70 763

0.019 2.162 2016/ /18 6.78 772

0.019 2.162 2016/ /18 6.80 774

0.019 2.162 2016/ /19 6.76 769

10 0.019 2.162 2016/10/18 6.75 768

11 0.019 2.162 2016/11/17 6.61 752

12 0.019 2.162 2016/12/19 6.58 749

2017 0.019 2.162 2017/ /18 6.67 759

0.019 2.162 2017/ /17 6.69 761
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)
(D)
13 4.86
14 15.19
15 33.82
16 11.28
17 4.66
18 9.27
19 2.15
20 5.31
21 1.74
22 2.21
()
¢y 100 NAV x A L
NAV
A NAV
NAV NAV
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*

13
(11/1/2006
10/31/2007)

459,288

93,000

12,340,684

11,708,400

37,923,074

36,313,800

14
(11/1/2007
10/31/2008)

686,280

391,400

6,837,946

6,252,000

31,771,408

30,453,200

15
(11/1/2008
10/31/2009)

2,328,323

1,549,200

4,240,822

3,808,200

29,858,909

28,194,200

16
(11/1/2009
10/31/2010)

9,555,118

8,610,100

6,321,085

5,994,200

33,092,942

30,810,100

17
(11/1/2010
10/31/2011)

4,348,925

3,686,200

12,052,732

11,273,900

25,389,135

23,222,400

18
(11/1/2011
10/31/2012)

1,189,022

669,600

5,356,881

4,740,900

21,221,276

19,151,100

19
(117172012
10/31/2013)

728,296

466,600

3,731,396

3,101,200

18,218,176

16,516,500

20
(11/1/2013
10/31/2014)

1,509,858

425,700

2,673,607

2,328,800

17,054,427

14,613,400

21
(11/1/2014
10/31/2015)

1,152,641

66,400

2,924,955

2,420,800

15,282,113

12,259,000

22
(117172015
10/31/2016)

558,582

103,200

2,618,370

1,473,100

13,222,325

10,889,100
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(www . putnam. com) (1-800-
225-1581)
(1-800-225-1581)
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12b-1
12b-1

12b-1
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50,000 3.36
50,000 100,000 2.30
100,000 250,000 1.27
250,000 500,000 1.01
500,000 ok
500,000
)
)
)
(
)
(
)
(b) 2007 12 31

2007 12 31
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13

13

IRA( ) (

529

(putnam.com/individual) Mutual Funds - Pricing and performance

- About fund costs

0.40
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(12-b)
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)
2014 2015 2016
126,495 41,733 26,985
(

11,125

(12b- ) (
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2,317

0.085



(FINRA)

@

(b)

200

100

0.20

QDICY

59/286

SEC

(

Q)

)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(NASD) (



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

( 10 )

60/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15
100,000

500,000

putnam.com/individual

100,000

61/286



60

20

62/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



90

63/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

Y100

64/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

(www.putnam.com/individual) (1-800-225-1581)

60

65/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

66/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€)) 0.5 @
25
€H) 0.5
[®) 25
@
( )
(©))
(O]
10 31
®)
SEC SEC

67/286



(

)

60

68/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 )
50

67

1940



30 60
)
2007
180
)
(
( )
105
90
2020 12 31

180

69/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1940

2013



30

70/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

D

10

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

71/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)]
1933

@

®

@

(b)

*

721286



29

31

131

73/286

23

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

103

( 113.81 )



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(1) 2016 10 31

2016 10 31

«C )
( 3567,413770 ) 3,538,248,775 402,688,093
( 185198930 ) ( ) 185,198,930 21,077,490
18,543,208 2,110,403
3,134,177 356,701
3,508,925 300,351
() 679,978,803 77,388,388
() 2,811,791 320,010
) 44,970 5,118
() 3,244,777 360,268
() 1,692,672 192,643
47,179 5,369
4,436,454,207 504,912,853
27,039 3,077
6,338,255 721,357
() 1,654,142,321 188,257,938
7,514,649 855,242
() 643,958 73,289
() 94,146 10,715
) 532,716 60,628
() 486,478 55,366
() 3782 430
() 403,344 45,905
() 2,418,240 275,220
« ) 2,110,040 240,144
() 6,259,317 712,373
) ( 11,833,381 ) 9,262,938 1,054,215
( 856475039 ) ) 854,550,766 97,256,423
345,838 39,360
2,545,133,827 289,661,681
1,891,320,380 215,251,172
( ) ) 2,020,775,375 220,084,445
() 22,168,353 2,522,980
() (120,716,753) (13738774)
(30,906,595) (3,517,480

— 1,891,320,380 215,251,172
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2016 10 31
(829643294 =+ 120,355,543 )
(6.89 96.00  100)
(24,859,172 =+ 3643541 )
(180,492,165 = 26,400,101 )
(88,869,224 =+ 13,222,325 )
(6.72 9675  100)t
(25,265,607  + 3,695,845 )
(5068960 =+ 726,756 )
(76,616,245 = 10,947,943 )
(660,505,713 = 94,441,285 )
* 10 10

**
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2016 10 31
760,957 ) 92,815,941 10,563,382
92,815,941 10,563,382
8,483,644 965,524
3,472,966 395,258
168,860 19,218
159,498 18,152
5,287,305 601,748
60,473 6,882
876,405 99,744
( ) (23,360) (2,659)
18,485,791 2,103,868
(3,013) (343)
18,482,778 2,103,525
74,333,163 8,459,857
(91,729,275) (10,439,709)
) 3,064 349
) (52,496,828) (5,974,664)
30,874,093 3,513,781
) 94,767,715 10,785,514
(7,275,351) (828,008)
(25,856,582) (2,942,738)

48,476,581 5,517,120
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2016 10 31 2015 10 31
74,333,163 8,459,857 58,361,604 6,642,134
(18,581,231) (2,114,730 128,150 14,585
(7,275,351) (828,008) (94,960,039) (10,807,402)
48,476,581 5,517,120 (36,470,285) (4,150,683)
(28,623,921) (3,257,688) (34,589,245) (3,936,602)
(631,520) (71,873) (772,105) (87,873)
(4,581,717) (521,445) (5,244,289) (596,852)
(2,712,807) (308,745) (3,436,129) (391,066)
(809,709) (92,153) (886,652) (100,910)
(161,676) (18,400) (141,741) (16,132)
(3,805,161) (433,065) (3,969,199) (451,735)
(22,926,353) (2,609,248) (22,731,624) (2,587,086)
(473,197,169) (53,854,570) 615,459,914 70,045,493
(488,973,452) (55,650,069) 507,218,646 57,726,554
2,380,293,832 270,901,241 1,873,075,186 213,174,687
22,168,353
13,556,582 1,891,320,380 215,251,172 2,380,293,832 270,901,241
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/
a
C D ) )
2016 10 31 6.94 0.24 (0.08) 0.16 (0.21) (0.21)
2015 10 31 7.26 0.18 (0.29) (0.10) (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.20 0.27 0.12 0.39 (0.33) (0.33)
2013 10 31 7.27 0.29 (0.12) 0.17 (0.24) (0.24)
2012 10 31 6.84 0.21 0.43 0.64 (0.21) (0.21)
2016 10 31 6.87 0.18 (0.07) 0.11 (0.16) (0.16)
2015 10 31 7.19 0.13 (0.29) (0.15) (0.17) (0.17)
2014 10 31 7.13 0.21 0.13 0.34 (0.28) (0.28)
2013 10 31 7.20 0.23 (0.12) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18)
2012 10 31 6.78 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16)
2016 10 31 6.88 0.18 (0.06) 0.12 (0.16) (0.16)
2015 10 31 721 0.13 (0.29) (0.16) (0.17) (0.17)
2014 10 31 7.15 0.21 0.13 0.34 (0.28) (0.28)
2013 10 31 7.22 0.24 (0.13) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18)
2012 10 31 6.80 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16)
2016 10 31 6.77 0.21 (0.06) 0.15 (0.20) (0.20)
2015 10 31 7.10 0.16 (0.29) (0.12) (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.05 0.24 0.13 0.37 (0.32) (0.32)
2013 10 31 7.12 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (0.22) (0.22)
2012 10 31 6.71 0.19 0.42 0.61 (0.20) (0.20)
2016 10 31 6.88 0.22 (0.07) 0.15 (0.19) (0.19)
2015 10 31 7.21 0.16 (0.28) (0.12) (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.16 0.25 0.12 0.37 (0.32) (0.32)
2013 10 31 7.23 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (0.22) (0.22)
2012 10 31 6.81 0.19 0.43 0.62 (0.20) (0.20)
2016 10 31 7.02 0.26 (0.08) 0.18 (0.23) (0.23)
2015 10 31 7.35 0.20 (0.28) (0.08) (0.25) (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.27 0.15 0.42 (0.36) (0.36)
2013 10 31 7.35 0.32 (0.12) 0.20 (0.26) (0.26)
2012 10 31 | 7.11 0.08 0.23 0.31 (0.07) (0.07)
2016 10 31 7.04 0.27 (0.08) 0.19 (0.23) (0.23)
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.27) (0.07) (0.25) (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 0.14 0.43 (0.36) (0.36)
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.12) 0.19 (0.26) (0.26)
2012 10 31 | 7.11 0.08 0.24 0.32 (0.07) (0.07)
2016 10 31 7.03 0.26 (0.08) 0.18 (0.22) (0.22)
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.29) (0.09) (0.24) (0.24)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 0.13 0.42 (0.35) (0.35)
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.13) 0.18 (0.25) (0.25)
2012 10 31 6.91 0.23 0.45 0.68 (0.23) (0.23)
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(OOl (O« () ) ()
2016 10 31 6.89 2.33 829,643 0.87 d 345 d 981 €
2015 10 31 6.94 (1.37) 1,087,633 0.85 252 793 ©
2014 10 31 7.26 557 1,004,198 0.85 3.67 505 €
2013 10 31 7.20 2.31 783,735 0.87 4.03 267 f
2012 10 31 7.27 9.59 878,866 0.86 3.02 204 f
2016 10 31 6.82 1.59 24,859 1.62 d 2.70 d 981 €
2015 10 31 6.87 (2.11) 30,089 1.60 1.77 793 €
2014 10 31 7.19 4.79 32,142 1.60 2.94 505 €
2013 10 31 7.13 1.58 34,514 1.62 3.28 267 f
2012 10 31 7.20 8.75 41,215 1.61 2.27 204 f
2016 10 31 6.84 1.74 180,492 1.62 d 2.70 d 981 €
2015 10 31 6.88 (2.24) 221,882 1.60 1.76 793 €
2014 10 31 7.21 4.84 181,142 1.60 2.96 505 €
2013 10 31 7.15 1.58 133,269 1.62 3.28 267 f
2012 10 31 7.22 8.72 166,407 1.61 2.27 204 f
2016 10 31 6.72 2.21 88,869 1.12 d 3.20 d 981 €
2015 10 31 6.77 (1.74) 103,524 1.10 2.26 793 €
2014 10 31 7.10 531 121,065 1.10 343 505 €
2013 10 31 7.05 2.15 128,376 1.12 3.79 267 f
2012 10 31 7.12 9.27 151,113 1.11 2.77 204 f
2016 10 31 6.84 2.29 25,266 1.12 d 321 d 981 €
2015 10 31 6.88 (1.73) 29,237 1.10 225 793 ©
2014 10 31 7.21 5.27 21,255 1.10 342 505 €
2013 10 31 7.16 211 8,040 1.12 3.79 267 f
2012 10 31 7.23 9.26 5,265 1.11 277 204 f
2016 10 31 6.97 2.66 5,069 0.57 d 3.76 d 981 €
2015 10 31 7.02 (1.16) 4,463 0.56 2.77 793 €
2014 10 31 7.35 5.83 2,683 0.58 371 505 €
2013 10 31 7.29 2.75 11 0.58 4.33 267 f
2012 10 31 T 7.35 439 * 10 0.19 i 1.12 : 204 f
2016 10 31 7.00 2.80 76,616 0.50 d 3.82 d 981 €
2015 10 31 7.04 (1.02) 123,635 0.49 2.82 793 ©
2014 10 31 7.36 5.98 48,755 0.51 3.97 505 €
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2013 10 31 7.29 2.62 6,188 051 4.25 267

2012 10 31 7.36 454 10 0.17 114 ’ 204 f
2016 10 31 6.99 2.68 660,506 0.62 371 d 981 €
2015 10 31 7.03 (1.27) 779,830 0.60 2.76 793 €
2014 10 31 7.36 5.90 461,835 0.60 3.93 505 ©
2013 10 31 7.29 2.52 133,717 0.62 4.30 267 f
2012 10 31 7.36 10.00 193,550 0.61 3.26 204 f
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2012 2012 10 31
)
0.01
2013 10 31 730
2012 10 31 679
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2016 10 31

2015 11 2016 10 31

1940

4.00 3.25
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2016 10 31
99,833,962
36,522,463 36,522,463 *
63,311,499 63,311,499 2017 10 31
*
2010 2010 12 22
1,468,528
92,884,454 94,352,982
36,148,057

(96,189,362)

(60,041,305)
25,820,262

(99,833,962)
3,783,449,814
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0.25
2016
2016
0.320
0.12
0.05
1,608,118 5,786
46,452 58,156
338,047 1,211,128
157,016 3,472,966
48,263
3,013

1,514

1995
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2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31
2003
1940 12
0.35 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
0.25 1.00 1.00 0.50 0.50
2,390,060 466,973
276,281 143,419
2,010,572 5,287,305
60,715 2,317
11,205
3,505
1.00
309
TBA 28,294,625,553 28,700,234,883

28,294,625,553

28,700,234,883
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9,957,263,400 31,534,986 832,000,000 5,232,500
20,267,065,600 116,730,114 9,488,668,000 40,401,099
(1,671,191,100) (12,512,779)

(12,572,372,200) (28,827,359) (998,000, 000) (4,118,750)

(13,333,081,100) (100,208,769)  (8,322,668,000) (36,397,661)

2,647,684,600 6,716,193 1,000,000,000 5,117,188
2016 10 31 2015 10 31
17,420,831 119,476,416 58,019,092 417,416,250
3,638,187 24,927,008 4,159,168 29,745,903
21,059,018 144,403,424 62,178,260 447,162,153

(57,474,861)

(394,878, 288)

(43,699,803)

(312,705,634)

(36,415,843) (250,474,864) 18,478,457 134,456,519
2016 10 31 2015 10 31
473,905 3,215,137 783,284 5,561,145
80,018 543,022 92,478 655,672
553,923 3,758,159 875,762 6,216,817
(1,291,032) (8,770,404) (964,057) (6,828,922)
(737,109) (5,012,245) (88,295) (612,105)
2016 10 31 2015 10 31
4,430,148 30,109,030 13,118,738 93,618,215
530,664 3,609,062 559,445 3,971,321
4,960,812 33,718,002 13,678,183 97,589,536

(10,799,205)

(73,554,564)

(6,575,856)

(46,585,911)

(5,838,393)

(39,836,472)

7,102,327

51,003,625
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2016 10 31 2015 10 31
482,758 3,218,271 1,068,632 7,529,758
75,824 506,747 84,009 586,893
558,582 3,725,018 1,152,641 8,116,651

(2,618,370)

(17,563,768)

(2,924,955)

(20,469,878)

(2,059,788)

(13,838,750)

(1,772,314)

(12,353,227)

2016 10 31 2015 10 31

1,215,839 8,277,029 2,979,794 21,291,942
101,647 691,080 111,070 788,768

1,317,486 8,968,109 3,090,864 22,080,710

(1,868,141)

(12,738,129)

(1,792,106)

(12,675,528)

(550, 655) (3.,770,020) 1,298,758 9,405,182
2016 10 31 2015 10 31
201,050 1,396,092 363,416 2,647,388
23,308 161,676 19,605 141,741
224,358 1,557,768 383,021 2,789,129
(133,296) (926,116) (112,478) (814,543)
91,062 631,652 270,543 1,974,586
2016 10 31 2015 10 31
6,606,750 45,915,509 16,059,858 117,566,331
547,491 3,805,161 547,845 3,969,199
7,154,241 49,720,670 16,607,703 121,535,530

(13,772,333)

(96,559,360)

(5,664,803)

(41,171,022)

(6,618,092) (46,838,690) 10,942,900 80,364,508
2016 10 31 2015 10 31

39,476,008 274,933,198 80,260,841 584,374,422
2,737,526 19,027,590 2,574,258 18,642,148
42,213,534 293,960,788 82,835,099 603,016,570

(58,632,007)

(408,018,568)

(34,748,180)

(251,795,744)

(16,418,563)

(114,057,780)

48,086,919

351,220,826

1,647

0.23
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274,830,847 | 848,707,286 | 938,339,203 760,957 185,198,930

822,200,000

3,899,700,000

1,644,500,000

4,728,600,000

2,000

4,565,800,000

408,500,000

112,200,000

310,000
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815
3,971,237 7,139,237
13,735,651* 24,022,668*
17,706,888 31,161,905
815
(610,743) (610,743)
(16,902,586) 30,874,093 (51,886,085) (37,914,578)
(16,902,586) 30,874,093 (52,496,828) (38,525,321)
) )
815
1,253,240 1,253,240
4,083,103 (11,197,665) 17,929,835 10,815,273
4,083,103 (11,197,665) 19,183,075 12,068,513
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8§ §

Bank of AmericaN.A. 15,910 15,910
Barclays Bank PLC 136,044 136,044
Barclays Capital Inc.
(clearing broker) 1,991,182 1,991,182
Citibank, N.A. 8,351 8,351
Credit Suisse International 243,783 2,562,571 2,806,354
Goldman Sachs International 138,989 1,408,666 189,035 1,736,690
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 4,764 44,970 6,130,125 6,179,859
JPMorgan SecuritiesLLC 70,317 70,317
Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith, Inc. 820,609 820,609

1,991,182 618,158 3,971,237 820,609 44,970 189,035 6,130,125 13,765,316
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§ § t
ﬁaxk of America 196,460 196,460 |  (180,550)| (178,982)|  (1,568)
Barclays Capital

Inc. 2,418,240 2,418,240 |  (427,058) (427,058)
(clearing broker)

Citibank, N.A. 8,351 8,351
Credit Suisse

Imternational 131,229 | 4,367,424 4,498,653 | (1,692,299)| (1,578.842)| (113,457)
Goldman Sachs

oo 180,072 | 1,469,756 672,124 2,321,952 | (585,262)| (472,953)| (112,300)
JBZ';]"korNga:Chase 24,222 2,312,064 | 6,278,750 | 8,615,036 | (2,435,177)| (2,285,490)| (149,687)
JPMorgan

St LLC 131,737 | 1,105,597 1,237,334 | (1,167,017)| (1.129,934)| (37,083)
Merrill Lynch,

Pierce,

Fomer & Smith, 820,609 820,609
Inc.

2,418,240 | 882,066 | 7,139,237 2,984,188 | 6,278,750 | 19,702,481 | (5,937,165)

T
§
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2016 10 31
(108.4%)
(8.6%)
Government National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates
5.00%, with due dates from 7/20/41 to 9/20/42 $4,150,141 $4,622,935
5.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,162,656
4.687%, 6/20/45 26,472 29,706
4.667%, 5/20/45 281,674 315,812
4.654%, 6/20/65 152,570 171,280
4.554%, 5/20/65 64,968 72,790
4.542%, 8/20/65 75,161 83,839
4.524%, 6/20/65 41,557 46,357
4.516%, 6/20/65 43,506 48,507
4.511%, 5/20/65 1,099,853 1,223,392
4.50%, with due dates from 5/20/45 to 4/20/46 5,561,818 6,124,980
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 17,000,000 18,346,720
4.468%, 5/20/65 81,346 90,200
4.413%, 6/20/65 26,415 29,352
4.00%, with due dates from 9/20/40 to 3/20/46 17,357,294 18,997,305
4.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,142,188
3.50%, with due dates from 9/15/42 to 5/20/46 41,162,578 44,103,772
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 16,000,000 16,943,750
3.00%, with due dates from 8/20/46 to 10/20/46 1,997,020 2,086,683
3.00%, with due dates from 3/20/43 to 7/20/45 1,678,791 1,754,258
3.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 41,000,000 42,701,287
162,097,769
(99.8%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Pass-Through Certificates
5.00%, 3/1/41 742,589 833,121
4.50%, with due dates from 7/1/44 to 3/1/45 2,001,459 2,252,295
4.00%, 9/1/45 ™ 4,901,346 5,371,186
4.00%, 12/1/44 981,843 1,054,330
3.50%, with due dates from 5/1/46 to 10/1/46 i 5,999,999 6,312,015
3.50%, with due dates from 4/1/42 to 7/1/46 7,071,953 7,485,560
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 8,000,000 8,395,000
3.00%, with due dates from 3/1/43 to 6/1/46 11,179,660 11,543,862
Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates
6.00%, with due dates from 2/1/36 to 5/1/41 5,830,555 6,676,824
6.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,292,835
5.50%, with due dates from 1/1/33 to 2/1/35 953,390 1,082,783
5.00%, with due dates from 3/1/40 to 1/1/44 2,926,440 3,248,938
4.50%, with due dates from 2/1/41 to 10/1/45 21,913,890 24,362,975
4.50%, TBA, 12/1/46 14,000,000 15,290,625
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 14,000,000 15,301,563
4.00%, with due dates from 9/1/45 to 6/1/46 * 10,088,799 11,029,013
4.00%, with due dates from 5/1/43 to 1/1/46 21,677,458 23,538,814
3.50%, with due dates from 5/1/42 to 6/1/46 31,120,589 32,910,179
3.50%, TBA, 12/1/46 437,000,000 458,325,425
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 467,000,000 490,281,958
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/31 1,000,000 1,053,516
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Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates

3.00%, with due dates from 2/1/43 to 10/1/46 $29,861,683 $30,893,814
3.00%, with due dates from 9/1/42 to 5/1/45 1,897,908 1,965,098
3.00%, TBA, 12/1/46 225,000,000 231,196,298
3.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 226,000,000 232,674,051
2.50%, TBA, 12/1/46 68,000,000 67,756,302
2.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 195,000,000 194,636,325
1,887,764,705
( $2,054,381,926) $2,049,862,474
cn
2.00% 2020 9 30 s $429,000 $442,272
$428,845) $442,272
(47.5%)"
17.0%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

IFB Ser. 3408, Class EK, 23.642%, 4/15/37 $933,790 $1,562,830
IFB Ser. 2976, Class LC, 22.46%, 5/15/35 121,651 193,921
IFB Ser. 2979, Class AS, 22.313%, 3/15/34 7,882 8,255
IFB Ser. 3249, Class PS, 20.511%, 12/15/36 285,203 433,165
IFB Ser. 3065, Class DC, 18.256%, 3/15/35 651,619 1,009,862
IFB Ser. 2990, Class LB, 15.579%, 6/15/34 526,439 671,165
IFB Ser. 3852, Class NT, 5.465%, 5/15/41 1,960,137 2,031,633

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DN1, Class M3,
4.684%, 1/25/25 16,233,285 16,949,597
Ser. 4132, Class IP, 10, 4.50%, 11/15/42 7,798,439 1,106,154
Ser. 4122, Class Tl, 10, 4.50%, 10/15/42 2,982,891 503,214
Ser. 4018, Class DI, 10, 4.50%, 7/15/41 3,502,429 423,261
Ser. 3707, Class PI, 10, 4.50%, 7/15/25 1,731,708 164,405

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-HQ1, Class M3,
4.334%, 3/25/25 3,985,000 4,179,863
Ser. 4546, Class Tl, 10, 4.00%, 12/15/45 24,338,562 2,859,781
Ser. 4500, Class GI, 10, 4.00%, 8/15/45 16,882,074 2,013,356
Ser. 4121, Class MI, 10, 4.00%, 10/15/42 19,020,911 3,399,988
Ser. 4116, Class MI, 10, 4.00%, 10/1/42 7,929,799 1,330,628
Ser. 4165, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 2/15/43 12,976,827 1,840,244
Ser. 4122, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 10/15/42 6,849,788 854,347

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DNA2, Class M2,
3.134%, 12/25/27 4,051,000 4,132,263
Ser. 4182, Class GI, 10, 3.00%, 1/15/43 22,051,693 1,928,321
Ser. 4141, Class PI1, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 7,814,075 861,658
Ser. 4158, Class Tl, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 19,003,413 1,959,062
Ser. 4176, Class DI, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 21,869,178 2,266,959
Ser. 4171, Class NI, 10, 3.00%, 6/15/42 12,117,681 1,171,416
Ser. 4183, Class MI, 10, 3.00%, 2/15/42 7,147,386 709,735
Ser. 4201, Class JI, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41 21,427,552 1,920,791
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(47.5%)"

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Ser. 4206, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41 $8,865,683 $952,019
Ser. 4004, 10, 3.00%, 3/15/26 12,990,268 790,419
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA2, Class M2,

2.734%, 10/25/28 F 1,100,000 1,121,291
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA2, Class M1,

1.784%, 10/25/28 3,085,902 3,091,991
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQA2, Class M1,

1.734%, 11/25/28 2,882,596 2,886,566
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DNAl, Class M1,

1.434%, 10/25/27 525,168 524,748
FRB Ser. T-56, Class A, 10, 0.524%, 5/25/43 8,596,478 142,383
Ser. 315, PO, zero %, 9/15/43 16,685,465 13,515,163
Ser. 3835, Class FO, PO, zero %, 4/15/41 6,867,049 6,038,368
Ser. 3369, Class BO, PO, zero %, 9/15/37 13,362 11,555
Ser. 3391, PO, zero %, 4/15/37 144,835 127,334
Ser. 3300, PO, zero %, 2/15/37 214,270 190,579
Ser. 3206, Class EO, PO, zero %, 8/15/36 10,762 9,732
Ser. 3175, Class MO, PO, zero %, 6/15/36 36,833 32,072
Ser. 3210, PO, zero %, 5/15/36 34,922 32,277
Ser. 3326, Class WF, zero %, 10/15/35 12,144 9,653
FRB Ser. T-56, Class 2, 10, zero %, 5/25/43 3,732,981 —
FRB Ser. 3117, Class AF, zero %, 2/15/36 14,250 10,897

Federal National Mortgage Association

IFB Ser. 06-62, Class PS, 36.696%, 7/25/36 469,521 937,111
IFB Ser. 06-8, Class HP, 22.609%, 3/25/36 451,372 768,181
IFB Ser. 05-122, Class SE, 21.231%, 11/25/35 782,226 1,134,141
IFB Ser. 05-75, Class GS, 18.648%, 8/25/35 232,552 325,413
IFB Ser. 05-106, Class JC, 18.468%, 12/25/35 550,450 858,268
IFB Ser. 05-83, Class QP, 16.006%, 11/25/34 94,871 123,790
IFB Ser. 11-4, Class CS, 11.832%, 5/25/40 927,118 1,103,083
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C04, Class 1M2, 5.434%,

11/25/24 4,680,000 5,001,717
IFB Ser. 13-101, Class SE, 10, 5.366%, 10/25/43 9,805,275 2,370,463
Ser. 421, Class C6, 10, 4.00%, 5/25/45 11,292,792 1,741,066
Ser. 15-3, Class BI, 10, 4.00%, 3/25/44 13,887,050 1,302,605
Ser. 12-124, Class Ul, 10, 4.00%, 11/25/42 16,504,872 2,804,178
Ser. 12-118, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 6/25/42 17,194,011 2,392,736
Ser. 12-62, Class El, 10, 4.00%, 4/25/41 11,564,036 1,354,165
Ser. 12-22, Class Cl, 10, 4.00%, 3/25/41 10,132,525 1,089,246
Ser. 15-10, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/43 20,650,806 1,844,652
Ser. 13-18, Class IN, 10, 3.50%, 3/25/43 6,725,227 850,494
Ser. 12-118, Class IC, 10, 3.50%, 11/25/42 17,153,408 3,054,711
Ser. 14-10, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/42 10,149,365 1,139,112
Ser. 12-128, Class QI, 10, 3.50%, 6/25/42 13,321,934 1,490,902
Ser. 12-101, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 8/25/40 17,518,166 1,433,004
Ser. 14-20, Class IA, 10, 3.50%, 7/25/39 14,789,430 1,223,086
Ser. 13-55, Class IK, 10, 3.00%, 4/25/43 6,281,240 657,018
Ser. 12-151, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 1/25/43 8,974,522 977,325
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Federal National Mortgage Association

Ser. 12-144, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 11/25/42 $13,187,990 $1,432,216
Ser. 13-35, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 6/25/42 6,603,087 577,770
Ser. 13-55, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 5/25/42 10,973,101 896,722
Ser. 13-35, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42 19,345,156 1,521,110
Ser. 13-67, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42 13,758,868 1,118,596
Ser. 13-30, Class IP, 10, 3.00%, 10/25/41 5,595,929 413,987
Ser. 13-23, Class LI, 10, 3.00%, 6/25/41 7,012,591 474,752
Ser. 14-59, Class Al, 10, 3.00%, 10/25/40 15,293,416 1,223,473
Ser. 14-28, Class Al, 10, 3.00%, 3/25/40 18,896,758 1,688,898
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 1M1,

2.534%, 10/25/28 4,016,167 4,061,994
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C04, Class 1M1,

2.484%, 11/25/24 © 800,114 804,714
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C03, Class 1M1,

1.734%, 7/25/24 F 77,828 78,096
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 14-C03, Class 2M1,

1.734%, 7/25/24 1,212,241 1,214,472
FRB Ser. 03-W10, Class 1, 10, 0.621%, 6/25/43 5,547,775 70,213
FRB Ser. 01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.389%, 10/25/41 500,028 5,938
FRB Ser. 05-W4, Class 1A, 10, 0.063%, 8/25/45 143,366 90
FRB Ser. 02-W6, Class 1A, 10, 0.033%, 6/25/42 694,784 1,520
Ser. 03-34, Class P1, PO, zero %, 4/25/43 166,436 140,036
Ser. 07-64, Class LO, PO, zero %, 7/25/37 44,597 42,093
Ser. 07-14, Class KO, PO, zero %, 3/25/37 174,593 151,257
Ser. 06-125, Class OX, PO, zero %, 1/25/37 15,201 13,214
Ser. 06-84, Class 0T, PO, zero %, 9/25/36 15,920 13,864
Ser. 06-46, Class 0C, PO, zero %, 6/25/36 13,345 11,553

Government National Mortgage Association

Ser. 09-79, Class IC, 10, 6.00%, 8/20/39 17,929,570 3,337,948
IFB Ser. 13-129, Class SN, 10, 5.624%, 9/20/43 3,278,101 550,098
Ser. 14-76, 10, 5.00%, 5/20/44 9,180,875 1,748,255
Ser. 13-3, Class IT, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/43 4,205,999 765,240
Ser. 11-116, Class IB, 10, 5.00%, 10/20/40 948,335 38,295
Ser. 13-16, Class 1B, 10, 5.00%, 10/20/40 4,000,212 168,715
Ser. 10-35, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 3/20/40 2,896,121 534,766
Ser. 10-9, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/40 25,514,131 4,642,398
Ser. 09-121, Class Ul, 10, 5.00%, 12/20/39 11,962,855 2,219,229
Ser. 14-108, Class IP, 10, 4.50%, 12/20/42 7,217,476 1,015,788
Ser. 13-20, Class QI, 10, 4.50%, 12/16/42 15,630,491 2,756,009
Ser. 12-129, 10, 4.50%, 11/16/42 4,927,935 977,899
Ser. 10-35, Class QI, 10, 4.50%, 3/20/40 4,426,279 737,896
Ser. 10-9, Class QlI, 10, 4.50%, 1/20/40 4,461,067 742,264
Ser. 11-116, Class IA, 10, 4.50%, 10/20/39 3,906,352 325,790
Ser. 13-34, Class PI, 10, 4.50%, 8/20/39 26,222,769 3,062,819
Ser. 14-71, Class BI, 10, 4.50%, 5/20/29 13,721,498 1,678,688
Ser. 15-149, Class KI, 10, 4.00%, 10/20/45 25,989,468 3,872,951
Ser. 15-94, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/45 908,345 195,658
Ser. 15-99, Class LI, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/45 7,226,098 771,882
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Government National Mortgage Association

Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.

FRB

Ser.

15-60, Class IP, 10, 4.00%, 4/20/45
15-53, Class MI, 10, 4.00%, 4/16/45
14-2, Class IL, 10, 4.00%, 1/16/44
14-63, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/43
15-52, Class IE, 10, 4.00%, 1/16/43
13-4, Class IC, 10, 4.00%, 9/20/42
12-56, Class 1B, 10, 4.00%, 4/20/42
12-50, Class PI, 10, 4.00%, 12/20/41
14-4, Class 1K, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/39
11-71, Class IK, 10, 4.00%, 4/16/39
14-162, Class DI, 10, 4.00%, 11/20/38
14-133, Class Al, 10, 4.00%, 10/20/36
13-53, Class IA, 10, 4.00%, 12/20/26
15-69, Class XI, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/45
15-77, Class DI, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/45
15-20, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
15-24, Class CI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
15-24, Class IA, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45
13-100, Class MI, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/43
13-37, Class JI, 10, 3.50%, 1/20/43
12-145, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42

13-27, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42
12-136, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/42

12-113, Class ID, 10, 3.50%, 9/20/42
12-71, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 1/20/42
14-46, Class JI, 10, 3.50%, 10/20/41
14-141, Class GI, 10, 3.50%, 6/20/41
15-36, Class GI, 10, 3.50%, 6/16/41
13-18, Class GI, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/41
14-102, Class I1G, 10, 3.50%, 3/16/41
15-52, Class KI, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/40
12-48, Class KI, 10, 3.50%, 12/16/39
15-26, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 5/20/39
15-87, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/38
15-24, Class IC, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/37
14-145, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 10/20/29
14-100, Class JI, 10, 3.50%, 7/16/29
13-8, Class BI, 10, 3.00%, 11/20/42
13-53, Class PI, 10, 3.00%, 4/20/41
14-141, Class CI, 10, 3.00%, 3/20/40
13-23, Class IK, 10, 3.00%, 9/20/37
14-46, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 6/20/36
14-30, Class KI, 10, 3.00%, 2/16/29
14-5, Class LI, 10, 3.00%, 1/16/29
13-164, Class CI, 10, 3.00%, 11/16/28
16-H23, Class NI, 10, 2.83%, 10/20/66

Ser. 15-H16, Class XI, 10, 2.468%, 7/20/65

15-H26, Class DI, 10, 2.142%, 10/20/65
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$21,539,840
21,652,310
7,961,735
12,693,399
15,321,244
17,420,199
8,999,065
20,400,461
7,087,639
12,143,367
17,661,405
15,169,416
12,529,477
19,949,342
14,236,278
12,846,026
8,969,104
13,306,924
6,301,378
5,158,349
8,156,030
6,312,105
19,428,627
26,121,231
9,683,079
7,799,242
13,272,369
12,650,952
7,005,879
10,909,219
20,501,433
4,649,647
41,704,607
21,219,026
13,789,605
11,911,498
21,153,582
16,125,307
10,465,566
10,230,135
21,750,432
6,197,268
9,152,460
9,607,635
17,372,445
44,458,000
28,152,791
23,353,979

$3,379,062
4,586,847
1,253,496
1,556,211
2,466,411
3,710,485
1,415,688
2,876,465
644,895
1,189,576
1,375,984
1,348,484
1,378,242
2,569,774
1,424,767
1,877,460
1,720,462
1,979,711
577,206
597,234
1,221,162
727,596
3,717,435
5,102,704
488,795
1,032,206
1,190,294
1,372,755
800,071
1,223,414
2,515,177
389,585
4,427,153
1,697,522
1,676,347
1,341,949
2,322,621
1,778,966
830,757
910,584
2,133,587
504,439
873,126
876,543
1,544,046
6,606,459
3,564,143
2,865,533
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Government National Mortgage Association

Ser. 15-H25, Class Cl, 10, 2.083%, 10/20/65 $28,289,174 $3,473,911
Ser. 16-H11, Class HI, 10, 2.081%, 1/20/66 40,464,312 4,565,831
Ser. 15-H15, Class JI, 10, 1.94%, 6/20/65 21,660,533 2,449,806
Ser. 16-H04, Class KI, 10, 1.873%, 2/20/66 35,353,871 3,667,010
Ser. 15-H12, Class Al, 10, 1.855%, 5/20/65 33,044,026 3,328,591
Ser. 15-H20, Class Al, 10, 1.837%, 8/20/65 32,360,250 3,371,938
Ser. 16-H02, Class HI, 10, 1.827%, 1/20/66 54,423,164 5,959,336
Ser. 15-H10, Class Cl, 10, 1.809%, 4/20/65 33,187,277 3,415,734
Ser. 15-H12, Class GI, 10, 1.797%, 5/20/65 44,254,554 4,412,179
Ser. 15-H09, Class BI, 10, 1.701%, 3/20/65 38,368,707 3,583,637
Ser. 15-H12, Class El, 10, 1.696%, 4/20/65 32,900,200 3,053,139
Ser. 15-H01, Class Cl, 10, 1.64%, 12/20/64 30,471,723 2,126,926
Ser. 15-H17, Class Cl, 10, 1.625%, 6/20/65 31,667,432 2,162,886
Ser. 15-H25, Class Al, 10, 1.615%, 9/20/65 28,389,669 2,560,748
Ser. 15-H14, Class BI, 10, 1.593%, 5/20/65 2,625,805 179,605
Ser. 15-H28, Class DI, 10, 1.554%, 8/20/65 33,478,031 2,671,547
Ser. 14-H11, Class GI, 10, 1.48%, 6/20/64 59,023,967 4,538,943
Ser. 14-H07, Class BI, 10, 1.459%, 5/20/64 46,008,178 3,796,595
Ser. 10-H19, Class GI, 10, 1.405%, 8/20/60 36,247,358 2,392,326
IFB Ser. 11-70, Class YI, 10, 0.15%, 12/20/40 15,722,313 73,645
Ser. 10-151, Class K0, PO, zero %, 6/16/37 345,237 299,966
Ser. 06-36, Class 0D, PO, zero %, 7/16/36 24,807 21,514
321,817,796
(21.6%)

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser. 06-4, Class AJ, 5.695%, 7/10/46 7,376,359 7,316,415
FRB Ser. 07-1, Class XW, 10, 0.311%, 1/15/49 4,745,993 12,154

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 07-5,

Class XW, 10, 0.343%, 2/10/51 14,177,073 33,757

Banc of America Merrill Lynch Commercial Mortgage, Inc. 144A
FRB Ser. 04-5, Class XC, 10, 0.419%, 11/10/41 1,376,541 16,821
FRB Ser. 04-4, Class XC, 10, 0.035%, 7/10/42 476,519 243
FRB Ser. 05-1, Class XW, 10, zero %, 11/10/42 40,777,140 4,078

Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser. 07-T26, Class AJ, 5.566%, 1/12/45 F 4,347,000 4,022,708
FRB Ser. 06-PW11, Class AJ, 5.436%, 3/11/39 7,507,000 7,502,308
Ser. 05-T18, Class D, 5.134%, 2/13/42 425,142 423,442
FRB Ser. 04-PR3I, Class X1, 10, 0.203%, 2/11/41 643,527 3,346

Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 06-PW11, Class B, 5.436%, 3/11/39 9,423,000 4,240,350
FRB Ser. 06-PW14, Class X1, 10, 0.583%, 12/11/38 6,036,071 82,936

Capmark Mortgage Securities, Inc. FRB Ser. 97-C1, Class X, 10,

1.509%, 7/15/29 989,643 25,435

CD Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 07-CD4, Class XW, 10,

0.387%, 12/11/49 19,801,404 9,505

CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class D, 5.741%, 12/15/47 1,108,000 1,210,856
FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class E, 5.741%, 12/15/47 3,258,000 3,292,538
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Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust

FRB Ser. 13-GC17, Class XA, 10, 1.467%, 11/10/46 F $63,826,889 $3,414,178
FRB Ser. 14-GC19, Class XA, 10, 1.258%, 3/10/47 70,221,648 4,494,888
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 13-GC11, Class E, 4.456%, 4/10/46 7,414,000 5,489,326
FRB Ser. 06-C5, Class XC, 10, 0.513%, 10/15/49 20,824,044 8,954
COBALT CMBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-C3,
Class AJ, 5.758%, 5/15/46 1,588,000 1,566,041
COMM Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates FRB Ser. 12-CR3,
Class XA, 10, 2.079%, 10/15/45 36,791,014 2,933,329
COMM Mortgage Trust
Ser. 06-C8, Class AJ, 5.377%, 12/10/46 8,651,000 8,521,235
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class C, 4.737%, 7/15/47 2,542,000 2,670,371
Ser. 13-CR11, Class AM, 4.715%, 10/10/46 949,000 1,055,041
FRB Ser. 14-UBS6, Class C, 4.465%, 12/10/47 2,031,000 1,947,300
FRB Ser. 12-CR1, Class XA, 10, 2.026%, 5/15/45 24,493,914 1,856,915
FRB Ser. 13-LC13, Class XA, 10, 1.53%, 8/10/46 57,726,759 2,991,978
FRB Ser. 14-LC15, Class XA, 10, 1.369%, 4/10/47 F 65,656,599 4,066,977
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class XA, 10, 1.266%, 7/15/47 56,503,679 3,400,391
FRB Ser. 14-CR17, Class XA, 10, 1.168%, 5/10/47 48,812,508 2,777,432
FRB Ser. 14-UBS6, Class XA, 10, 1.057%, 12/10/47 57,260,782 3,235,234
FRB Ser. 14-LC17, Class XA, 10, 0.99%, 10/10/47 39,711,291 1,806,864
COMM Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 13-CR11, Class D, 5.169%, 10/10/46 5,169,000 4,889,874
Ser. 12-1LC4, Class E, 4.25%, 12/10/44 1,918,000 1,473,408
FRB Ser. 14-UBS6, Class D, 3.965%, 12/10/47 1,279,000 997,236
Ser. 13-LC13, Class E, 3.719%, 8/10/46 2,278,000 1,597,106
Ser. 14-CR18, Class E, 3.60%, 7/15/47 6,808,000 4,441,539
FRB Ser. 12-LC4, Class XA, 10, 2.456%, 12/10/44 47,828,377 4,027,149
FRB Ser. 06-C8, Class XS, 10, 0.526%, 12/10/46 13,930,526 6,409
Credit Suisse Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 08-C1, Class AJ, 6.064%, 2/15/41 9,861,000 8,973,510
FRB Ser. 07-C2, Class AX, 10, 0.072%, 1/15/49 61,172,673 5,506
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp. 144A
Ser. 98-C1, Class F, 6.00%, 5/17/40 412,992 429,512
FRB Ser. 03-C3, Class AX, 10, 1.994%, 5/15/38 1,370,759 17
DBRR Trust 144A FRB Ser. 13-EZ3, Class A, 1.636%, 12/18/49 159,186 158,788
DBUBS Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 11-LC2A, Class D,
5.542%, 7/10/44 3,003,234 3,084,583
First Union National Bank-Bank of America, NA Commercial
Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 01-Cl, Class 3, 10, 1.931%, 3/15/33 524,100 5
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp. 144A FRB Ser. 05-C3,
Class XC, 10, 0.072%, 7/10/45 3,559,097 —
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp. Trust FRB Ser. 06-C1,
Class AJ, 5.309%, 3/10/44 3,546,915 3,490,164
GE Commercial Mortgage Corp. Trust 144A FRB Ser. 07-C1,
Class XC, 10, 0.20%, 12/10/49 89,389,182 129,963
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc. Trust 144A FRB
Ser. 05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.602%, 5/10/43 4,104,376 8,065
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GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Il FRB Ser. 13-GC10, Class XA, 10,

1.599%, 2/10/46 $66,106,162 $4,988,371
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. 11 144A
FRB Ser. 13-GC10, Class D, 4.41%, 2/10/46 4,129,000 3,785,880
FRB Ser. 13-GC10, Class E, 4.41%, 2/10/46 2,352,000 1,756,474
GS Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser. 14-GC18, Class C, 4.945%, 1/10/47 F 3,103,000 3,229,613
FRB Ser. 13-GC12, Class XA, 10, 1.693%, 6/10/46 41,569,257 2,847,494
FRB Ser. 14-GC18, Class XA, 10, 1.14%, 1/10/47 F 37,739,836 2,127,832
FRB Ser. 14-GC22, Class XA, 10, 1.052%, 6/10/47 F 65,369,360 3,637,926
FRB Ser. 14-GC24, Class XA, 10, 0.866%, 9/10/47 F 64,090,077 3,021,621
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 12-GC6, Class D, 5.654%, 1/10/45 7,489,376 7,433,206
Ser. 11-GC3, Class E, 5.00%, 3/10/44 1,692,000 1,582,528
FRB Ser. 13-GC14, Class D, 4.768%, 8/10/46 5,417,000 4,937,997
FRB Ser. 13-GC12, Class D, 4.476%, 6/10/46 10,025,000 8,939,393
FRB Ser. 06-GG6, Class XC, 10, zero %, 4/10/38 2,271,337 23
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust FRB Ser. 14-C25,
Class XA, 10, 1.00%, 11/15/47 34,201,033 1,884,477
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 13-Cl14, Class E, 4.562%, 8/15/46 4,051,000 3,331,948
FRB Ser. Cl14, Class D, 4.562%, 8/15/46 5,919,000 5,554,075
FRB Ser. 14-C25, Class D, 3.948%, 11/15/47 9,736,000 7,408,122
Ser. 14-C25, Class E, 3.332%, 11/15/47 4,818,000 2,945,243
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Corp. FRB
Ser. 12-LC9, Class XA, 10, 1.827%, 12/15/47 72,523,111 4,821,336
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Corp. 144A FRB
Ser. 12-LC9, Class D, 4.415%, 12/15/47 1,822,000 1,804,144
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser. 07-CB20, Class AJ, 6.079%, 2/12/51 6,685,000 6,676,310
FRB Ser. 06-LDP7, Class B, 5.925%, 4/17/45 3,516,000 645,186
FRB Ser. 06-LDP6, Class B, 5.653%, 4/15/43 224,180 224,180
Ser. 06-LDP8, Class D, 5.618%, 5/15/45 6,280,000 5,763,156
Ser. 06-LDP8, Class B, 5.52%, 5/15/45 1,883,802 1,902,414
Ser. 04-LN2, Class A2, 5.115%, 7/15/41 48,906 49,224
FRB Ser. 13-LC11, Class XA, 10, 1.524%, 4/15/46 58,599,997 3,703,520
FRB Ser. 13-C10, Class XA, 10, 1.235%, 12/15/47 F 86,288,900 4,498,655
FRB Ser. 13-C16, Class XA, 10, 1.127%, 12/15/46 58,035,060 2,880,152
FRB Ser. 06-LDP8, Class X, 10, 0.338%, 5/15/45 5,189,598 52
FRB Ser. 07-LDPX, Class X, 10, 0.261%, 1/15/49 32,611,747 132,981
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 07-CB20, Class B, 6.179%, 2/12/51 6,690,000 6,288,600
FRB Ser. 07-CB20, Class C, 6.179%, 2/12/51 1,556,000 1,369,280
FRB Ser. 10-Cl1, Class D, 6.136%, 6/15/43 3,646,000 3,229,620
FRB Ser. 11-C3, Class E, 5.614%, 2/15/46 1,416,000 1,450,834
FRB Ser. 11-C3, Class F, 5.614%, 2/15/46 4,436,000 4,533,148
FRB Ser. 12-C6, Class E, 5.191%, 5/15/45 2,685,000 2,553,167
FRB Ser. 12-C8, Class D, 4.66%, 10/15/45 5,105,000 4,935,004
Ser. 11-C4, Class F, 3.873%, 7/15/46 7,276,000 6,287,919
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JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A

Ser. 13-C10, Class E, 3.50%, 12/15/47 $3,043,000 $2,212,261
FRB Ser. 13-LC11, Class E, 3.25%, 4/15/46 2,038,000 1,507,305
FRB Ser. 05-CB12, Class X1, 10, 0.401%, 9/12/37 2,891,177 10,288
FRB Ser. 06-LDP6, Class X1, 10, 0.023%, 4/15/43 1,830,960 18
LB Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser. 99-C1, Class G, 6.41%, 6/15/31 F 198,728 201,798
Ser. 98-C4, Class H, 5.60%, 10/15/35 160,282 161,202
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 06-C6, Class C, 5.482%, 9/15/39 3,606,000 901,500
FRB Ser. 06-C6, Class B, 5.472%, 9/15/39 5,115,000 4,526,775
Ser. 06-Cl1, Class AJ, 5.276%, 2/15/41 3,720,268 3,695,119
FRB Ser. 07-C2, Class XW, 10, 0.451%, 2/15/40 4,133,020 6,000
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 04-C1, Class G, 10, 5.077%, 1/15/36 7,400,000 279,268
FRB Ser. 07-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.451%, 2/15/40 91,548,074 132,909
FRB Ser. 05-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0.34%, 11/15/40 5,342,065 41,401
FRB Ser. 05-C5, Class XCL, 10, 0.329%, 9/15/40 10,807,390 92,655
FRB Ser. 05-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.195%, 4/15/40 1,894,163 102
LSTAR Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 15-3, Class C,
3.261%, 4/20/48 3,057,000 2,655,830
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 08-Cl, Class AJ, 6.263%, 2/12/51 854,000 876,631
Ser. 06-C2, Class AJ, 5.802%, 8/12/43 F 399,482 400,481
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 04-KEY2, Class XC, 10, 0.459%, 8/12/39 1,389,651 2,111
FRB Ser. 05-MCP1, Class XC, 10, 0.014%, 6/12/43 1,808,382 12
Mezz Cap Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 04-C1, Class X, 10, 9.321%, 1/15/37 141,246 4,308
FRB Ser. 05-C3, Class X, 10, 6.741%, 5/15/44 66,912 749
FRB Ser. 06-C4, Class X, 10, 4.759%, 7/15/45 914,313 13,806
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch Trust
FRB Ser. 13-C7, Class XA, 10, 1.552%, 2/15/46 62,169,133 4,009,909
FRB Ser. 13-C12, Class XA, 10, 0.936%, 10/15/46 120,584,782 4,321,373
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 14-C15, Class E, 4.895%, 4/15/47 4,378,000 3,221,332
Ser. 14-C17, Class D, 4.698%, 8/15/47 3,940,000 3,243,393
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class D, 4.37%, 8/15/46 5,438,000 4,527,679
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class F, 4.37%, 8/15/46 6,212,000 4,823,618
FRB Ser. 13-C10, Class E, 4.084%, 7/15/46 5,447,000 4,560,773
Ser. 14-C17, Class E, 3.50%, 8/15/47 4,422,000 2,826,542
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust
Ser. 06-HQ9, Class C, 5.842%, 7/12/44 3,642,000 3,635,129
Ser. 07-HQ11, Class D, 5.587%, 2/12/44 3,784,000 1,147,207
Ser. 07-HQ11l, Class AJ, 5.508%, 2/12/44 4,757,000 4,700,867
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 08-T29, Class C, 6.275%, 1/11/43 3,069,000 3,155,546
FRB Ser. 08-T29, Class D, 6.275%, 1/11/43 5,639,000 5,547,648
FRB Ser. 08-T29, Class F, 6.275%, 1/11/43 3,094,000 3,089,050
FRB Ser. 11-C3, Class E, 5.155%, 7/15/49 308,000 316,547
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TIAA Real Estate CDO, Ltd. 144A Ser. 03-1A, Class E, 8.00%, 12/28/38 $1,855,315 $139,149
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser. 12-C1, Class XA, 10,
2.089%, 5/10/45 13,244,172 1,232,221
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser. 12-C2, Class F, 4.885%, 5/10/63 2,565,000 2,146,649
FRB Ser. 12-C4, Class XA, 10, 1.767%, 12/10/45 81,103,482 6,092,972
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 06-C26, Class AJ, 6.109%, 6/15/45 4,064,000 3,050,845
FRB Ser. 06-C29, 10, 0.318%, 11/15/48 55,144,078 2,206
FRB Ser. 07-C34, 10, 0.294%, 5/15/46 13,892,863 27,786
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 05-C21, Class E, 5.288%, 10/15/44 4,945,000 4,615,712
FRB Ser. 06-C26, Class XC, 10, 0.063%, 6/15/45 4,056,197 811
FRB Ser. 05-C18, Class XC, 10, zero %, 4/15/42 289,363 29
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 14-LC16, Class XA,
10, 1.443%, 8/15/50 76,567,803 5,159,904
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser. 12-LC5, Class E, 4.777%, 10/15/45 1,806,000 1,544,672
Ser. 14-1C18, Class D, 3.957%, 12/15/47 8,305,590 6,416,064
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser. 13-C12, Class AS, 3.56%, 3/15/48 2,875,000 3,018,664
FRB Ser. 13-C14, Class XA, 10, 0.866%, 6/15/46 85,396,234 3,438,906
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser. 11-C2, Class D, 5.602%, 2/15/44 541,438 562,554
Ser. 11-C4, Class E, 5.265%, 6/15/44 1,545,768 1,555,197
Ser. 11-C4, Class F, 5.00%, 6/15/44 5,609,000 5,074,462
Ser. 11-C3, Class E, 5.00%, 3/15/44 1,601,000 1,403,917
FRB Ser. 14-C19, Class E, 4.97%, 3/15/47 3,600,000 2,702,520
FRB Ser. 12-C7, Class D, 4.835%, 6/15/45 2,086,000 1,998,409
FRB Ser. 12-C9, Class D, 4.801%, 11/15/45 1,831,000 1,783,394
FRB Ser. 13-UBS1, Class E, 4.628%, 3/15/46 2,810,000 2,050,457
FRB Ser. 12-C10, Class E, 4.453%, 12/15/45 3,645,000 2,976,370
Ser. 14-C19, Class D, 4.234%, 3/15/47 3,331,000 2,692,585
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class D, 4.208%, 3/15/45 2,967,000 2,728,249
Ser. 14-C20, Class D, 3.986%, 5/15/47 6,328,000 4,806,749
Ser. 13-C12, Class E, 3.50%, 3/15/48 3,607,000 2,777,751
Ser. 13-Cl14, Class E, 3.25%, 6/15/46 3,222,000 2,154,551
FRB Ser. 12-C9, Class XA, 10, 2.118%, 11/15/45 87,317,564 7,428,105
FRB Ser. 11-C5, Class XA, 10, 1.794%, 11/15/44 31,115,528 2,277,968
FRB Ser. 12-C10, Class XA, 10, 1.71%, 12/15/45 73,799,640 5,429,439
FRB Ser. 13-C12, Class XA, 10, 1.384%, 3/15/48 20,466,861 1,183,519
FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class XA, 10, 1.362%, 3/15/45 30,040,267 1,612,180
408,241,393
(8.9%)
BCAP, LLC Trust 144A FRB Ser. 15-RR5, Class 2A2, 1.577%, 1/26/46 8,733,000 7,947,030
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQAl, Class M3,
6.884%, 9/25/28 20,113,870 22,456,732
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Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA2, Class M3,

5.184%, 10/25/28 $13,300,000 $13,868,882
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-DNA4, Class M3,
4.334%, 3/25/29 1,050,000 1,037,202
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 14-DN2, Class M3,
4.134%, 4/25/24 2,690,000 2,771,252
Federal National Mortgage Association
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C01, Class 2M2,
7.484%, 8/25/28 11,800,000 13,228,861
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C02, Class 1M2,
6.534%, 9/25/28 14,518,000 15,768,000
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 2M2,
6.434%, 10/25/28 18,660,000 20,093,122
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C03, Class 1M2,
5.834%, 10/25/28 21,273,000 22,733,868
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser. 16-C05, Class 2M2,
4.984%, 1/25/29 12,623,000 12,978,810
FIRSTPLUS Home Loan Owner Trust Ser. 97-3, Class Bl, 7.79%,
11710723 (In default)’ 134,710 13
Morgan Stanley Resecuritization Trust 144A Ser. 15-R4, Class CB1,
0.598%, 8/26/47 4,746,000 3,559,500
Opteum Mortgage Acceptance Corp. Asset Backed Pass-Through
Certificates FRB Ser. 05-3, Class M3, 1.034%, 7/25/35 7,615,000 6,015,850
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
FRB Ser. 05-AR11, Class A1C3, 1.044%, 8/25/45 F 3,185,254 2,930,433
FRB Ser. 05-AR19, Class A1C3, 1.034%, 12/25/45 4,265,719 3,851,944
FRB Ser. 05-AR13, Class Al1C4, 0.964%, 10/25/45 13,654,014 11,605,912
FRB Ser. 05-AR17, Class A1B2, 0.944%, 12/25/45 4,670,183 3,927,624
FRB Ser. 05-AR2, Class 2A1B, 0.904%, 1/25/45 1,713,081 1,557,191
FRB Ser. 05-AR17, Class A1B3, 0.884%, 12/25/45 1,389,528 1,217,095
167,549,321
( $951,655,473) $897,608,510
(28.5%)
(1.8%)
Celanese US Holdings, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.875%, 6/15/21 (Germany) $835,000 $950,405
Celanese US Holdings, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 4.625%, 11/15/22 (Germany) 1,040,000 1,127,100
Cytec Industries, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.50%, 4/1/23 355,000 349,490
Eastman Chemical Co. sr. unsec. notes 3.80%, 3/15/25 1,593,000 1,657,351
Eastman Chemical Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.30%, 11/15/18 300,000 327,744
Freeport-McMoran Oil & Gas, LLC/FCX Oil & Gas, Inc. company
guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6.75%, 2/1/22 474,000 484,665
Georgia-Pacific, LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.75%, 11/15/29 470,000 662,750
Glencore Finance Canada, Ltd. 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.
unsub. notes 6.00%, 11/15/41 (Canada) 590,000 594,484
Glencore Funding, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 4.625%, 4/29/24 4,284,000 4,355,543
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Glencore Funding, LLC 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.00%, 4/16/25 $2,856,000 $2,813,160

International Paper Co. sr. unsec. notes 8.70%, 6/15/38 510,000 751,353

LyondellBasell Industries NV sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.625%, 2/26/55 3,130,000 2,965,734

NOVA Chemicals Corp. 144A sr. unsec. notes 5.00%,

5/1/25 (Canada) 376,000 377,410

Southern Copper Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.375%,

4/16/20 (Peru) 200,000 219,750

Union Carbide Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 7.75%, 10/1/96 135,000 173,678

Westlake Chemical Corp. 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 3.60%, 8/15/26 5,490,000 5,501,282

WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

8.20%, 1/15/30 5,975,000 8,063,615

WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7.95%, 2/15/31 637,000 847,822

WestRock RKT Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.45%, 3/1/19 393,000 414,741

Weyerhaeuser Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.375%, 3/15/32 R 1,385,000 1,832,464
34,470,541

(0.3%)

Crown Americas, LLC/Crown Americas Capital Corp. IV company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4.50%, 1/15/23 450,000 461,250

Legrand France SA sr. unsec. unsub. notes 8.50%, 2/15/25 (France) 1,393,000 1,875,119

Northrop Grumman Systems Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 7.875%, 3/1/26 1,355,000 1,860,452

United Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.70%, 4/15/40 100,000 127,362

ZF North America Capital, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.50%, 4/29/22 1,770,000 1,873,988
6,198,171

(2.9%)

America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.125%, 3/30/40 (Mexico) 880,000 1,057,434

American Tower Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.00%, 6/1/25 & 7,570,000 7,954,518

CC Holdings GS V, LLC/Crown Castle GS 111 Corp. company guaranty

sr. notes 3.849%, 4/15/23 1,415,000 1,491,278

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter

Communications Operating Capital 144A sr. sub. bonds

6.484%, 10/23/45 5,152,000 6,037,371

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter

Communications Operating Capital 144A sr. sub. notes

4.908%, 7/23/25 1,813,000 1,955,413

Comcast Cable Communications Holdings, Inc. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 9.455%, 11/15/22 3,645,000 5,084,688

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.50%, 11/15/35 700,000 943,220

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.45%, 3/15/37 1,325,000 1,774,681

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 5.25%, 1/15/23 R 945,000 1,055,952

Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/15/22 R 1,337,000 1,472,371
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Crown Castle Towers, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes

4.883%, 8/15/20 $1,915,000 $2,081,316

NBCUniversal Media, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.40%, 4/30/40 845,000 1,152,378

Rogers Communications, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.50%, 3/15/43 (Canada) 425,000 443,271

Sprint Spectrum Co., LLC/Sprint Spectrum Co. 11, LLC/

Sprint Spectrum Co. 111, LL 144A company guaranty sr. notes

3.36%, 9/20/21 3,075,000 3,090,375

TCI Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.875%, 2/15/26 2,435,000 3,407,045

Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.57%, 4/27/23 (Spain) 692,000 757,539

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.40%, 9/15/33 920,000 1,147,592

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.90%,

2/15/54 (units) 127,000 3,431,540

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.05%, 3/15/34 4,675,000 5,096,255

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.522%, 9/15/48 3,906,000 3,884,247

Verizon New Jersey, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 8.00%, 6/1/22 640,000 785,661
54,104,145

(0.6%)

General Electric Co. jr. unsec. sub. FRB Ser. D, 5.00%,

perpetual maturity 10,100,000 10,706,000
10,706,000

(4.6%)

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

7.85%, 3/1/39 1,065,000 1,492,098

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

7.75%, 1/20/24 870,000 1,043,624

21st Century Fox America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 7.75%, 12/1/45 4,690,000 6,653,154

Autonation, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.50%, 2/1/20 4,348,000 4,750,247

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. debs. 7.875%, 7/30/30 1,263,000 1,774,225

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 2.90%, 1/15/27 3,576,000 3,484,197

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.60%, 1/15/45 1,940,000 1,968,074

Dollar General Corp. sr. unsec. sub. notes 3.25%, 4/15/23 1,820,000 1,860,659

Expedia, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.00%, 2/15/26 1,721,000 1,806,332

Ford Motor Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 9.98%, 2/15/47 3,790,000 5,907,041

Ford Motor Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.45%, 7/16/31 3,453,000 4,537,021

Ford Motor Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.40%, 11/1/46 350,000 490,370

General Motors Co. sr. unsec. notes 6.25%, 10/2/43 1,860,000 2,129,693

General Motors Co. sr. unsec. notes 5.20%, 4/1/45 105,000 107,056

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 4.00%, 10/6/26 2,930,000 2,921,357
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General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.30%, 7/13/25 $1,048,000 $1,072,121

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.00%, 1/15/25 1,640,000 1,647,200

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 3.45%, 4/10/22 5,983,000 6,049,704

Grupo Televisa SAB sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 6.625%, 1/15/40 (Mexico) 510,000 583,971

Grupo Televisa SAB sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.00%, 5/13/45 (Mexico) 2,120,000 2,006,374

Hilton Domestic Operating Co., Inc. 144A sr. unsec. sub. notes

4.25%, 9/1/24 915,000 917,288

Historic TW, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

9.15%, 2/1/23 675,000 892,064

Host Hotels & Resorts LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.00%, 10/1/21 R 266,000 304,016

Host Hotels & Resorts LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%, 3/15/22 § 2,124,000 2,345,463

Hyatt Hotels Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.375%, 7/15/23 660,000 671,109

L Brands, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6.625%, 4/1/21 913,000 1,048,809

L Brands, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes

5.625%, 2/15/22 820,000 902,000

Lear Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.375%, 3/15/24 1,695,000 1,811,531

NVR, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.95%, 9/15/22 740,000 780,329

0"Reilly Automotive, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.85%, 6/15/23 640,000 681,336

0"Reilly Automotive, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes

3.55%, 3/15/26 2,575,000 2,668,704

Omnicom Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3.60%, 4/15/26 2,535,000 2,633,399

Owens Corning company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes 9.00%, 6/15/19 3,833,000 4,445,743

Priceline Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. notes 3.65%, 3/15/25 3,089,000 3,210,531

QVC, Inc. company guaranty sr. notes 4.85%, 4/1/24 1,105,000 1,120,964

QVC, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. notes 4.45%, 2/15/25 944,000 932,080

S&P Global, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.40%, 2/15/26 3,420,000 3,792,270

TEGNA, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.875%, 9/15/21 639,000 666,158

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 7.70%, 5/1/32 1,850,000 2,555,725

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

2.95%, 7/15/26 770,000 759,040

Vulcan Materials Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.50%, 4/1/25 911,000 989,695

Walt Disney Co. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.375%, 8/16/41 520,000 584,099
86,996,871

(3.0%)

Altria Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.00%, 1/31/24 694,000 761,796

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 4.90%, 2/1/46 3,057,000 3,495,793

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 3.65%, 2/1/26 868,000 913,363
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Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide, Inc. company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 8.20%, 1/15/39 $5,598,000 $8,846,329

Bacardi, Ltd. 144A unsec. notes 4.50%, 1/15/21 (Bermuda) 1,430,000 1,549,213

Constellation Brands, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.875%, 11/15/19 366,000 382,928

CVS Health Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.75%, 12/1/22 2,534,000 2,840,903

CVS Health Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.125%, 7/20/45 4,375,000 5,103,836

CVS Pass-Through Trust sr. notes 6.036%, 12/10/28 66,958 77,698

CVS Pass-Through Trust 144A sr. mtge. notes 7.507%, 1/10/32 1,951,601 2,478,169

Diageo Investment Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

8.00%, 9/15/22 675,000 871,049

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.50%, 2/15/45 2,615,000 2,678,129

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

7.00%, 10/15/37 1,548,000 2,055,328

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5.625%, 3/15/42 2,509,000 2,950,546

ERAC USA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.85%, 11/15/24 960,000 1,019,366

Grupo Bimbo SAB de CV 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.875%, 6/27/24 (Mexico) 715,000 743,338

Grupo Bimbo SAB de CV 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4._875%, 6/27/44 (Mexico) 400,000 395,026

Kraft Foods Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

Ser. 144A, 6.875%, 1/26/39 1,815,000 2,431,492

Kraft Foods Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.50%, 2/9/40 3,905,000 5,093,178

Kraft Heinz Foods Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

4.375%, 6/1/46 1,490,000 1,511,134

Newell Brands, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.20%, 4/1/26 4,845,000 5,235,085

SABMiller Holdings, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.95%, 1/15/42 630,000 714,887

Tyson Foods, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 4.875%, 8/15/34 461,000 496,478

Tyson Foods, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

5.15%, 8/15/44 654,000 738,718

Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. sr. unsec. bonds 3.45%, 6/1/26 3,545,000 3,613,461
56,997,243

(1.8%)

Anadarko Petroleum Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.55%, 3/15/26 2,730,000 3,104,728

DCP Midstream Operating LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

2.70%, 4/1/19 2,375,000 2,321,563

Devon Energy Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.25%, 5/15/22 1,259,000 1,264,086

EQT Midstream Partners LP company guaranty sr. unsec. sub.

notes 4.00%, 8/1/24 1,930,000 1,906,566

Kerr-McGee Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7.875%, 9/15/31 885,000 1,129,612

Marathon Petroleum Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.50%, 3/1/41 525,000 566,680

Noble Holding International, Ltd. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 6.05%, 3/1/41 1,095,000 635,100
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Petroleos Mexicanos company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.50%, 1/23/26 (Mexico) $2,535,000 $2,448,810

Pride International, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7.875%, 8/15/40 2,160,000 1,728,000

Sabine Pass Liquefaction, LLC 144A sr. bonds 5.00%, 3/15/27 5,705,000 5,804,838

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5.65%, 3/1/20 240,000 259,502

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. sub.

notes 6.20%, 4/15/18 130,000 137,124

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 8.00%, 10/1/19 650,000 745,515

Spectra Energy Partners LP sr. unsec. notes 3.375%, 10/15/26 1,115,000 1,107,839

Statoil ASA company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.10%,

8/17/40 (Norway) 1,900,000 2,217,760

Williams Cos., Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 8.75%, 3/15/32 383,000 473,005

Williams Partners LP sr. unsec. notes 5.25%, 3/15/20 3,785,000 4,093,822

Williams Partners LP sr. unsec. sub. notes 4.30%, 3/4/24 919,000 944,319

Williams Partners LP sr. unsec. sub. notes 3.60%, 3/15/22 635,000 646,322

Williams Partners LP/ACMP Finance Corp. sr. unsec. sub. notes

4.875%, 3/15/24 1,575,000 1,614,663
33,149,854

(8.5%)

Aflac, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.45%, 8/15/40 675,000 892,163

Aflac, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.90%, 12/17/39 1,725,000 2,349,771

Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.75%, 3/1/20 1,000,000 1,074,561

Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. notes 3.75%, 2/1/22 1,900,000 1,999,355

Air Lease Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.375%, 6/1/21 1,895,000 1,949,758

Ally Financial, Inc. sub. unsec. notes 5.75%, 11/20/25 3,485,000 3,567,769

American International Group, Inc. jr. unsec. sub. FRB

8.175%, 5/15/58 2,574,000 3,447,608

Aon PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.25%, 12/12/42 3,255,000 3,135,906

Assurant, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.75%, 2/15/34 1,485,000 1,832,321

Australia & New Zealand Banking Group, Ltd./United

Kingdom 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRB 6.75%, perpetual maturity

(United Kingdom) 785,000 861,596

AXA SA 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN 6.463%, perpetual

maturity (France) 1,630,000 1,699,601

Banco del Estado de Chile 144A sr. unsec. notes 2.00%,

11/9/17 (Chile) 1,000,000 1,002,479

Barclays Bank PLC unsec. sub. notes 7.625%, 11/21/22

(United Kingdom) 3,275,000 3,655,719

Barclays Bank PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 10.179%, 6/12/21

(United Kingdom) 3,252,000 4,105,185

Bear Stearns Cos., LLC (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.25%, 2/1/18 1,685,000 1,802,047

Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 4.30%, 5/15/43 2,065,000 2,262,131

BGC Partners, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 5.125%, 5/27/21 170,000 176,735

BPCE SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.70%, 10/22/23 (France) 265,000 287,119

BPCE SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.15%, 7/21/24 (France) 460,000 483,738
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(28.5%)
Cantor Fitzgerald LP 144A unsec. notes 6.50%, 6/17/22 $5,245,000 $5,669,950
Capital One Bank USA NA unsec. sub. notes 3.375%, 2/15/23 1,260,000 1,287,019
Capital One Financial Corp. unsec. sub. notes 4.20%, 10/29/25 1,916,000 1,989,542
CBRE Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
5.25%, 3/15/25 1,288,000 1,376,992
CBRE Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.875%, 3/1/26 3,092,000 3,233,679
CNA Financial Corp. sr. unsec. notes 3.95%, 5/15/24 650,000 675,138
CNO Financial Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%, 5/30/25 1,755,000 1,772,550
Commerzbank AG 144A unsec. sub. notes 8.125%, 9/19/23 (Germany) 1,865,000 2,144,004
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN 11.00%,
perpetual maturity (Netherlands) 1,255,000 1,512,150
Credit Agricole SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 4.375%, 3/17/25 (France) 2,600,000 2,656,719
Credit Suisse Group AG 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN 6.25%, perpetual
maturity (Switzerland) 539,000 520,809
Duke Realty LP company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.375%, 6/15/22 R 945,000 1,025,746
EPR Properties company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes
5.25%, 7/15/23 R 1,150,000 1,228,502
Fairfax US, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
4.875%, 8/13/24 1,031,000 1,051,620
Fifth Third Bancorp jr. unsec. sub. FRB 5.10%, perpetual maturity 626,000 604,215
GE Capital International Funding Co. Unlimited Co. company
guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 4.418%, 11/15/35 (lreland) 382,000 416,669
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) unsec. sub. notes 6.75%, 10/1/37 950,000 1,196,055
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 6.625%, 3/30/40 3,548,000 4,488,036
Healthcare Realty Trust, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes
3.875%, 5/1/25 R 3,000,000 3,053,259
Hospitality Properties Trust sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.65%, 3/15/24 " 246,000 251,205
Hospitality Properties Trust sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4.50%, 3/15/25 R 875,000 885,203
HSBC Bank USA, NA unsec. sub. notes 7.00%, 1/15/39 2,000,000 2,654,746
HSBC Capital Funding LP 144A company guaranty jr. unsec. sub.
FRB 10.176%, perpetual maturity (Jersey) 4,560,000 6,885,600
HSBC Finance Corp. unsec. sub. notes 6.676%, 1/15/21 1,240,000 1,415,275
ING Bank NV 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.80%, 9/25/23 (Netherlands) 2,705,000 3,050,518
International Lease Finance Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes
6.25%, 5/15/19 895,000 966,600
JPMorgan Chase & Co. sr. unsec. notes Ser. MTN, 2.295%, 8/15/21 3,165,000 3,167,481
KKR Group Finance Co., LLC 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.
unsub. notes 6.375%, 9/29/20 2,655,000 3,063,352
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 144A company guaranty jr. unsec. sub.
bonds 7.80%, 3/15/37 130,000 152,750
Liberty Property LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.375%, 6/15/23 R 225,000 230,063
Lloyds Banking Group PLC unsec. sub. notes 4.50%, 11/4/24
(United Kingdom) 2,145,000 2,215,403
Lloyds Banking Group PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.30%, 12/1/45
(United Kingdom) 5,429,000 5,730,679
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Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Co. 144A unsec. sub. notes

8.875%, 6/1/39 $2,599,000 $4,014,197
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 144A unsec. sub. notes

7.80%, 11/1/25 4,291,000 5,612,113
Mid-America Apartments LP sr. unsec. notes 4.30%, 10/15/23 R 150,000 161,423
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.85%,

3/1/26 (Japan) 1,535,000 1,648,711
Neuberger Berman Group, LLC/Neuberger Berman Finance Corp.

144A sr. unsec. notes 5.875%, 3/15/22 1,601,000 1,667,041
Neuberger Berman Group, LLC/Neuberger Berman Finance Corp.

144A sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/15/45 2,500,000 2,078,125
OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes

7.00%, 10/15/33 1,010,000 1,145,511
Pacific LifeCorp 144A sr. unsec. notes 6.00%, 2/10/20 1,575,000 1,735,346
Peachtree Corners Funding Trust 144A company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. bonds 3.976%, 2/15/25 642,000 644,324
Primerica, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 4.75%, 7/15/22 357,000 387,298
Prudential Financial, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.625%, 6/21/40 1,135,000 1,489,599
Realty Income Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.65%, 8/1/23 R 455,000 499,511
Royal Bank of Canada unsec. sub. notes Ser. GMTN, 4.65%,

1/27/26 (Canada) 2,030,000 2,201,119
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC unsec. sub. bonds 5.125%,

5/28/24 (United Kingdom) 465,000 460,373
Santander Issuances SAU company guaranty unsec. sub. notes

5.179%, 11/19/25 (Spain) 2,600,000 2,684,188
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 4.75%,

9/15/25 (United Kingdom) 660,000 660,703
Santander UK PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.00%, 11/7/23

(United Kingdom) 2,790,000 2,894,402
Select Income REIT sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.60%, 2/1/20 R 1,125,000 1,141,418
Select Income REIT sr. unsec. unsub. notes 2.85%, 2/1/18 R 1,125,000 1,131,874
SL Green Realty Corp company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.00%, 8/15/18 R 1,185,000 1,238,793
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. 144A unsec. sub. bonds

4._436%, 4/2/24 (Japan) 2,380,000 2,572,014
Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A unsec.

sub. FRN 4.375%, 9/15/54 311,000 345,874
Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A unsec.

sub. notes 6.85%, 12/16/39 889,000 1,196,190
TIAA Asset Management Finance Co., LLC 144A sr. unsec. sub. notes

4.125%, 11/1/24 80,000 82,983
TIERS Trust/United States 144A sr. bonds stepped-coupon zero %

(8.125%, 9/15/17), 3/15/46 T 3,965,000 4,004,650
Toronto-Dominion Bank (The) unsec. sub. FRB 3.625%,

9/15/31 (Canada) 2,955,000 2,951,761
Travelers Property Casualty Corp. company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 7.75%, 4/15/26 975,000 1,308,337
UBS Group AG jr. unsec. sub. FRN 6.875%, perpetual

maturity (Switzerland) 200,000 197,920
UBS Group Funding Jersey, Ltd. 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.

notes 4.125%, 4/15/26 (Jersey) 5,175,000 5,410,183

118/286



(28.5%)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

VEREIT Operating Partnership LP company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 4.60%, 2/6/24 |

$2,925,000 $3,027,375
VEREIT Operating Partnership LP company guaranty Sr. unsec.
unsub. bonds 4.875%, 6/1/26 " 205,000 215,763
Wells Fargo Bank, NA unsec. sub. notes Ser. BKNT, 6.60%, 1/15/38 250,000 332,611
Willis Towers Watson PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 5.75%, 3/15/21 750,000 838,625
WP Carey, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.60%, 4/1/24 R 2,990,000 3,114,815
162,252,261
(1.0%)
AbbVie, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.60%, 5/14/25 1,058,000 1,078,875
Aetna, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.75%, 12/15/37 1,660,000 2,226,115
Anthem, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.625%, 5/15/42 665,000 694,346
Fresenius Medical Care US Finance Il, Inc. 144A company guaranty
Sr. unsec. sub. notes 5.625%, 7/31/19 356,000 385,370
Fresenius Medical Care US Finance, Inc. 144A company guaranty
sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.75%, 2/15/21 839,000 937,583
HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. bonds 5.25%, 6/15/26 605,000 632,225
HCA, Inc. company guaranty sr. sub. notes 5.00%, 3/15/24 2,300,000 2,395,450
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.
notes 4.50%, 4/1/27 © 2,820,000 2,805,900
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. company guaranty Sr. unsec.
unsub. notes 4.95%, 4/1/24 R 2,201,000 2,296,101
Quest Diagnostics, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
4.75%, 1/30/20 244,000 264,700
Shire Acquisitions Investments Ireland DAC company guaranty sr.
unsec. unsub. notes 3.20%, 9/23/26 (Ireland) 680,000 668,662
Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV company
guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 3.15%, 10/1/26 (Netherlands) 3,691,000 3,589,630
UnitedHealth Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.625%, 11/15/41 975,000 1,085,629
19,060,586
(1.5%)
Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 3.45%, 5/6/24 2,578,000 2,751,195
Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4.375%, 5/13/45 889,000 944,497
Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.85%, 5/4/43 1,232,000 1,218,391
Diamond 1 Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 144A company
guaranty sr. unsec. notes 7.125%, 6/15/24 3,787,000 4,148,488
Diamond 1 Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 144A sr. bonds
8.35%, 7/15/46 1,262,000 1,529,154
Diamond 1 Finance Corp./Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 144A sr. notes
5.45%, 6/15/23 5,732,000 6,138,158
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. company guaranty sr.
unsec. unsub. notes 5.00%, 3/15/22 1,075,000 1,112,643
Jabil Circuit, Inc. sr. unsec. sub. notes 8.25%, 3/15/18 425,000 459,000
Microsoft Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 2.40%, 8/8/26 3,170,000 3,109,104
Oracle Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 2.65%, 7/15/26 6,865,000 6,771,821
28,182,451
(0.4%)
Burlington Northern Santa Fe, LLC sr. unsec. notes 5.40%, 6/1/41 1,520,000 1,865,291
Continental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser. 97-4A,
6.90%, 1/2/18 167,180 169,169
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Continental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser. 98-1A,

6.648%, 9/15/17 $76,259 $77,589

Norfolk Southern Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 6.00%, 5/23/11 1,115,000 1,310,801

Penske Truck Leasing Co. Lp/PTL Finance Corp. 144A sr. unsec.

bonds 3.40%, 11/15/26 2,309,000 2,306,416

Southwest Airlines Co. 2007-1 Pass Through Trust pass-through

certificates Ser. 07-1, 6.15%, 8/1/22 168,089 189,100

United Airlines 2014-2 Class A Pass Through Trust sr. notes Ser. A,

3.75%, 9/3/26 433,468 454,058

United AirLines, Inc. pass-throughcertificates Ser. 07-A,

6.636%, 7/2/22 343,062 365,361
6,737,785

(2.1%)

AES Corp./Virginia (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.375%, 7/1/21 382,000 431,660

American Transmission Systems, Inc. 144A sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

5.00%, 9/1/44 1,895,000 2,084,538

Appalachian Power Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes Ser. L,

5.80%, 10/1/35 580,000 691,996

Arizona Public Services Co. sr. unsec. notes 4.50%, 4/1/42 390,000 435,770

Beaver Valley 1l Funding Corp. sr. bonds 9.00%, 6/1/17 6,000 6,000

Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. sr. unsec. bonds 6.50%, 9/15/37 410,000 558,052

Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

6.125%, 4/1/36 1,000,000 1,308,568

Commonwealth Edison Co. sr. mtge. bonds 5.875%, 2/1/33 480,000 600,498

Consolidated Edison Co. of New York, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.20%, 3/15/42 710,000 753,872

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr. mtge. notes 4.25%, 12/15/41 725,000 787,668

EDP Finance BV 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.25%,

1714721 (Netherlands) 845,000 908,612

El Paso Natural Gas Co., LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 8.375%, 6/15/32 830,000 1,062,764

Electricite de France (EDF) 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN 5.625%,

perpetual maturity (France) 586,000 580,140

Emera US Finance LP 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3.55%, 6/15/26 2,027,000 2,070,351

Energy Transfer Equity LP sr. sub. notes 5.875%, 1/15/24 990,000 1,006,211

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

6.125%, 12/15/45 650,000 677,662

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.50%, 2/1/42 2,265,000 2,430,365

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.20%, 2/1/22 780,000 854,272

FirstEnergy Transmission, LLC 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.45%, 7/15/44 2,710,000 2,990,084

Iberdrola International BV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 6.75%, 7/15/36 (Spain) 510,000 663,486

ITC Holdings Corp. 144A sr. unsec. notes 6.05%, 1/31/18 330,000 347,039

Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 5.40%, 9/1/44 1,274,000 1,276,213

Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 3.50%, 3/1/21 1,455,000 1,491,922

Kinder Morgan, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3.05%, 12/1/19 750,000 768,472
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(28.5%)
MidAmerican Funding, LLC sr. bonds 6.927%, 3/1/29 $360,000 $501,798
Oncor Electric Delivery Co., LLC sr. notes 4.10%, 6/1/22 1,455,000 1,594,345
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr. unsec. notes 6.35%, 2/15/38 295,000 400,026
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.8%, 3/1/37 785,000 1,006,195
PacifiCorp sr. mtge. bonds 6.25%, 10/15/37 460,000 619,750
PPL WEM Ltd./Western Power Distribution, Ltd. 144A sr. unsec.
unsub. notes 5.375%, 5/1/21 (United Kingdom) 3,220,000 3,552,298
Puget Energy, Inc. sr. sub. notes 3.65%, 5/15/25 2,105,000 2,160,271
Texas Gas Transmission, LLC 144A sr. unsec. notes 4.50%, 2/1/21 1,404,000 1,463,009
Texas-New Mexico Power Co. 144A 1st sr. bonds Ser. A,
9 1/2%, 4/1/19 2,840,000 3,247,245
39,331,152
( $510,050,759) $538,187,060
0.6%)"
Station Place Securitization Trust FRB Ser. 16-1, Class A, 1.534%,
2/25/17 acquired 2/4/16, cost $11,077,000) ik $11,077,000 $11,077,000
( $11,077,000) $11,077,000
©.2%)"
CA State G.0. Bonds (Build America Bonds), 7.50%, 4/1/34 $770,000 $1,135,989
North TX, Tollway Auth. Rev. Bonds (Build America Bonds),
6.718%, 1/1/49 675,000 1,009,807
OH State U. Rev. Bonds (Build America Bonds), 4.91%, 6/1/40 845,000 1,036,688
( $2,294,804) $3,182,484
a5y
Goldman Sachs International
1.023 LIBOR-BBA 2018 11 2016 11 1.023 $525,096,600 $189,035
( $840,155) $189,035
0.3%)
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 $100.77 $125,000,000 $1,937,250
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 100.58 125,000,000 1,760,625
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 100.02 125,000,000 1,285,375
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 99.83 125,000,000 1,146,875
( $5,117,188) $6,130,125
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* /
(11.5%)
0.50% - 185,198,930  $185,198,930
0.260% 2016 12 15 ° $10,000 9,998
0.260% 2016 12 &2 8 1,061,000 1,060,847
0.204% 2016 11 25 &S 24,564,000 24,561,175
0.270 2016 11 17 8 1,091,000 1,090,914
0.288% 2016 11 10 08 3,603,000 3,602,888
0.245% 2016 11 s 1,244,000 1,243,993
( $216,766,550) $216,768,745
( $3,752,612,700) $3,723,447,705
DAC
FRB
FRN
G.0. Bonds
IFB
10
PO
TBA
2015 11 2016 10 31
820 820
* 1,891,320,380
;
T
3
7 144 11,077,000 0.6
#
i
8§
4

F
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1,515,593,708

144 1933 144
2016 10 31
30 312 $50,768,250 2016 12 $(2,272,371)
30 677 119,100,688 2016 12 (7,569, 660)
77 16,796,828 2016 12 (3,763)
994 120,072,094 2016 12 (312,603)
10 7 907,375 2016 12 (8,545)
10 7 907,375 2016 12 8,517
10 324 45,851,063 2016 12 218,653
$(9,939,772)
2016 10 31 ( $6,716,193)

Goldman Sachs International

(0.6665) LIBOR-BBA 2017 12 2016 12 0.6665 $525,096,500 $5,251
(1.15) LIBOR-BBA 2018 11 2016 11 1.15 525,096,600 57,761
1.1665 LIBOR-BBA 2017 12 2016 12 1.1665 525,096,500 609,112
JPMorgan Chase Bank N._A.
(0.634) LIBOR-BBA 2017 12 2016 12 0.634 525,096,500 525
1.134 LIBOR-BBA 2017 12 2016 12 1.134 525,096,500 708,880
(6.00 ) LIBOR-BBA 2018 2018 6.00 21,202,000 1,602,659
$2,984,188
2016 10 31 ( $5,117,188)

Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%

TBA commitments 2017 $100.02 $125,000,000 $1,285,375
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 99.83 125,000,000 1,146,875
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 99.27 125,000,000 794,375
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 99.27 125,000,000 794,375
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2016 10 31 ( $5,117,188)
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 $99.08  $125,000,000 $697,250
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 99.08 125,000,000 697,250
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 98.52 125,000,000 462,375
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50%
TBA commitments 2017 98.33 125,000,000 400,875
$6,278,750
2016 10 31
« )
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
(5.00 ) LIBOR-
BBA 2021 2021 5.00 $1,000,000 $222,000 $44,970
$222,000 $44,970
2016 10 31 ( $856,475,039)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.50%, 11/1/46 $6,000,000 11/14/16 $6,296,250
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.00%, 11/1/46 2,000,000 11/14/16 2,058,750
Federal National Mortgage Association, 4.50%, 11/1/46 14,000,000 11/14/16 15,301,563
Federal National Mortgage Association, 4.00%, 11/1/46 60,000,000 11/14/16 64,246,872
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.50%, 11/1/46 437,000,000 11/14/16 458,786,329
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.00%, 11/1/46 229,000,000  11/14/16 235,762,645
Federal National Mortgage Association, 2.50%, 11/1/46 68,000,000 11/14/16 67,873,180
Government National Mortgage Association, 4.00%, 11/1/46 2,000,000 11/21/16 2,142,188
Government National Mortgage Association, 3.00%, 11/1/46 2,000,000 11/21/16 2,082,989
$854,550,766
2016 10 31
( )
$3,474,100 E $(413) 12/21/21 1.25% 3 month USD- $18,361
LI1BOR-BBA
225,069,000 E (376,355) 12/21/18 1.015% 3 month USD- 72,882
LI1BOR-BBA
612,700 E 869 12/21/18 3 month USD- 1.015% (354)
LIBOR-BBA
200,662,800 E 571,030 12/21/26 1.60% 3 month USD- 2,610,968
LI1BOR-BBA
105,300 E 81 12721746 1.90% 3 month USD- 3,960
LI1BOR-BBA
10,890,200 E (287,516) 12/21/46 3 month USD- 1.90% (688,711)
LI1BOR-BBA
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2016 10 31
( )
$40,274,000 $(534) 9/22/26 3 month USD- 1.5365% $(523,514)
L1BOR-BBA
379,000 ) 9/26/26 1.486% 3 month USD- 6,784
LI1BOR-BBA
133,901,900 (1,776) 9/27/26 3 month USD- 1.467% (2,641,350)
L1BOR-BBA
1,106,000 (@) 9/30/18 0.989% 3 month USD- 1,715
L1BOR-BBA
820,000 (11) 9/30/26 1.3975% 3 month USD- 21,569
L1BOR-BBA
91,066,600 (1,208) 10/6/26 1.52% 3 month USD- 1,367,130
L1BOR-BBA
91,066,600 (1,208) 10/6/26 1.52236% 3 month USD- 1,346,855
L1BOR-BBA
4,071,221 (139) 4/24/47 3 month USD- 1.92% (145,889)
L1BOR-BBA
114,439,500 (194,533) 11/23/26 1.58% 3 month USD- 1,073,343
L1BOR-BBA
$(291,722) $2,523,749
E
2016 10 31
)
Bank of America N.A.
$1,005,426 $ 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index $5,839
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,749,231 — 1712741 4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 10,071
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
Barclays Bank PLC
3,266,169 - 1/12/36 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 7,609
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
254,786 — 1712740 4.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index (1,309)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
791,266 - 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 4,595
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
571,147 - 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 133
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,155,228 - 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 2,310

USD-LIBOR)

6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
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Barclays Bank PLC

$4,751,433 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index $1,102
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
233,639 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (386)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
441,810 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index (567)
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year
Ginnie Mae Il pools
2,571,331 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 14,932
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,845,185 1712740 4.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index (14,618)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,880,173 1/12/39 (6.00%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (16,420)
USD-LIBOR 6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,069,967 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (3,417)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
619,271 1712741 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (2,565)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,853,551 1/12/43 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 20,766
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
385,977 1712743 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 2,080
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
13,128,900 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (39,906)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
5,763,860 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index (192)
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
60,139,301 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 82,517
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
63,631,742 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (335,426)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
Citibank, N.A.
4,920,061 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 6,751
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,165,776 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 1,600

USD-LIBOR)

5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
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Credit Suisse International

$11,387,397 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index $21,529
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year
Ginnie Mae Il pools
1,827,762 1712739 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (8,429)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,111,025 1712743 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 5,987
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,429,342 1/12/43 3.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index (19,735)
USD-LIBOR) 3.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,996,808 1712741 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (12,414)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
6,146,879 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 20,668
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year
Ginnie Mae Il pools
3,379,959 1/12/44 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 18,215
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,850,938 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 22,363
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,039,935 1/12/44 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 16,382
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,215,225 1/12/44 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 11,938
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,420,028 1/12/45 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 20,053
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
10,566,752 1/12/745 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 63,045
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,700,451 1/12/745 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 22,078
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,671,058 1/12/745 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 21,525
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
15,610,023 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (90,651)

USD-LIBOR

4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

$2,968,351 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index $(4,900)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,289,854 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (3,780)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
7,211,689 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 14,421
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,876,203 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (4,748)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,268,139 1712741 4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 7,301
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
4,248,789 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (22,397)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,596,153 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (8,414)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,266,169 1/12/36 5.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (7,609)
USD-LIBOR) 5.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
268,264 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 1,558
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,464,134 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 7,820
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
93,267 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 187
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
2,868,354 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 5,736
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
5,820,391 1/12/38 (6-50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (30,681)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
215,819 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (1,138)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
575,454 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (3,033)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
989,079 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (1,633)

USD-LIBOR)

6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

$3,253,076 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index $(5,370)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
5,177,956 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 10,354
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
6,302,509 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 36,600
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
5,846,820 1712741 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (24,221)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
6,142,062 1712744 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 33,100
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
3,672,614 1/12/45 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 21,912
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
4,012,349 1/12/43 (3.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (21,622)
USD-LIBOR 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
7,527,194 1/12/44 (3.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (32,706)
USD-LIBOR 3.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
1,464,134 1/12/40 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (7,820)
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
JPMorgan Chase Bank N_A.
820,290 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 4,764
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
5,847,073 1/12/41 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (24,222)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
JPMorgan Securities LLC
12,439,002 1/12/44 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 70,317
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
11,397,223 1/12/44 (3.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (61,420)
USD-LIBOR 3.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
12,439,002 1/12/44 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index (70,317)
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pools
$(263,908)
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2016 10 31
. «C D)

Bank of America N.A.
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P $13,534 $198,000 5/11/63 300 bp $(2,567)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 26,395 438,000 5/11/63 300 bp (9,221)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 54,079 876,000 5/11/63 300 bp (17,154)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 51,528 904,000 5/11/63 300 bp (21,982)
Credit Suisse International
CMBX NA BB Index - (240,124) 1,711,000 1/17/47 (500 bp) 24,102
CMBX NA A Index A/P 104,823 2,520,000 1/17/47 200 bp (2,221)
CMBX NA A Index A/P 266,992 7,254,000 1/17/47 200 bp (39,933)
CMBX NA BB Index - (237,205) 13,439,000 5/11/63 (500 bp) 1,824,711
CMBX NA BB Index - (8,311) 856,000 1/17/47 (500 bp) 123,879
CMBX NA BB Index - (110,507) 675,000 1/17/47 (500 bp) (6,268)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 375,879 7,662,000 5/11/63 300 bp (247,170)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 232,421 3,539,000 1/17/47 300 bp (66,329)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 2,654,505 35,913,000 1/17/47 300 bp (377,151)
Goldman Sachs International
CMBX NA BB Index - (650,111) 6,355,000 5/11/63 (500 bp) 324,922
CMBX NA BB Index - (241,670) 1,597,000 1/17/47 (500 bp) 4,951
CMBX NA BB Index - (204,744) 1,211,000 1/17/47 (500 bp) (17,732)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 34,791 667,000 5/11/63 300 bp (19,447)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 33,283 671,000 5/11/63 300 bp (21,280)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 32,711 671,000 5/11/63 300 bp (21,852)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 79,683 1,647,000 5/11/63 300 bp (54,246)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 162,317 2,196,000 1/17/47 300 bp (23,062)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 291,140 4,177,000 1/17/47 300 bp (61,468)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 591,956 7,516,000 1/17/47 300 bp (42,520)
JPMorgan Securities LLC
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 189,953 3,434,000 5/11/63 300 bp (89,288)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 2,848 54,000 1/17/47 300 bp (1,710)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P $32,035 $579,000 1/17/47 300 bp $(16,842)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 30,743 1,176,000 1/17/47 300 bp (68,531)
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 385,538 2,916,000 1/17/47 300 bp 139,379
CMBX NA BBB- Index BBB-/P 612,163 5,064,000 1/17/47 300 bp 184,675

$4,566,645 $1,398,645

2016 10 31
/P
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$ $11,077,000 $

- 534,182,410 4,004,650

— 897,608,510 —

— 3,182,484 —

- 6,130,125 -

— 189,035 -

— 2,049,862,474 —

_ 442,272 _

185,198,930 31,569,815 -

$185,198,930 $3,534,244,125 $4,004,650

$(9,939,772) $ $

- (6,278,750) -

_ (2,984,188) _

_ 44,970 —

— (854,550, 766) —

- 2,815,471 -

- (263,908) _

— (3,168,000) —_

$(9,939,772) $(864,385,171) $
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2015 2016
10 31 10 31
# t
$112,617,000 $ $ $ $(112,617,000) $ $
$4,143,425 (280,591) 141,816 - - - $4,004,650
$41,467,539 (4,392,715) (2,022,687) 298,455 - (35,350,592) $
$158,227,964 $(4,673,306) $(1,880,871)  $298,455  $(112,617,000)

141,816
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Statement of assets and liabilities 10/31/16

ASSETS: B -
Imvestrment in securities, atvalue (Mote 1)

Uneaffiliated isswers (identilied cost 53,567413,770} 53,538 248,775

Affiliated Issuers (ideatified cost 5185,198,930) (Mates 1 and 5 185,198,930
Interest and other receivables 18,543,208
Receivabile for shares of the fund sotd 3,134,177
Recoivable for mestments sald 3,508,925
Recaivable for sales of delayed delivery securities (Nate 1) 673,978.803
Recehvable for variation margin (Note 1) 21179
Unrealized appreciation on forward premium swap option contracts (Note 1) 445970
Unrealized appreciation on OTC swap contracts (Note 1) 3244777
Premium paid on OTC swap contracts (Nate 1} 1,692,672
Prepaid assels 47,179
Total assets 4,436,454 207

T

Payable to custodian 21,038
Fayabile far imvestments purchased 6,338,255
Payable for purchases of delayed delivery securitios iNote 1) 1,664,142,321
Payable for shares of the fund repurchased T514,649
Payable for compensation of Manager (Wote 2) 643,958
Payable for custodian fees (Nete 2) 94,146
Payable far investor servicing lees (Note 2) 532,716
Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2) 485478
Payable far administrative services (Note 2) 3,782
Payabie for distribusion fees {(Hate 2} 403,344
Payable for variation margin (Hote 1) 2ALE M0
Unrealized depreciation on OTC swap contracts (Note 1) 2110040
Premium received on OTC swap contracts (Mate 1) 6,259,317
Written options cutstanding, atvalue (premiems 511,833, 381) (Notes 1 and 3} 9,262,938
TBAsale commitments, ot value (proceeds recewvable S856,475,039) (Note 1) B54,550,766
Other accrued expenses 345,838
Total liabilities 2,545,133,827
Met assets £1,891,320,380

Paid-in capital [Unlimited shares author izad) (Notes 1 and 4} 52,020,775,375
Undistributed net investment income {(Hote 1) 22,168,353
Accurnudated net realized boss on investments (Nate 1) (120,718,753}
Met urrealized depreciation of investments (30,306,555}
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shares outstanding §1,891,320,380
iContinued on next page

58 Income Fund
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Statement of assets and liabilities cont.

Net asset value and redemption price per class A share

(5829, 643,254 drided by 120,355 543 shares)

Offering price per class A share (100/96,00 of %6.39)°

Net asset value and offering price per class B share (524 859,172 divided by 3,643 541 shares**
Wet asset value and offering price per class Cshare

[5180.492.165 divided by 26,400,101 shares)**

Met asset value and redemption price per class M shara

(586,869,224 divided by 13,23 325 shares)

Offering price per class M share [100/%6 75 of 56,721

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R share
(535,265,607 divided by 3,695,845 shares)

Nt asset value, offering price and redemption price per class RS share
(85,068,960 divided by 726,756 shares|

Met asset value, olfering price and redemption price per class RS share
(576,618,245 divided by 10,947,943 shares)

MWet asset value, offering price and redemption price per class Y share
[5660,505 713 divided by 34,441,285 shares)

EDINETOOOO
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Sh.E9
$7.08
S6ED
56.54

56,72
£6.55

30,84
6,07
57.00

46,99

*On single retail sales of less than 5100,000. On sales of 5100000 or mare the offering price is reduced.

**Redemption price pershareis equal to net asset value less any applicable contingent deferred sales charge.

100 single retail sales of less than 550,000, On sales of $50,000 or moee the offering price s reduced.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of operations Year ended 10/31/16

Interest {including interest income-of ST60,957 fram investments in afliliated isswers) [Note 5)

EDINETOOOO
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592,815,941

Total investment income 91,815,941
Compensation of Manager (Nate 2 BAB3 B4
Invester servicing fees (Note ) 3472966
Custodian fees {Mate 2) 164 860
Trustee compensation and expenses [(Note 2 150,408
Distribution fees (Note 3 5287305
Administrative services (Note 3| B0.ATE
Other BTa405
Feeswakved and reimbursed by Monager (Note 2) [23,360)
Total expenses 18,485,791
Expense reduction [(Note 2) (3,013
Hetexpenses 18,482,778
Het investment income 74,333,163
Het realized lass an investments (Notes L and 3] {81,728,375)
Hetincrease feom payments by affiliates (Note 2} 3,064
Net realized lass an swap contracts (Note 1) (532 496,828)
Het realized gain on futures contracts (Mate |) 30,874,093
Net realized gain on written options (Rotes 1 and 3) 94, TRTT1S
Het unrealized depreciation of investments, fulures contracts, swap contracts, written oplions

and TBA sale commitments during the year [1,275351)
Het loss on investments {25,856,582)
Hetincrease in net assets resulting from operations 548,476,581

The accompamying notes are an integral past of these financal statements.

&l Income Fund
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Statement of changes in net assets

Operations

Met investment income 57,333 163 558,361,604
Net realized gain ('0ss) on Investment s (18,581,231 128,150
MNet unreabizod degreciation of imestments (7.275,351) (54,960,039)
Metincrease [decrease] in net assets resulting from operations 48,476,581 {36,470,285)
Distributions to shareholders (Mote 1):
From ardinary income
MNet investment income
Class & [£8.623,921) [34,589,245)
Class B {631,520 (172,105
ClassC 4.58L,71T) (S, 244, 288)
Class M (&712,807) (3436,129)
Class R (B09,705) \BEGBS2)
Class RS {161 67E) 141,741}
Class RG (4 H05 161 (%,969,199)
Class Y (22,926,353 (22,731624)
Increase [decrease) from capital share transactions (Note 4) (473,197,169 B15459.914
Totalinerease (decrease) innet azsets (488,973,452) 507,218,646
Beginning of year 2. 380,293, K17 153,005, 1HR
End of year (including undistributed net investment incame
of 522,168 353 and 513,556,582, respectively) $1,891,320,380 $2,380,293 832

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Notes to financial statements 10/31/16

Within the following Notes o financial statements, references 10 “State Street” represent State Street Bank

and Trust Company, references to "the SECT represent the Securities and Exchange Commission, references to
*Putnam Management” represent Futnam investment Management, LLE, the fund's manager, an indirec twhally-
orwned subsidiary of Putnam investments, LLE and referances to “OTC, I any, represent over-the-counter. Unless
otherwisa noted, the “reporting period” represents the period from Nowember 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016,

Putnam Income Fund {the fund) is a Massachusatts business trust, which s registered under the Investment
Company Actof 1940, as amended, as a diversified open-end management investment company, The goal of the
fune Is 1o seek high current income consistent with what Putnam Management believes to be prudent risk. The
fund invests mainky in bonds that are securitized debt instruments (such 2s mortgage-backed investments) and
other obligations of companies and governments worldwide denominatedin U.5. dollars, are either investment-
grace or below-inwestment-grade in quality {sametimes referned ta as *funk bonds®) and have intermediate- to
[omgs term maturities (three years or longer), Putnarm Management may consider, among other factors, credit,
Interest rate and prepayment risks, as well as general market congitions, when deciding whether to buy or

sell investmants. The fund typically uses 1o a significant extent derivatives, such as futures, options, and swap
contracts, for both hedging and non-hedging purposes

Thelund oflerss class A, class B, class C, class M, class R, ciass RS, class BE and class ¥ shares. Class Aand class M
shares are sold with a maximum frant-end sales charge of 4.00% and 3. 25%, respec tively. Class Ashares generally
are not subject to a contingent deferred sabes charge, and class M, class R, class RS, class RS and class Y shares are
mot subject to a contingent deferred sales charge. Class B shares, which convert to class A shares after appros-
mately eight years, are not subject to a front-end sales charge and are subject to a contingent deferred sales
charpe if those shares are redeemed within six years of purchasze. Class C shares are subject to a one-year 1L00%
contingent deferred sales charge and do not camvert (o class A shares. Class B shares, which are not available

1o all rvestors, are sold al el asset value, The expenses for class A, class B, class C_ class M and class 8 shares
may differ based on the distribution fee of esch class, which is identified in Mote 2, Class RS, class B6 and class Y
shares, which are sold at net asset value, are generally subject to the same expenses as class A, class B, class C,
class M and class B shares, but do not bear a distribution fee and in the case of class Rband ¢lass REshares, bear a
e imvestor servicing fee, which is identified In Note 2. Class RS, class RG and class ¥ shanes are not avallable o
alll irvestors.

In the normal course of business, the fund enters into contracts that may include agreements to indemnify
another party under given circumstances, The fund’s maximum exposure under these arrangerments =5 Unknown
as this would involve future claims that may be, but have not yet been, mads against the fund, However, the fund’s
management team expects the risk of material lass to be remate.

Thefund has entered info contractual arrangements with an investment adviser, administrator, distributor, share-
hotder servicing agent and custodian, who each provide services to the furd, Unless expressly stated otherwise,
shareholders are not parties to, orintended beneficiaries of these contractual arrangements, and these contrac-
tual arrangements are not intended to create any shareholder right to enforce them agalnst the service providers
or to seek any remedy under them against the service prowviders, efther girectly or on behalf of the fund.

Under the fund's Declaraton of Trust, any claims asserted against or on behalf of the Putnam Funds,
including claims against Trustees and Officers, must be brought in state and federal courts located within the
Commaonwealth of Massachusetts.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies consistently foliowed by the fund in the preparation
of its financial statements, The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with accounting principles
generally acceptad in the United States of America and requires management to make estimates and assump-
tizns that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the reparted
amounts of Increases and decreases in net assets from operatlons, Actual results could differ from those esti-
mates, Subsoquent cvents after the Statement of assets and labilities date through the date that the financial
statements were issued have been evaluated in the preparation of the financial statements,

Investment income, realized and unrealized gains and losses and expenses of the fund are borne pro-rata based
on the relative net assets of each class to the total net assets of the fund, except that each class bears expenses
wriigue Lo thal class {including the distribution fees applicable o such classes). Each class voles @ a class only
with respect toits own distribution plan ar other matters on which a class vote is required by law or determined

&b Income Fund
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bry the Trustess, If the fund were liquidated, shares of each class would receive their pro.rata share of the net
assets of the fund, In addition, the Trustees declare separate dividends on each class of shares,

Security valuation Portfolio securities and ather investments are valued using policies and procedures adopted
by the Board of Trustees, The Trustees have farmed a Pricing Committes to oversee the implementation of these
procedures and have delepated responsibility for valuing the fund's assets in accordance with these procedunes
o Putnam Management, Putnam Management has established an internal Valuation Committes thatis respon-
sible for making fair value determinations, evaluating the effectiveness of the pricing policies of the fumd and
reparting to the Pricing Committes.

Market quatations are not consldered to be readily avadlable for certaln debt obligations {inchuding shart-term
investments with remaining maturities of 60 days ar lassh and other investments; such investmants are valuad an
the basis of valuations furnished by anindependent pricing service approved by the Trustees or dealers selected
by Putnam Management. Such services or dealers determine valuations for aormal irstitutional-size trading units
of such securities using methods based on market transac tions for comparable securities and various relation-
ships, generatly recognized by Institutional traders, between securites (which conssder such factors as security
prices, yislds, maturities and ratings). These securitieswill generally be categorized as Level 2, Securities quoted
in farsign currencies, if any, are translated inte LLS, dollars at the current exchange rate,

Imvestments inopen-end investment companies (excluding exchange-traded funds), it any, which can be classi-
fied as Level ] or Level 2 securities, are valued based on their net assel value. The net asset value of such invest-
ment companies equals the total value of their assets kess thalr labllites and divided by the niimber ol thelr
outstanding shares

To the extent a pricing service of dealer is unable tovalue a security or provides a valuation that Putnam Manage-
ment does not believe accurateldy reflects the security’s fair value, the security will bevalued at fair value by
Putnam Management In accordance with policies and procedures approved by the Trusiees. Certain invest-
ments, including certain restricted and illiguid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair value loliowing
procedures approved by the Trustees. These valuations consider such factars as significant market or specific
security svents such as interest rate of credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount
rates, L5, Treasury, U.5, swap and credit yields, index levels, convexity exposures, recovery rates, sales.and other
multiples and resale restrictions. These securlties are classified as Level 2 or &5 Level 3 depending on the priority
of the significant inputs.

To assess the continuing appropriateness of fair valuations, the Valuation Committes reviews and affirms the
reasonableness of such valuations on a regular basis after cansidering all relevant information that is reasonably
avallable. Suchvaluations and procedures are reviewed periodically by the Trustees. Certain secuntles may be
valued on the basis of a price provided by a single source, The falr value of securities i penerally determined as
the amount that the fund could reasonably expect to realize from an orderly disposition of such securities over
a reasonable period of time. Byits nature, a fairvalue priceis a good faith estimate of the value of a security in 2
current sale and doss not reflect an actual market price, which may be diffesent by a material amount.

Security transactions and related investment income Securty transactions are recorded on the trade date
(the date the arder to buy or sell is executed). Gains or losses on securities sold are determined on the identi-
fieed cost basis, Interest Income, nel of any applicable witkholding tases, is recorded on the accrual basis. All
premiumsdiscounts are amortized/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basls.

Securities purchased orsold on a farward commitment or delayed dellvery basis may be setiled at a future date
beyond customary settlement tima; interest income s accrued based on the terms of the-sacurities, Losses
may arise due to changes in the falr value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform
under the contract,

Stripped securities The fund may invest in stripped securities which sepresent a participation in securities that
may be structured in classes with rights to recenve different portions of the interest and principal. Intanest-anly
securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of the principal. If the interest-only
securities experience greater tham anticipated prepayments of principal, the fund may fail to recowp fully its initial
investment in thiese securities. Comversaly, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater
than anticipated and decline Il prepayments are slower than anticipated, The fair value of these securities s
highly sensitive to changes in interest rates,

Options contracts The fund uses options contracts to hedgs duratinn and convedty, to isolate prepayment risk
and to manage downside risks,
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The potential risk to the fund ks that the change in value of options contracts may not cormespand to the changa in
value of the hedged instruments, In addition, losses may arise frem changes inthe value of the underlying instru-
ments if there is an itliquid secondary mardet for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move unexpec tedly
or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform. Realized gains and [oszes on purchased aptions ana
included in realized galns and losses on Insestment securitles, | a written call option s exercised, the premium
onginally recelved s recorded as an addition to sales proceseds, If a written put option is exencised, the premium
originally received b recorded as a reduction to the costof imestments,

Exchanga-traded options are valuad at the last sale price or, if no sales are reported, the last bid price for
purchased options and the last ask price forwritten options. OTC traded options are valusd using prices
supplied by deakars.

Optians on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is to buy or

grant the right ta entar inta & previously agreed upan interest rate or credit default contract. Farward premium
swapoption contracts include premiums that have extended settloment dates. The delayed settlement of the
premilums is factored into the dally valuation of theoption contracts. In the case of Interest rate cap and floar
contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates excesding
a specified rate, In the case ol a cap contract, or falling below a spedfied rate in the case of a floor contract.

Written aption contracts aulstanding at period end, if any, are listed after the fund's portiolio.

Futures contracts The fund uses futures contracts for hedging treasury term structure risk and for yleld

curve positioning,

The potential risk to the fund is that the change invalue of futures contracts may notcorrespond to the change in
valueof the hedged instruments. [n addition, losses may arise from changes in tha value of the underlying instru-
ments, Il there is anilliguid secandary markeat for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates mave unexpectedly
or If the counterparty to tha contract is unable to pariomm. With futures, there i minimal counterparty credit fish
to the fund since futures are-exchange traded and the exchange’s clearinghowse, as counterparty to oll exchange
traded futures, guarantees the futures against default, Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the State-
ment of assets and liabilities. Whan the contract is closed, the fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the
difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the valwe at the time it was closed.

Futures contracts are valued at the quoted daily saitlement prices established by the exchange on which they
trade. The fund and the broker agree 1o exchange an amountof cash equal to the daily Nuctuation in the value of
the futunes contract. Sueh receipts or payments are krown as “variation marngin®

Futures contracts outstanding at period end, If ary, are [isted atter the fund's portfolio,

Interest rate swap contracts The fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared interest rate swap cantracts,
which are arrangements betwean two parties toexchange cash flows based on a notional princlpal amount, for
hedging term structure risk and for yield curve positioning.

AnOTC and centrally cleared Interest rate swap car be purchased or sold with an updront premium, Far O7C
|mterest fate swap contracts, an upfront payment recelved by the fund s recorded as a llability on the fund's
books, An upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset on the fund’s books, OTC and centrally
cleared interest rale swap contracts are marked Lo market daily based opon guotations lom an independent
pricing service ar market makers. Any change is recorcad s an unrealized gain or loss on OTC intarest rate swaps.
Diaily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleaned interest rate swaps are settled through a central clearing agent
and are recarded in vasiation margin an the Statement of assets and lizbilities and recorded as unmealized gain
or loss, Payments, including upfront premiums, received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at

the reset date or the closing of the contract. Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may
include extended effectnve dates, Payments related to these swap contracts ame accrued based on the terms

of the contract

Thefund couls be exposed to crecit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of intersst
rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC Interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency or a
clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on its respective oblipa-
tion to perform under the contract. The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk orcentral clearing
risk s the fair valueof the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having

a master netting arrangement betwean the fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared interast rate
swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There s minimal countenparty risk with respect
to centrally clearsd interest rate swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantes fund 2rd other resources
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that are available in the event of a clearing membaer default, Risk of loss may excesd amounts recognized an the
Statement of assets and liabilities.

OTC and centrally cleared interast rate swap contracts outstanding, including their respective notional amounts
at period end, if any, are listad atter the fund's portfolio,

Total return swap contracts The fund enterea into OTC total returm swap contracts, which are arrangements to
enchange a market-linked return for a pericdic payment, both based on a notional principal amount, to hedge
sec bor expasure and for gaining exposure 1o specific sactors.

To the extant that the total return of the security, indsx or othet financial measure undarlying the transaction
exceads of falls short of the offsetting intsrest rate abligation, the fund will receive a payment fiam or make a
payment o the counterparty. OTC total maturm swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations
from an independent pricing service or market makers and the change, if any, |s recorded as an unrealized gain or
loss, Payments received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses, Certain OTC total return swap contracts
may include extended effective dates. Payments related to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms
of the contract. The fund could be expesed te credit or market risk due to unfaverable changes in the fluctuation
of interast rates or in the price of the underlying security or index, the pessibility that thereis na lguid market

for these agreemeants or that the counterparty may default on its obligation to perform. The fund’s maximum

risk of loss from counterparty risk is the fairvalue of the contract, This risk may be mitigated by having a master
netting arrangement belweesn the fund and the counterparty, Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statement of assets and llabifities.

OTC total return swap contracts outstanding, intluding their respective national amaunts at period end, if any,
are listed after the fund's podtfolic.

Credit default contracts The fund entared inta OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts to hedge
eredit risk, for gaining liguid exposure te individual names, to hedge markat risk and far g aining exposurne to
specific sectors.

I OTC and contrally cleared credit default contracts, the pratection buver typically makes a perlodic stieam

of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a contingent payment
upon the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked obligations of the
refefence entity. Credilevents are centract specilic but mayincluda bankruptey, Tailure to pay, restructuring and
obligation acceleration. For OTC credit default contracts, an upfrant payment recelved by the fund is necorded as
a lakllity on the fund's books. An upfront payment made by the fund 15 recorded as an asset on the fund's books,
Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights to the protection buyer and seller except the
payments between parties, including upfrant premiums, are settied through a central clearing agent through
variation margin payments. Upfrant and pedodic payments received or paid by the fund far OTC and centrally
cleared cradit default contracts are recorded as realized pains or losses at the reset date or close of the contract.
The OTC and contrally cleared credit default contracts are marked to market daily based upon quatations from an
independent pricing service or market makers, Any change in value of OTC credit default contracts isrecorded as
an unrealized gain or loss. Dally fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts are recorded
ir variation margin an the Statement of assets and liabilities and recorded as unnealized gain or loss, Upon the
ocurrence of a credil event, the difference between the par value ard Tair value of the relerence obligation, netof
any proportional amount of the upfront payment. Is recorded as @ reallzed gain or foss,

In addition to bearing the risk that the credit event will occur, the fund could be exposed 1o marke: risk dueta
unfavnrahle changss ininterest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index or the possibility that

the fund may be unable to close put its positian at the same time or at the same price as it it had purchased the
underlying reference obligations. In certain circumstances, the fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally
cleared ¢radit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of boss. Risks of loss may exceed amounts recog-
mized on the Statement of assets and liabdities, The fund's masimum risk of loss from counterpanty risk, either
as the pratection seller oras the protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for
OTC credit default contracts by having a master nefting arrangement between the fund and the counterparty
and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin. Counterparty
risk is fur ther mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due to the dearinghouse
guarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of a clearng memoer default, Where the fund
Is a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the fund may be required 10 make s
equal ta the notinnal amaunt.
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OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts cutstanding, including their respective notional amounts at
pericd end, if any, are listed after the fund's portfolic,

TBA commitments The fund may enter into THA {to be announced) commitments to purchase securities for a
fixed unis price at a future date beyond customary sestlement time, Although the unit price and par amount have
been established, the actual securities have not been specified. However, itis anticipated that the amount of the
commitrments will not signilicantly differ from the principal amouwnt. The fund holds, and maintaing wntil settle.
ment date, cashor high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, ar the fund
may enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the securities will
ot be earned until settiement date,

The fund may also enter into TEA sale commitments to hadge its partfolio positions, to sell mortgzge-backed
securities [t owns under delayed delivery arrangements or to take a short position in mortgage-backed securi-
ties. Proceeds of TBA sale commitments ase not received until the contractual settiemeant date. Dusing the time

a TBA sale commitment s outstanding, either oquivalent delhverable secarities or anoffsetting TBA purchase
commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date are held as “cover” for the transaction, or other
liguid assets in an amount equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated. If the TRAsale
commitment is closed through the acquisition of an offsetting TEA purchase commitment, the fund realizes a
gain or logs. I the Tund delivers securities under the commitment, the fund realizes a gain or a foss from the sale of
the seCurities based wpon the unit price established at the date the commitment was entered into.

TBA commitments, which ase accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considerad Lecutities
themselwes, and Involve a risk of loss due to changes in the value of the security prior to the settlement date
as waell a5 the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perform iis obligations. Counterparty riskis
mitigated by having 2 master agreement between the fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments arevalued at their fair value according to the procedures described under "Security
valuation” abave. The contract is marked to market daily and the change in fair value ks recorded by the fund a5
an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market circumstances, Putnam Management will determine whether 1o take
delivery of the underiyving securities o to dispose of the TOA commitments priof to settiement.

TEA purchase commitments outstanding at period end, i any, are listed within the fund'’s portfolio and TBA sale
commitments outstanding at period end, I any, are Hsted after the Tund®s portiolko.

Master agreements The furd is a party (0 15DA (International Swags and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master
Agreamants that govern OTC dertvative and foreign exchangs contracts and Master Sacufities Forward Transac-
tion Agreements that govern transactions invofving mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities that may
resultin delayed delivery (Master Agreementls) with ceriain counterparties entered into from time to time. The
Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, amangother things, the parties’ peneral abligatians, repra-
senlations, agreements, collateral requirements, events of default and early termination. With respect lo.certain
counterpartics, Inaccordance with the terms of the Master Agreements, collateral posted to the fund isheldina
segregated account by the fund's custodian and, with respect to those amaunts which can be sold or repledged,
are preserted in the fund'’s portfolic.

Collateral pledged by the fund is segregated by the fund's custodian and identified in the lund's portfolio, Collat-
eval can bein the form of cash or debt securities issued by the ULS, Government or related agencies or olher secu-
rities as agresd to by the fund and the applicatde counterparty, Collateral requirements are determined bassd an
the fund's net position with each counterparty,

With respect o 1506 Master Agraements, termination events applicable to the fund may occur upan a decline

in the fund's net assets below a specified threshold over a certaln pericd of time. Termination avents applicable
to counterparties may occur upon a decling in the countarparty’s long-term ar short-tarm credit ratings below

a specified level. In each case, upon occurrence, the other party may elect to terminate early and cause sattle-
ment of all derivative and foreign exchange contracts autstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs
resulting from such early termination, as reasona bly determined by the terminating party. Any decsion by one or
mare of the fund's counterparties to elect early termination could impact the fund's future derivative activity,

At the close of the reparting periog, the fumd had a net liabality posation of 56,239,067 onopen denvative
contracts subject (o the Master Agreements. Collateral posted by the fund at period end for these agreements
totaled 96,030,724 and may Include amounts related to unsettled agreements,
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Interfund lending The fund, along with cther Putnam funds, may participate in an interfund lending program
pursuant to 2n exemptive order issued by the SEC, This program aliows the fund to borrow fromor lend to
ether Putnam funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions are subject ta each fund's
investment podicies and borrawing and lending limits. Interest eamed or paid en the interfund lending transac-
tion will oe based on the average of certaln current market rates, During the reporting periad, the fund did not
utilize the program.

Lines of eredit The fund participates, alang with other Putnam funds, in a 53175 million unsecured committed
line of credit and a 5235.5 million unsecured uncommitted line of credit, both provided by State Street. Priorto
September 22, 2016, the fund participated in a 5392 .5 million syndicated unsecured committad line of credit
provided by State Street (5292 5 millian) and Nerthern Trust Company (5100 millian] and the same unsecured
uncommitted line of credit. Borrowings may be made for temporany oremergency purposes, including the
funding of shareholder redemption requests and trade settlements, Interest is chargad fo the fund based on

the fund's borrowing at a rate equal to the higher of (1} the Federal Funds rate and (2) the overnight LIBOR plus
1.25% for the committed line of credit and the Federal Funds rate plus 1.30% for the uncommitted line of credit.
A closing fee equal to 0.04% of the committed line of eredit plus o 525,000 fat fee (0.04% prior to Septarmber 22,
2016) and 0.04% of the uncommitted line of credit has been paid by the participating funds. Inaddition, a cammits
ment fiee of 0.21% (0.16% prior i September 22, 2016) per annumon any unutilized portion of the committed line
of credit is allocated to the participating funds based on their relative net assets and paid guarterly, During the
reporting pariod, the fund had no barrowings against these arrangements

Federal taxes It is the policy of tne fund to distribute all of its taxable income within the prescribed time period
and otherwise comply with the provisians of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameanded (the Code), appli-
cabla to regulatad imestmant companies. it s also the intention of tha fund to distribute an amount sufficiant to
avold impasition of anyexcise tax under Section 4982 of the Code.

Thefund Is subject to the provisions of Account ng Standards Codification 740 ncorme Tasxes (ASC T40). ASC T40
sats forth a minimum threshald for financial statement recognition of the benefit of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken ina tax return, The fund did not have a liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits
in the zccompanying financial staterments. No provision has been made for federal taves on income, capital gains
or unrealized appreciation an securities held nor for excise tax an incame and capital gains. Each of the fund's
federal tax returns for the prios thiee lscal vears temalns subiect to examination by the internal Revenue Service,

AtOctaber 31, 201&, the Tund had a capita loss carryover of 539,833,962 available to theextent allowed by the
Code to affset futare net capital gain, Ifany. The amaunts of the cafryovers and the expiration dates ane:

Short-term Long-term Total Expiration
436,522,463 S— £36,522,463 x
63,311,499 MA B3,111,499 Octaber 31, 2017

*Under the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010, the fund will be permitted to carry forward
capital lasses incurred in taxable years beginning after December 22, 2010 for an uniimited period. However, amy
Imsses incurred will be raguited to be utilized prior to the losses incurred in pre-enactment tax yaars, As a rasull
of this ordering rube, pre-enactment capital loss carmylorwards may be more likely to expire unused, Additionally,
post-enactment capltal losses that are carried forward will retain their character as either short-term or long-term
capital lnsses rather than boing considered 3l short-term as under previous law.

Distributions to shareholders Distributions to shaeholders fram net investment income ate recorded by

the fund on the ex-divicend date. Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ed-dividend date
and paid at least annually, The amaunt and character of Income and gains to be distributed are determined in
accordance with income Lax regulations, which may differ from generalty accepted aceounting principles. These
differences include termporany andfar permanant differences from the expiration of a capital loss carrgover, from
unrealized gains and losses on certain futures contracts, from Income on swap contracts and from interest-
only securities. Reclassifications are made to the fund's capital accounts to reflect income and gains available
for distributian [or available capital loss carryovers) under income tax regulations. At the close of the reporting
period, the fund raclassified 51,468,528 to decrease undistributed net investrment income, 592,884,454 ta
decrease paid-in capital and 554,352 982 to decrease accumulated net realized loss,
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The tax basis components of distributable eamings and the federal tax cost as of the close of the reporting period
were as follows:

Unrezlized appreciation 535, 148057
Unrealized depreciation (96,189,263
Met unrealized depreciation (60,041, 205)
Undistributed ordinary income 25,800 262
Capital loss carryforwand {39,833.963)
Cost Tar federal income Lax puiposes 53,7R3 445,514

Note 2: Management fee, administrative services and ather transactions

Thelund pays Putnam Management a management fee [basec on the fund’s average net assets and computed
and paid manthly) at annual rates that may vary based on the averape of the aggregate net assets of all open-end
mutual funds sponsared by Putnam Management fexcluding net assets of funds that are invested In, or that are
Ivested in oy, ather Putnam funds to the axtent necassary to avold “double counting” of thass assets), Such
annual rates may vary as follows:

(L550% of the first 55 billion, 0.350% of the next 550 billion,
0.500% of the next 55 billion, 0.330% af the next 550 billion,
0,450% of the next 510 billian, 0.320% of the next 5100 billion and
0.400% of the next 510 billion, 0.315% of any excess thereafter.

For the reporting period, the management fee represented an effective rate lexcluding the impact from ary
expense walvers in effect) of 0.395% of the fund’s average fol assets.

Futnam Management has cantractually agreed, thraugh Febiruary 28, 2018, fowaive fees of reimburse the fund's
expenses to the extent necessary to limit the cumulative expernses of the fund, exclusswe of brokerage, Interest,
taxes, imeestment-redated expenses, extraordinary expenses, acquined fund fees and expenses and payments
under the lund's investor servicing contract, investment management contract and distribution plans, on a fiscal
yaar-1o-date basis ta an annual rate of 0.20% of the lund’s average net assets over such liscal year-to-date pariod.
Druring the reporting period, the fund's expenses were not reduced as a result of this limit.

Futnam Management may from time to time voluntarily under take to waive fees andfor reimburse certain fund
expenses, Ary such walver of reimbursement would be voluntary and may be modified or discontinued by
Putnam Management at ary time without notice. For the réporting penod, Putnam Managemant valuntarily
waived 523 360,

Putnam lmaestments Limited (PILY an affillate of Putnam Management, |s authorized by the Trustees to manage a
separate portion of the assets of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to time, PIL did not
manage any partion of the assets of the fund during the reporting period, If Putnam Management were to engage
the services of FIL, Putnam Management would pay a quarterly sub-management fee to PIL for its services at an
annual rateof 0.25% of the average net assets of the partion of the fund managed by PIL

Futnam Management has agreed to reimburse the fund 53,064 for a compliance error which occurned during
the reparting pericd. The effect of the loss Incurred and the reimburserment by Putnam Management of such
ameunts had no material impoct on total return,

Thefund resmburses Putnam Managemsent an allocated amaunt for the compensation and related expenses of
certain afficers of the fund and their staff who provide administrative services to the fund. The apgregate amount
of all such reimbursements is determined annually by the Trustees,

Custodial functions far the lund's assels are provided by State Street. Custody fees are based on the fund’s asset
leved, the number of its security holdings and transaction wolumes,

Putnam Iméestar Services, Inc., an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides imvestor servicing agent functions

to the fund. Futnam Investor Services, Inc. recefved tees forinvestor servicing for class A, class B, class C, class M,
class R and class ¥ shares that included (1) a per account fee for each direct and underlying non-defined cantribu-
tien account (*retail account”) of the furd; (2] a speciied rate of the fund's assets attributable to defined contribu-
tien plan accounts; and (3] a specified rate based on the average net assets inretall accounts, Putnam investor
Services has agread that the aggregate investor senvicing fees foreach fund's retail and defined contribution
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accounts for these share classes will not exceaed an annial rate of 0.25% of the fund’s average assets attributable
to such accounts,

Prior to September 1, 2006, Putnam Investar Services, Inc. recelved fees for investor servicing for class A, class B,
class C, class M, class R and class ¥ shares that included (1) a per account fee for each retail account of the fund
and each of the other funds in its specified category, which was totaled and then allocatad to each fund in the
category based on its average daily net assets; (2) aspecified rate of the fund's assets attributable lo defined
contributlon pian accounts; and (3} a specified rate based on the average net assets in retall accounts, Priar

to September 1, 2016, Putnam Investor Services nad agreed that the aggregate investor servicing fees foreach
fund's retall and defined contribution accounts far these share classes would not exceed an annual rate of 0L320%
of the fund's average assets altributable to such aceounts.

Class A5 shares paid a monthly e based on the average net assets of class RS shares atan annual rate of 0.12%,
Class A6 shares paid a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class A6 shares atan annual rate of 0.05%.

Druring the reporting peried, the expenses for each class of shares refated toinvestor servicing fees
woehe as follows:

Clasz $1608.118 Class RS 5,786
ClassB 46,452 Class Ré 58,156
Class C 338,047 Class ¥ 1,251,138
Class M 157,016 Total $3,472,966
Class R 48,263

Thefund has entered into expense offset arrangements with Putnam Investor Services, \nc. and State Street
whereby Putnam Investor Services, Inc.'s and State Street’s fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash balances.
Far the reparting perad, the fund's expenses were reduced by 53,013 under the expense offsat arrangements.

Each independent Trustee of the fund receives an anmual Trustee fee, of which 51,514, as a quarterly retainer,
has been zllocated to the func, and an additional fee for each Trustess meeting attended, Trustees alsc are
reimbursed for expenses they Incur relating to their services as Trustees,

Thetund has adopted a Trustee Fee Deferral Plan (the Deterral Plan) which allaws the Trustees to defer the receipt
of all or a portion of Trustees fees payable on or after July 1, 1995, The deterred fees remaininvested incertain
Putnam funds until distribution in accordance with the Deferral Plan,

Thetund has adopted an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covesing

all Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trustee for at least five years and were first olected prior to 2004
Benefits under the Persian Plan are equal to 50% of the Trustee's smverage annial attendance and retainer fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005, The retirement benedit is payable during a Trustee’s lifetime, beginning
the year following retirement, for the number of years of service through December 31, 2006, Pension expense

far the fund is Included in Trustee compensation and expenses in the Stalement of opetations, Accrued pension
liablity is included in Payable lor Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of assets and labllithes.
The Trustees have terminated the Pension Flan with respect to any Trustee first elected atter 2003,

Ihefund has adopied distribution plans (the Plans) with respect to lts class &, class B, class €, class M and

ciass B shares pursuant o Rule 12b=1 under the investment Company Act of 1540, The purposeof the Flans is o
compensate Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership, anindirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam
Investments, LLC, forservices provided and expenses incurred in distributing shares of the fund. The Plans
provide for payments by the fund to Putram Retail Management Limited Fartnership at an annual rate of up to
0.35%, 1.00%, 1.00%, 1.00% and L00% of the serage net assets attributable to class A, class B, class C, elass M
and class R shares, respectively, The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at an annual rate of 0.25%,
1.00%, 1.00%, 0.50% and 0.50% of the average net assets attributable toclass A, class B, class €, class M and
class R shares, respectively, During the reporting period, the class specific expenses ielated to distribution fees
were as follows:

Class & 52,330,060 Class M 466,972
Class B8 276,281 Class 143,419
Class C 2010,572 Total $5,187,305

Income Furnd 73
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Far the repaorting period, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, received nit
commissions of $60,715 and 52,217 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and received 511,205
and 53,505 in contingent deferred sales charges from redemptions of class B and class C shares, respectively.

Adeferred sales charge of up to 1.00% is assessad on certain redemptions of class A shares, For the
reparting period, Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, received 5309 an
class & redemplions,

Mote 3: Purchases and sales of securities
During the reporting period, thecost of purchases and the proceeds from sales, excluding short-term
imaestments, were 25 follows:

Cost of purchases Proceads from sales
Irvestrnents kn securitles, Including TBA commitments $28,294 525,553 %28,100,234 BR3
(Long-term)
WS, government securitios (Long-term) - -
Total §28,294,625,553 $28,700,234,883

Thefund may purchase or sell imvestments from or to other Putnam funds in the ordinary course of business,
which can reduce the fund's transaction costs, at prices determined in accardance with SEC requirements and
policies approved by the Trustees. During the reparting period, purchases or sales of long-tesm securitios from
of wother Putnam furds, ITary, did not represent more than 5% of the fund's total cost of purchases and/or total

procesds from salas,

Written aption transactions during the reporting period are summarized as fol.ows:

Writtan swap

option contract Written swap Written option Written option
amounts  option premiums  contract amounts premiums

Written options cutstanding at the:
beglmning of the reporting period  59.957,263.400 531,534,986 SH32,000,000 §5.232.500
Oiptions opened 20,267,065,600 116,730,114 9 A58 568,000 #40,401,099
Opticns exrcisad {1L6TL1%1,100) (12,512.779) - -
Oipticns sxpired (LZ5T72.37T2,200) [28,827,359) (936, D00, 000| 4,118,750
Opticns closed (13,323,081,100) (L0, 208,7659) (8,322,568,000) {36,397,661)

Written opticns cutstanding at the
end of the reparting period 57 47,684, £00 6,716,193 &1,000,000,000 &6 117,188

HNote 4: Capital shares

At the close of the reparting pericd, therewena an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest authorized,
Transactions in capital shares were as follows:

YEAR ENDED 10/31/16 YEAR ENDED L0/31/15
Gl Shares  Amount CShares  Amount |

Shares sold 1r 420,831 Ll184TH 416 Sk, 019093 S417.416,250
Shares issued in connaction with
reimeestment of distributions 3,638,187 24,927,008 4,159,158 29,745,903

21,053,018 L, 403 434 62,178,250 447,162,152
Shares repunchased [5T 474861 (394 878,288) (43,699,803} {312,706,634)
Metincrease [decrease) (36,415,843)  5(250,474,864) 18,478,457  5134,456,519
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YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 YEAR ENDED 10/31/15
Shares sald 413,805 £3,215,137 83,784 55,561, 145
Shares izsued in connection with
retvestmeant of distibutions 80,018 543,022 92478 655,672
5531523 3,758,159 BTG TE2 6,216,817
Shares repurchased {1,291,032) (8770404 {964,057) {6.828,022,
Met decrease (737,109) $(5,012,245) (38,295) $(612,105]
YEAR EMDED 10/31/16 YEAREMDED 18/31/15
Shares sold 4,430,148 530,109,030 13118738 $92,618,215
Shares izsued in connection with
retrvestment of distributions 530,564 3,609,062 559,445 3971321
4960812 3718062 13,678,163 57,569 536
Shares repurchased (10799.205)  (T3.554564) (6575856 (46,585911)
Metincrease (decrease) (5,838,393)  %(39,836,472) 7,102,337 §51,003,625
YEAR ENDED 10/31/16 YEAR EMDED 10/31/15

| Class W

Ameant  Shares. dmaunt.

Sharos sold 482,758 53,218,271 1,068,632 57,529,758
Shares izsued in connection with
raimestmant of distributions 75,824 506,747 B4,009 566,893
558,582 3,725,018 1,152,641 8,116,651
Shares repurchased 2EIBATO)  (17563768) (2024955 (20469578,
Netdecrease (2,059,788)  $(13,838,750) 1,772,314)  §(12,353,227)
YEAR ENDED 10/31/16 YEAR ENDED 10/31/15
Shares sald 1,215,839 S82TTES 2,979,794 521,291 542
Shares issued in connection with
reinvestmant of distributions 101,647 51,080 118,070 788,768
1317486 B,968,109 3,000,564 22,080,710
Shares repurchased (1,668 141) (12.738,129) (1,762, 106) {13,675,524)
Netincrease (decrease) (550,655) (3,770,020} 1,288,758 $9,405,182
YEAR ENDED 10/31/15 YEARENDED
Shares Eluares -
Shares sold 201,050 51,305,092 363,416 §2,647,388
Shares [ssued in connection with o
reinvestmant of distributions 23,308 161 &T6 L9605 141,741
224,358 1557768 383,021 2,789,129
Shares repurchased {133 296) (926, 116) (112,478 [B14.543)
Metincrease 81,062 5631 652 270,543 £1,974 586
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YEAR ENDED 10/31/18 ﬂnq!uuuwum
T e
Shares sold 6,606,750 545 515,500 16,0159, 858 §117,566,331
Shares issued in connection with
reirvestment of distributions 547431 3,805,161 54T E45 3,969,198
7,154 241 40,720,670 16,607,703 121,535,530
Shares repurchased (13,772,333 (26,550,360 15,664, 803 [4L171,022)
Metincrease (decrease) (6,618,002)  5[46,838,690) 10,942,900 $80,364,508
YEAR ENDED 10/31/15 YEAR EHDED'I_-U\EIM
Staret  Amount
Shares sold 304Ta 008 §274,933,198 B0, 260,841 $584,374,422
Shares issued In connection with
reimvestment of distributions 2,137,526 18,027,590 4.574,258 16,643, 148
42213534 293,960,788 B2,835,059 63,016,570
Shares repurchased [58.632097) 408,018,568) (34,708, 160) [251,755,744)
Met increase (decrease} (16,418,563)  5§{114,057,780) 48,086,918  $351,220,826

At the closeof the reparting period, Putnam Investments, LLC owned the foliowing shares of the fund:

Shares owned Percentage of ewmership Value
Class 85 147 [L.73%: al1.480

Nete 5: Affiliated tranzactions

Transactions during the reporting period with any compamy which is under common cwnershipor contraol
were as follows:

Fair value at the Fair valueat
beginning of the Investment  theendofthe
MNamo of affiliate reporting period  Purchasecost  Sale procesds income reporting period
Putnam Shaort Term
Jrvestment Fund® L2T4,B30, 847 SE4ETOT. 266 5938339203 5760,057 5185198930

*Management fees charged to Putnam Short Term Investment Fund have been waived by Putnam Management.

Wote 6: Market, credit and other risks

In the noemal course of business, the fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
wabere flsk of potential logs exists due to changes in the market (market risk) ar faflure of the contracting party ta
the transaction to perform (credit risk). Thefund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an Institution o
other entity with which the fund has unsettled or open tramsactions will default. The fund may invest a signifi-
cant portion of its assets in securitized debt instruments, including mortgage-backed and asset-backed invest-
ments. The yieids and values of these investments are sensitive to changes in int2rest rates, the rataof principal
payments on the underlying assets and the market's perception of the issuers, The market for these investrments
may b valatile and limited, which may make thermn difficult to buy o sell.

To Income Fund
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Mote T: Summary of derivative activity
The volume of activity for the reparting period for any derivative type that was held during the period is listed
belaw and was based on an average of the hoidings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

Purchased TBA commitment aption contracts (contract amaount) 822,200,000
Purchased swap ootion contracts feontract amount) 4£3,899,700,000
Written TBA commitment option contracts icontract amount] (Note 3) S1644,500,000
Written swap option contracts {contract amount] {Mate 3 54,728 500,000
Futures eontracts (mumber of contracrs) 2.n0o
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts [notsonal) 54,565 800,000
OTC total return swap contracts inotianal) £408,500,000
OTC credit default contracts (notional) 5112.200,000
Centrally cleared credit default contracts {noticnal) 5310,000

Thefollowing is a surmmary of the fair value of darivative instraments as of the close of the reporting pericd:

ASSET DERIVATIVES LIABILITY DERIVATIVES

' Derivatives not
accounted foras Statement of Statementof
hedging instruments asgets and assetsand
underAEE_E_l_E liabilities location Fair value EBh_I'LhE_!LB{ihDH EI_I_\EFME_
Credit contracts Receivables 53,971,237 Payables 57,135,237
Irvestments,
Recatvablas, Met Payables, Mot
assets — Unrealized assels — Unrealized
Interest rate contracts appriciation 13,735651" depreciation 24,022 668"
Total 317,706,888 $31,161,905

*Includes cumulative appreciation/depreciation of futures contracts and/for centrally cleared swaps as reported in
the fund's parthalio, Only current day's variation margin is reported within the Statement of assels and liabilities,

The fellowing s a summary ef realized and change In unrealized gains or losses of derlvative Instruments in the
Statement of operations for the reporting pericd (see Note 1):

Derivatives not accounted for

as hedging instruments under

ASC 815 Options Futures Swaps Tatal
Cradit contracts S— 5= 5(610,743) 5[510,743)
Interest rate contracts (16,902 586) 30,874,053 121,686,083) HAT914,578)
Total §(16,902,586) $30,874,003 §(52,496,828) §(38,525,321)
Derivatives not accounted for

as hedging instruments under

ASC RIS Options Futures Swaps Tatal
Cradit contracts - G— 51,253 240 51,253,140
Imterest rate contracts 4,083,103 11,197,665 17,529,835 510,815,773
Total 54,083,103 4(11,197,665) $19,183,075 412,068,513
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Nete 9: New prensuncements

In October 2016, the Securities and Exchange Commission adopted amendments ta rules uncer the Invest-
ment Campary Act of 1940 {*final rules”) intended to modernize the reporting and disclosure of information by
registered investment companies. The final rules amend Regulation 5<% and require funds to provide standand-
ized, enharced dervative disclosure infund financial statements In 2 format designed for individual investors,
The amendments to Regulation 5-X also update the disclosures for other investments and imestments in, and
advances to affiliates and amend the rules regarding the general form and content of fund financial statements
The compliance date for the amendrments Lo Regulation 5-X1s August 1, 2017, Putnam Management {s curiently
evaluating the amendments and theirimpact, if any, on the fund's financial statements,

&0 Income Fund
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The fund’s portfolio 10/31/16

GOVE] 4
.5, Government Guaranteed Mortgage Obligations [8.6%)
Gavernment Naticnal Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certilicates

AMME

ORTG

5.00%, withdue dates from T/20,4 | to 9 20043 54,150,140 54/612,935
5,00, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,162,656
4.687%, 6/20/43 26472 29,706
4.657%, 5/20/45 Bl G 315,812
4.654%, 67 20765 152,570 171,260
4.554%, 5/20/65 64,968 T2.790
4.542%, 8/20/65 75,161 53,839
4.524'%,6/20/65 41,557 46,357
A 516, 6/20/65 43 506 4B, 507
45119, 5/20/55 1,099,853 1,272,393
& 50, with due dates from 520045 1o 4/20,/46 5,561,818 6,124,980
450%, TRA, |1/1/46 17,000,000 18,346,720
4. 468%, 5/20/65 El1346 90,200
4.413%, 5/20/55 35,415 29,352
4 00, with due dates from S 20/40t0 320/46 17357 294 18,947,305
4,00%, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,144,188
3.50%, with due dates from3/15/42 1o 5/20/46 41,167,578 44,103,772
2.50%, TBA, 11/146 15,000,000 16,243,150
3.00%, with due dates from B/20/46 10 10/20/4¢ = 1,557,020 2,08£,583
3.00%, with due dates from 3/20,/43 to 7/ 2045 LETETa 1,754,258
3,00%, THA, 11/1/45 41,000,000 42,701,257

162,097,769

U.5.Government Agency Mortgage Obligations [99.8%)
FederalHome Loan Martgage Corporation Pass-Through Certificates

5.00%, 3/1 /41 42,589 833,121
4 50%, with due dates from 7/144 10 3/1,/45 2,001,459 1.257,295
4.00%, 3/1 /a5 4,901,346 5,371,186
4.00%, 1271744 981,843 1,054,330
3.50%, with due dates from 5/ 145 1o 10/ /45 5,555,999 6,312,015
3.50%, with due dates from 4/ 142 1e 7/1 /46 T.071,953 TASE BED
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 8,000,000 8,395,000
3,00, with due dates from 3/1 M3 t06/1 /46 11,179,660 11,543,862
Federal Mational Martgage Association Pass- Through Certificates
6,00%, with due dates from 2/1,/36 10 5/1 141 5,830,555 6,575,534
6.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 2,000,000 2,292,835
5.50%, withdue dates from 1/1/33t0 2/1/35 953,390 1,082,783
5004, withdue dates from 3/ 140 to 1/ 44 2,906,440 3,246,938
4.50%  withdue dates from 27141 1o 10/1 145 21913890 24,362,973
4.50%, TBA, 127146 14,000,000 15,200,625
4.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 14,000,000 15.301.563
4.00%; with due dates from /145 1o 6/1 /46 10,088,799 11,009,013
4,00%, with due dates from 5/1/43 to 1/1/46 21677458 23,538,814
3.50%, with due dates from 5/ 142 106/1/46 31120539 32.510,179
350%,TBA, 12/1/46 437,000,000 458,375 425
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 AGT,000,000 490,281,958
3.50%, TBA, 11/1/31 1,000,000 L053,516
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Al RO LD A I :
ligations cont.

U.5. Government Agency Mortgage Ob

Federal National Mortgage Assaciation Pass-Through Certificates
3.00%, with due dates from 2/1/43to 10/146 §29.861.683 530,893,614
3.00%, with dee dates liom 9/1/42 o 5/1 45w LB9T.208 1,965,098
3.00%, TBA, 12/1 /46 225,000,000 211,196,298
3.00%, TBA, 11/1/46 226,000,000 233614,051
2.50%, TBA, 12/1/46 4,000,300 67,756,302
2.50%, TBA, 11/1/46 195,000,200 184,636,325

1,887,764,705

Total U.5. government and agency mortgage obligations (cost $2,054,381,926) $2,049,862 474

U.5. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS (%"

LS. Treasury Motes 2,00%, 9/30,/20 4% 5429000 S442,272

Total LS. treasury obligations (cost §428,845) 5442,272

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (4T.50)° "I.“.‘.T‘i'..ﬁ Wistue

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations {17.0%)
Federal HomeLaan Mertgage Corporation

IFBSer. 3408, Class EK, 23.642%, 4/15/37 $933,790 $1.562,630
IFBSer. 2976, ClassLC, 22.46%,5/15/35 121,651 183,921
IFBSer. 279, Class AS, 22 313%, 3/15/34 7.882 8,255
IFB Ser. 3249, ClassP5 20,50 1%, 12/15/36 285 203 433 165
IFBSer. 3065, Class DC, 18, 256%, 3/15/35 B51GIH 1,009,862
IFB 3er.2990, Class LB, 15.579%, 6/15/34 526,439 671,165
IFBSer, 3852, ClassNT, 5.465%, 5/15/41 1,960,137 2031633
Structured Agency Credit Rizk Debt FRN Ser, 15-0K], ClassM3,
4 GRA0G, 1/25/25 16,233,285 16,849,507
Ser.4137,Class P, 10,8 50%, 11/15/47 [ELRED 1,106,154
Ser.4122,Class T1, 10, 4.50%, 10/15/42 2,982,531 503,214
Ser. 4018, Class 1,10, 4,50%, 7/ 15/41 3,507 479 473,261
Ser. 3707, Class P, 10, 4.5008, 7/15/25 LBI.T'I}H 164,405
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-HQ1, ClassM3,
4.334%, 3/15/25 _ 3,985,000 4,179,863
Ser.4546,Class T, 10,4.00%, 13/15/45 24,338,562 #/859,781
Ser. 4500, Class G, [0, 4.00%, B/15/45 16,882,074 2,013,356
Ser 4121, Class M1, 0, 4.00%, 1071542 19,090,910 3,390 4RA
Ser.4116,Class M, 10,4.00%, 10/1/42 7,920,799 1,330,628
Ser. 4165, Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 2/15/43 12,976,827 1.840,244
Ser4122,Class Al, 10, 3.50%, 10/15/42 6,849,788 854,347
Structured Agency Credit Rish Debt FRN Ser, 15-DNAZ, Class M2, - '
3.034%,12/25027 4,051,000 4,132,263
Ser.4182, Class G, K0, 3.00%, 1/15/43 22,051,693 1,528,321
Ser4l4], Class M, 10, 3.00%, 12/ 15042 TEl4075 861,658
Ser. 4138, Class T, 10, 3.00%. 12/15/42 19,003,413 1858062
Ser. 4176, Class 01, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/42 21,868,178 9,266,950
SerdIT], Class NI, 10, 3,005, 6/15M42 12117681 LI71L416
Ser. 4163, Class M1, 10, 3,00, /15,42 7141, 386 1, 735
Ser.4201, Class J, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41 21427552 1,520,791
Incame Fund 27
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gency collateralized mortgage obligations
FederalHome Loan Martgage Corporation

Ser 4206, Closs 1P, 10, 3.00%, 12/15/41

Sar 4004, 10, 3.00%, 3/15/76

conk.

Structured Agency Credit Risk Detst FRM Ser. 16- DNAZ, Class M2,

27345, 10/25,/28F

Svructured Agency Credit Risk Dbt FRM Ser. 16-DNAZ, Class ML,

L7845, 10/ 25/

Structured Agency Crodit Risk Debt FRN Ser 16-HOQA2, Class ML,

L734%, 11/25/28

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 15-DNAL Class M1,

L4340, 1072527

FRB Ser. T-56,Class A 10, 0.524%, 5/25,/43

Ser. 315, PO, 2010 %, 9/ 15/43

Ser. 3835, Class FO, PO, zero b, 4/15/41

5er. 3309, Class BO, PO, rero %, 9/15/37

Ser 339, PO, 26rn W, 4/15/37

S0 3300, PO, z0r0 W, 2/15/37

Ser. 3206, Class EO, PO, 2oro %, B/15/36

Sar. 3175, Class MO, PO, zero %, 6/15/36

Ser, 3210, PO, 2ero %, 5/15/36

St 3326, Class WF, 2ero %, 10/15/35

FRBSor. T-66, Class 2,10, 2en0 %, 5/2543

FRB Ser. 3117, Class AF, zera %, 2/ 15/36
Feceral National Mortgage Association

IFB Ser.06-62, Class P5, 36.696%, 7/25/36

IFB Ser.06-8, Class HF, 22,605, 3/25/36

IFBSer,05-122 Class SE, 2 1.231%, 11/25/35

|FBSar. 05-T5, CI.-?&SG’S, 15.G48%, 8/25/35

IFRSer. 05-106,Class T, 184685, 12/75/35

IFBSer.05-83, Class QP, 16,006%, 11/25/34

IFB Ser, 11-4, Class C5, 10,8329, 5/25/40

Connectiout Avenue Securithes FRE Ser, 14-C04, Class 1M2,

5AMG1L2524
|FB Ser. 13101, Class SE, 10, 5.366%, 10/25/43
Ser 421, ClassCh, 10,4 00%, 5725045
Ser 15-3,Class BIL W0, 4.00%, 3/25M44

Sar J2-124, Class LI, 10, 4,005, 11725042

Ser. 12-118, Class P, 10, 4.00%, 6/25/42

Ser. 12-62, Class EI, 10, 4.00%, 4/25/41

Ser, 1223, Class C1, 10, 4,00%, 3/25/4)

Sor 15-10, Class Al 10, 3.50%, 8/25/43

Ser 1318, Class N, 10,3.50%, 3/25/43

Ser. 12-118,Class IC, 10, 3.50%, 11/25/43

Ser, 14-10, 10, 3.50%, B/25/42

Ser, 12-128, Class QI, 10, 3.50%, 6/25/42

Ser. 12-101, Class P!, 10,3.50%, 8/25/40
Ser. 14-20,Class (A, 10, 3.50%, T/25/39

S, 12-55,Class [, 10, 3. 00%, 4/25/43

Ser. 12-151, Class PY, 10,3.00%, 1/25/43

28 Income Fund
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58,865 682
12,540,768

1,100,000
4,085,902
2,882,506

525,168
B,505,478
15,685 465
6,867,040
13,362
144,835
214,270
10762
36,833
34,922
12,144
3,732,981
14250

469,521
451,372
82226
232552
550,450

94871
92T118

4,680,000
5,805,275
11,3452 192
13,887,050
16,504,872
17,194,010
11,564,036
10,132 525
20,650,806
6725227
17.153408
10,143 365
13,321 934
17,518,166
14,789,430
6,281,240

8,974,522
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5352019
THLALS

1,121,291
30915991
2,886,566

534,748
142,263
13,515,163
6,038,368
11,555
127,334
150,579
9,732
32,072
2T
8,653

10,897

937,111
764,151
1,034,141
325413
H58,768
123,790
1,103,063

5001717
1,370,463
1,741,066
1,302,605
2,804,178
2,392,136
1,354,165
1,089, 46
1,844 652
BL0,4594
3,054,711
1,139,112
1,490,902
1,433,004
1,223,086
657,018
477,325



Federat National Morigage Association
Ser 12144, Class Wi, 10, 3.00%, 11/25/42
Ser, |3-35, Class P, 10, 3.00%, 6/35/42
Ser, 13-55,Class P, 10, 3.00%, 572542
Ser, 13-35, Class PL 10, 3.00%, 2/25/42
Ser, 13-67, Class 1P, 10, 20006, 2/25/42
Ser.13-30, Class {710, 3.00%, 10,25/41
Ser, | 323, Class L1, 10, 3.00%, 6/35/41
Ser, 14-59, Class Al, 10, 3.00%, 10,2540
Ser. 1428, Class Al 10, 3.00%, 3/25/40

Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Sar 16-C03, Class IM],

2.534%, 10/25/28

Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 14-C04, Class 1M1,

ZABAY, 11/25/24F

Cannecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 14-C03, Class IM1,

LT34%, T/25/24F

Cannecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, [4-C03 Class M1,

LT34% 7/25/24

FRESer. 03-W10, Class 1,10,0.621%, 6/25/43

FRE Ser.01-50, Class BL, 10, 0.389%, 10/25/41

FRESer. 05-W4, Class LA, 10, 0.063%, 8/25/45

FRB Ser, 02-W6, Class 1410, 00335, 6,252

Ser.03-34, Class P, PO, 26109, 4/25/43

Ser, O7-64, Class L0, PO, zero Y, 7/25/37

Ser.07-14, Class KO, PO, zero %, 3/25/37

Ser,06-125, Class OX, PO, 2ero %, 1/25/37

Ser, 06-84, Class OT, PO, rero %, 9/25/35

Ser.06-46, ClassOC, PO, zeroM, 6/25/36
Gowvernment Nabional MortgageAssociation

Ser, 0973, Class IC, 10, 6,00%, 8/20/33

IFB Ser, 13-129,Class 3N, 10, 5.6.24%:, 9/20/43

Ser. 14-76, 10, 5.00%:, 572044

Ser. 13-, Class T, 10, 5.00%, 1/20/43

Ser. 11-116,Class B, 10,5,00%, 10/20/40

Ser, 13-16,Class (B, 10, 5.00%, 10/20/40

Ser, 10-35, Class U1, 40, 5,009, 3/20/40

Ser, 10-49, Class U1, 10,5 00%, 1/20/40

Ser.09-121,Class Ul 10, 5.00%, 12/20/33

Ser, 14-108, Class P 10,4,50%, 12/20/42

Ser. 1320, Class QI, 10,4.50%, 12/16/42

Ser, 12-129,10,4.50%, 11/16/42

Ser. 1035, Class 1, 10, 4 509, 3720040

Ser. 10-0, ClassQl, 10,4.50%, L/20/40

Ser. 11-116,Class 14, 10,4.503%, 10/20/39

Ser, 13-34, Class P1,10, 4.50%, B/20/39

Ser, 14-T], Class Bl 10, 4 50%, 5/30/29

Ser. | 5148, Class KI, 10, 4.00%, 10/20/45

Ser 150410, 4.00%, 7/20/45

Ser. 1599, Class L1, 10, 4.00%, 7/20/45

cy collateralized mortgage obligations cont.

£13,187.9%0
6413, DET
10,973,100
19,345,156
13,758,868
5,595,979
1012581
15293416
18,896,758

4,016,167
800,114
TT.628

1212241
5547775
500,028
143,366
G54, TEA
166,436
44,597
174,583
15,201
15,820
13,345

11529570
3278101
3,160,875
4,205,959
948,335
4,000,212
2,856,121
25,514,131
11,967,855
TEITATE
15,630,491
4927935
4 42627
4461067
1,906,352
265,222,769
13,721 458
5,089 468
908,345
7,226,098
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£1,432,216
517,770
B36,722
1,521,110
1,118,596
413,987
474757
1,223,473
1,688,888

4,061,994
B, T14
18,096

1214472
70,213
5,938
%0
1520
140,026
&3/093
151,257
13214
13,864
11,553

3,337,548
550,098
1,748,255
TGS, 240
38,295
168,715
534,766
4,647,308
2,219,229
1015,788
2,156,003
977,893
137,896
T42,264
315,790
3,062,819
1,678,688
3472851
195,658
771,882
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Agency collateralized mortgageobligations cont.
Government Mafional Mortgage Assoclation

Ser 1560, Class P, 10, 4.00%, 4/20/45 421,539,840 53,370,062
Sar 1553, Class M, 10, 4.00%, 4/16/45 71,652,310 4,586,847
Ser, 14-2,Class L, 10,4.00%, 1/16/44 7.961,135 1,253,436
Ser. 14 -Ea._ﬁlass P10, 4.00%, 7/20/43 12,553,398 1,556,211
Ser. 15-52, Class (E, 10, 4.000, 1/16/432 15,321,242 2466411
Ser. 13-4, ClassIC, 10,4.00%, 3/20/42 17,420,195 3,710,485
Ser, 12-56,Class 18, 10, 4.00%, 4/ 10/42 8,999,065 1,415,688
Seer, 12-50,Clyss P, 10, 4,00%, 1272001 20,400,461 2,076,465
Ser. 14-4, Class |, 10,4.60%, 7/20/39 7,087,639 644,895
Ser. 11-71, Class ik, 10, 4.00%, 416,19 12,143,367 1,189,575
Ser. 14-162, Class DI, 10, 4.00%, 11/20/38 17,661,405 1,375,584
Ser. 14-133,ClassAl, 10,4.00%, 10/20/35 15,169,415 1,348,484
Ser, 13-53,Class 1A, 10, 4.00%, 12/20/26 12529477 1,318,242
Ser. 15-69, Class 1,10, 3.50%, 5/20/45 19,345,342 2,768,774
Ser 15-TT, Class [0, 40, 3, 500, 5720445 14,236,178 1,424 61
Ser 15-20, Class PI, KD, 3,500, 2/20/45 12,846,025 1877460
Ser, 15-24, ClassCl, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45 B,969,104 1720462
Ser. 15-24, Class 1A, 10, 3.50%, 2/20/45 13,306,924 1L,379,T11
Ser. 13100, ClassMI,10, 3.50%, 2/20/43 6,301,378 577,206
Sor 1337, Clags 110, 35006, 1720443 5,158,349 537,734
Sor 12145, 10,3.50%, 12/20/42 156,030 1,221,182
Ser 13-27,Class P, 10, 3.50%, 12/20/42 6,312,105 727,596
Ser. 12-136,10, 3.50%, 11/20/42 19,428,527 3,717,435
Ser, | 2-113,Class 1D, 10, 3,50%, %/20/42 26,124,231 5,104,704
Ser, 1271, Class Al 10, 3.50%, 1/20/42 9,683,079 488,795
Sar 1446, Class JI,10,3.50%, 10/20/41 7799242 1,032,206
Ser, 14-141, Class GI, 10, 3.50%, 6720041 13,272,369 1,190,294
Ser 15-35, Class (0, 10, 3.50%, 6/ 16,/41 12 550,952 1,312,155
Ser, 13-18, Class G, 10, 3,50%:, 5/ 20/4] 7.005,879 800,071
Sor. 14-102, Class |G, 10, 3.50%, 3/16/41 10,308,219 1223414
Sar 15-62, Class KI, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/40 20,500,433 2,515,177
Ser. 12-48, ClassKI, 10, 3,50%, 12/16/39 4,649,647 389,585
Sar. 15-26, Class Al 10, 3500, 5720439 41,104 B0 A4TT153
Ser. 1587, ClassAl, 10, 2.50%, 12/20/38 21,219,006 1697522
Sor_15-24, Class IC, 10, 3.50%, 11/20/37 13,783,605 LGT6,347
Sar. 14-145, Class PI, 10, 3.50%, 10/20/29 11,811 458 1,341,949
Ser. 14100, Closs 31, 10, 3.50%, /0625 21,153,582 1322621
Set. 3-8, ClassBI, 10, 3.00%, | 1/20/42 16,125,307 1| TTE 966
Ser, 13-53,Class P1L1O, 3,009, 4/ 20/4] 10,465,566 830,757
Seer, 14-14] Class I, 103, 3,000, 3/20/40 10,230,135 0§, 584
Ser 13-23, Class K, 10, 3.00%, 9/ 20437 21,150,432 2,133,587
Ser. 14-46, Class K1, 10, 3.00%, 6/20/36 5,197,268 504,439
Sed, |4-30, Class K1, 10, 3.00%, 2/ 16/29 9,152 460 873,136
Ser, 14-5, Class L1 10, 3.00%, 1/16/29 260T,635 876,543
Ser. 13-164,ClassCl, 10, 3.00%, 11/15/28 17,372 445 1,544,046
Ser 16-H2E Class NI, B, 28359, 104 1066 44,458,000 6,606,459
FRB Ser. 15-H15, Class X1, 10, 2. 468%, T/20/%5 28,152,791 3,564,143
Ser. 15-Ha6, Class DI, 10, 2,142%, 10/20/65 23,353,979 2,865,533
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Agm:ymlhumlhndmr@pnhﬂpﬂmm
Government National Mortgage Association

Ser. 15-H25, Class C1,10,2.081%, 10/20/65 528,289,174 §3.473,911
Ser. 16-H11, Class HI, 10, 2. 081%, 1720/66 40,464,317 4 565 B3
Ser. 15-H15, Class JI. 00, 134, 6/20/55 21,660,533 2,449,606
Ser. 16-HO4, Class K, 10, 1.873%, 2/20/56 35,352,871 3,667,010
Sar, 15-HL2, Class Al 10, LBSSM, 5/20/66 33,044,026 3.328,591
Ser. 15-H20, Class Al 10, LBATY, B/20/65 32,360,750 337,538
Ser. 16-HOR, ClassHI, 10, 1.8ZT%, | /20/66 54,423,164 5959,336
Ser, 15-H10,Class Cl, 10, 1.B0S%, /20,85 33,187.277 3415734
Ser.15-H12, Class G1, 10, 1 7979, 5/20/65 44,254 554 4412.179
Sir, |5-HO0, Class B, 10, 1.701%, 3/ 20/65 38,368,707 3,583,637
Ser. 15-H12, Class E1, 10, 1.6%65%, 420,65 32,900,200 3,053,139
Ser. 15-H01, ClassCl, 10, Le4%, 12/30/64 30471,723 2,126,926
Ser, 15-HIT,Class CI, 10, 1.525%, 6/20/65 3167432 2,162 586
Ser, 15-H25, Class Al, 10, 1.615%, 9/20/65 28,389,669 2,360,748
Ser. 15-H14, Class Bl 10, 15939, 52065 2,625 805 179,605
Ser. 15-H2E, Class 1,10, 1 554%, 8/20/65 33,475,031 2,671,547
Ser, 14-H1L, Class G, 10, 1 48%, 6/20/64 59,023,967 538943
Ser. 14-HO7,Class B, 10, 1.450%, 5/20/64 46,008,178 3,796,595
Ser. 10-H19, Class G, 10, 1405%, 8/30/60 36,247,358 2,392,326
IFBSer. 11-70, Class¥l, 10, 0. 15%, 12/20/40 15,723313 13645
Sar. 10151, Class KO, PO, 2oro %, 6/16/37 345,237 299966
Ser.06-36,Class OD, PO, zerot, 7116/36 4,807 21,514
321,817,736

Commercialmortgage-backed securities (21.6%)

Banc of AmericaCommerclal Mortgage Trust
Sar. 06-4, Class A1, 5.695%, T/1046 7,376,359 7,316,415
FRESer. 01-1,Class XW, 10,031 1%, 1/15/43 4,145,903 12,154

Banc ol AmercaCommercial Mortgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser. 075,

Class MW, 10, 03435, 2/10,%51 14,177,073 33,757

Bancof America Merrill Lynch Commerncial Mostgape, Inc. 1444
FRESer, 04-5, Class X0, 10, 0,419%, 111041 1,378,541 16,621
FRB Ser. 04-4, Class XC, 10, 0.035%, 7710/42 476,519 243
FREZer.05-1, Class XW, 10, iero %, | 1/10/42 40,777,140 4,078

Bear Steams Commercial Mortgoge Securities Trust
FRESer.07-T26, Class AJ, 5.566%, 1/12/45F 4,347,000 4,022 708
FRBSer,06-PWLL, Class A J,5.430%, 3/11/39 1.507.000 7,502,308
Ser. 05-T18, Class D, 5.134%, 2/13/42 475 147 423442
FRESer, 04-PRII, Class X1, 10, 0,203%, 2/11 /4] Bd43,527 3,346

Bear Steams Commercial Morigage Securities Trust 1448
FRESer.06-PWLL, Clazs B, 54360, 3/11/30 9,423,000 4,240,350
FRE-Ser, 06-PW14,Class X1,10,0.583%, 12/11/38 6,036,071 B2.936

Capmark Mortgage Securities, Inc. FRE 5er. 87-C1, Class X.10,

L5084, 7/15/29 9E%,543 265,435

CDCommeicial Mortgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser, 0T-C04, Class W, 10,

0.387%, L3/11 /49 19,801,404 9,505

CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRESer. 11-C2, Class D, 5.741%, 12/15/47 1,108,000 1,210,856
FRBSer, 11-C2,ClassE, 5. 141%, 12/154T 3,758,000 3,242,538
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Commercial mortgage-backed securities con
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser. 13-5GC0 1?,1;13;5?’.#. 10, 1AGT%:, L1/10/45F
FRBSer 14-GC1Y, Class XA, 1D, 1L258%, 3/ 1047
Citlgroup Commarcial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRB Ser. 13-GC11, Class £, 4.456%, 4/10/46
FRB Ser. 06-C5, Class XC, 10, 0.513%, 10/15/48
COBALT CMBS Commercial Mortgage Trust FRO Ser.07-C3,
Classhl, 5.758%, 5/15/48
COMM Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates FRE Ser. 12-CR3,
Class XA, 10,2.079%, 10/15/45
COMM Mortgage Trust
Se1.06-CH, Class A, 5.377%, 12/10/46
FRBSer. 14-CR18, Class C,4.737%, 7/15/47
Set. 13-CRLL, ClassAM.4,715%, 10710/46
FRB Ser. 14-LIB56, ClassC, 4.465%, 12/10/47
FRE Ser. 12-CR1, Class XA, 10, 2.026%, 5/15/45
FRE Ser. 13-LC13, Class XA, 10, 1.53%, 8/10/46
FRB Ser. [4-LC15, Class KA, 10, 1. 369%, 4/10/4TF
FRB Ser. 14-CR18, Class KA, 10, L266%, T/15M47
FRESer 14-CRIT, Class XA, 10, 1 1685, 5/10/47
FRBSer. 14-LIBSE, Class XA, 10, 1.05T%, 12/10/47
FRB Ser. 14-LC 1T, Class XA, 10, 0.99%, 10/10/47
COMM Martgage Trust 1444 '
FRBSer, 13-CR1L, Class D, 5.160%, 10/10/45
Sor 12-L0A, Class E, 4,250, 12/10/44
FRBSer. 14-LIBS6, Class D, 3.965%, 12/10/47
Ser, §3-LCL3, ClassE, 3719%.8/10¢46
Ser 14-CRI8,Class £, 3,609, T/15/47
FRESer. 12-LC2, Class XA, 10, 24565, 12/10/44
FRE Set. 06-C8, Class XS, 10,0.526%, 1 2/10/46
Criedit Suisse Commercial Mortgage Trus: [A4A
FRE Ser. 08-C1,Class AJ, 6.064%, 2/15/41
FRB Ser. 07-C2,ClassAX, 10, 0.077%, 1115/4%
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Securithes Corp. 1444
Sar.98-C1.ClassF6.00%, 5/1TM0
FRESer. 02-C3,ClassAX, 10, 1.994%, 5/15/38
DBRR Trust 1444 FRB Ser. 13-£73, Class A, 1 636%, 12/18/45
DBEUBS Mortgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser, 11-LC2A, Class D,
5 5429, 7710044
First Uinion National Bank-Bankof Amarica, RACommercial
Mortgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser, 01-C1, Class 3,10, 1.931%, 3/15/33
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp, 1844 FRE Ser (15-C3,
Class XC, 10, 0072%, T/10/45
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp. Trust FRB Ser. 0B-C1,
Class AJ, 53095, 3/10/44
GE Commercial Mortgage Corp, Trust L44AFRBSer, O7-C1,
ClassXC, 10, 0.200%, 12/10/49
GMAC Commercial Martgage Securities, Inc. Trust 1444 FRB
Ser.05-CL, Class X1,10,0.602%, 5/10/43

32 Income Fund
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5§63, 826,889
0,771 648

7484000
20,834,044

1,588,000

36790014

8,651,000
2542000
245000
2,031,000
4403 914
57,126.159
65,656,599
56,503,672
48,812,508
57,260,782
39,711,251

5,168,000
1,918,000
LaTa000
2,278,000
5,808,000

47,528,377
13,930,526

9.86L,000
61,172,673

A1 2992
1,370,759
153,186
3,003,234
S24,100
1,559,097
3,545,315

59,389,182
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53,414,178
& 454, BEH

5,488,326
B854

1,566,041
2,533,329

8,521,235
2,670,311
1055041
1,947,300
1,856,915
2,991,978
4,066,977
3400391
2777432
3,235,234
1,806,864

4 BEG ATA
LATZ 408
947,236
1,597,106
4,441,539
4027,149
6,409

8,373,510
5,506

429,512
B
158,768

3,084,583

]

3,490,164
135,963
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ATGAGE-BACKED

Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.

GEMortgage SecuritiesCorp. IFRE Ser. 13-GC 10, Class XA, 10,

1.599%, 2/10,/46 466,106,162 §4 988,371

GEMaorigage SecuriliesConp, | 1444
FRBSer. 13-GC10, Class D, 4.41%, 3/ 1046 4,179,000 3,765,880
FRBSer. 13-GC10, Class E, 4.41%, 2/10/46 2,352,000 1756474

G5 Margage Securities Trust
FRBSer, 14-GC18, Class C,4.945%, 1/10/47F 3,103,000 3,229,613
FRBSer, 13-GC12, Class XA, 10, 1.693%, 6/10/46 41,569,257 2,847 494
FRBSer. 14-GC18, Class XA, 00, 118%, 17104477 37,739,836 2,127,832
FRBSer. [4-GC22, Class ¥A 10, 10520 6/10MTF 65,364,360 3637926
FRESer, 14-GC24, Class XA, 10, 0.BEE%:, 3/10,/47F 54,080,077 3021621

GSMorigape Securities Trust 14dA
FRESer, 12-GC6, Class D, 5.654%, 1/10/45 7,489,376 7433206
Ser |1-GC3, Class F, 5.00%, 3/ 10/44 1,692,000 1,562,528
FRE Ser. 13-GC L4, Class D, 4. 7685, 8710046 S417.000 4,937 807
FRBSer. 13-GC12, Class D, 4. 476%, 6/ 10/46 10,025,000 8,539,393
FRB Ser. 36-GG0, Class XC, 10, zero U, 410,38 271,337 23

JPMBA Commercial Mortgage Securitles Trust FRE Ser, 14-C25,

Classia, 10, 1000, 11/15/47 34,201,033 1,884,477

JPMBE Cammertial Morigage Securities Trust 1444
FRBSer, 13-C14, Class E, 4.562%, 8/15/46 4,051,000 3,331,948
FRESer. C14, Class D, 4.562%, B15/46 5,919,000 5,554,075
FRBSer. 14-C25, Class D, 3.948%, 11/15M7 9,736,000 7408122
Ser, 14-C25, Class E, 3.3329, 11/15M47 4,818,000 2845 243

JPMargan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Corp. FRE

Ser, 12:LC9, Class XA, 10, LAZT9, 121547 72,523 111 4,821,336

JPMargan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Corp, 1444 FRB

Ser 12-LC9, Class D, 4.415%, 12/15/47 1822000 1B04, 144

JPMorgan ChaseCommercial Mortgage Securities Truss
FRB Ser. 07-CH20, Class A, 6.0 739, 2/12/51 6,685,000 6,676,310
FRE Ser, 06-LOPT, Class B, 5.925%, 4/17/45 3,516,000 B3, 186
FRB Ser. 06-LOPS, Class B, 5.653%, 4/15/43 224, LED 224,180
Ser.06-L0PA, Class D, 5.618%, 5/15/45 5,280,000 5,763,156
Ser.06-LOPR, Class B, 5.57%, 5/15/45 1.883,607 1,502,414
Ser.04-LNZ, Class A2, 5.115%, 7/15/1 48,906 49,224
FRESer, 13-LC11, Class kA, 10, 1.534%, 4/15M46 58,599,997 3,703,520
FRB Ser. 13-C10, Class XA, 10, 123506, 12/15/47F 85 286,900 £ A48 BRG
FRBSer, 13-C16, Class XA, 10, L1379, 12/15/46 5A,035,060 2,880,152
FRE Ser, 06-LOPS, Class X,10,0.338%, 5/15/45 5,183,598 52
FRB Ser. 0T-LOPX, Class X, |C, 0.261%, 1/154% 32,611,747 132981

JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust [24A
FRESer BI-CH20, Class B, 6 1799, 2/123/51 5,590,004 6,288,600
FRB Ser. 07-CB20, Class C, 6. 179, 2/12/51 1,556,000 1,265,280
FRBSer. 10-C1,Class D,6.136%, 6/15/41 3,646,000 3,219,620
FRBSer. 11-C3, Class E,5.614%, 2/15/46 LAle,000 1,450,634
FRBSer, | 1-C3,ClassF, 5,614%, 2/15/4G 4,436,000 4,533,148
FRBESer. 12-C, Class F,5.191%, /1545 2,585 004 2,553,167
FRESer, 1 2-C8, Class D, 4.66%, 10/15/45 5,105,000 4,935,004
Ser, 11.C4, Class F, 38730, 7/15/46 726,000 6,287,919
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Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.

JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 1444

Ser 13-C10, Class E, 3.50%, 12/15/47

FRBSar 13-LC11, ClassE, 3 25%, 4/15M6

FRB5er.05-CB12,Class X1, 10, 0.400%, 9/12/37

FRE Ser. 06-LDPS, Class X1, 10, 0.023%, 4/15/43
LB Commarcial Morbgage Trust 1444

Ser.99-C1, ClassG, 5.41%, 61 531 F

Ser,98-C4, ClassH, 5.60%, 10/15/35
LB-UBSCommuercial Martgage Trust

FRE Ser. 06-C6, ClassC,5.482%, 9/15/39

FRB Ser. 06-C6, Class B, 5.4T2%, 9/15/33

Ser06-CL, ClassAl, 53760, 2/15/41

FRBSer. 07-C2,ClassXW, 10, 0.451%, 1/15/40
LB-UBS Cammercial Mortgage Trust 1444

FRE Ser.04-C1,ClassG, 10,5077%, 1/15/36

FRESer, 07-02, Class XL, 10, 0.451%, 2/15/40

FRE Ser. 05-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0.34%, 11/15/40

FRB Ser. 05-C5,Class XCL, 10, 0.329%, 9/15/40

FRBSer.05-C2, Class KCL, 10, 0.195%, 4/1540

L5TAR Commercial Martgage Trust 1444 FR35er. 15-3, ClassC,

33619, 4/20/48
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser.08-C1, ClassAJ, 6.263%, 2/12/51
Ser 06-C2, Class A, 5.602%, 6/1243F
Muorrill Lynch Mortgage Trust 1444
FRE Ser, 04-KEY2, ClassNC, 10, 0,459%, 8/12/39
FRASer 05-MOP1, Class XC, W0, 0.0148%, 61743
MezzCap Commercial Mortgape Trust 1444
FRBSar, 04-C1,Class ¥, 10, 9.321%, 1/15/37
FRBSer. 05-£3, Class X, 10, 5.741%, 5/15/44
FRBSer. 06-C4, Class X, 10, 4.759%, T/15/45
Morgan Staniey Bank of America Merrll Lynch Trust
FRE Ser. 13-C7, Class XA, k0, 1.552%, 2/15/45
FRESer, 13-C12,Class XA, 10, 0.936%, 10/1546
Morgan Stanley Bankof América Merrill Lynch Trust 1444
FRBSer. |4-C15, Class E, 4.895%, 4/ 1547
Ser, 14-CIT, Class D.4 6985, 3/15M7
FRE Ser. 13-C11, ClassD,4.37%, B/15/16
FRBSer, 13-C11, ClassF, 4.37%, B/15/6
FRH Ser, 13-C10, Class E, 4 084%, 71545
Sar_14-C17,ClassE, 3,50, B/15/4T
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust
Ser, 06-HQ9, Class €, 5.642%, T/12/44
Ser, 07-HQLL, Class [, 5.587%, 2/12/44
Ser 07-HL1, Class A, 5 G085, 7717 /44
MaorganStanley Capital | Trust 1444
FRB Ser.08-T29, Class C, 6.275%, 1/11/43
FRB Ser. 08-T29, Class D, 6.275%, 1/11/43
FRESer, 08-T29, Class F6.2T5%, 1/11/43
FRBSer. 11-C3, ClassE, 51550, 7/15/49
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$3,043,000
7,038,000
ZBaL 17T
1,830,960

198,728
160,283

3,606,000
5,115,000
3,720,268
4,133,020

7,400,000
91,548,074
5,342,065
10,807,390
1,694,163

3.057.000

854,000
99,482

1,339,651
1,08, 387

141,246
66,812
914,313

62,169,133
120,584,182

4,378,000
3,940,000
5,438,000
6,212,000
5,447,000
4,422 000

3,642,000
3,784,000
4,157,000

3069000
5,638,000
3,084,000

308,000
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§2,212.761
1,507,305
10,288

18

201798
16,202

801,500
4,526,775
3,695,119

6,000

279,268
132509
41401
92,635
102

2,855,830

876,631
400,481

2111
1?

4,308
49

13,806

4,009,909
4,321,373

3,220,332
3,743,393
4,527,679
4823618
4 560,713
2,826,542

3,635,179
1,147,207
4700867

3,155,546
5547548
3,089,050

316,547
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. cmmu:hlnwt:l:e bududucmlth:mn!. '

TiAA Real Estate COO, L, 1444521, 03-1A, ClassE, B.00%, 12/28/38 51,855,315 §139,148
UBS Commercial Martgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser, 12-C1, Class XA, 10,
2.089%, 5/10/45 13244172 1232321
LIES-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
Ser, 1202, Class T, 4 BRS%, 5/10/63 2,565,000 2146640
FRESer 12-C4.Class XA, 10, LTETH, 12/00/45 BL103 482 6,092,972
Wachovia BankCommercial Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser, 06-C.26, Class Ad, 6,105%, 6/15/45 4,064,000 3.050,845
FREB Ser, 06-C29,10,0.318%, 11;1'5,5-53 ' 65,144,078 2,206
FRBSer. 0T-C34, 10, 0.204%, 5/ 1546 13,892 B63 27,186
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRE Ser.05-C21, Class E,5.288%, 10/15/44 4,945,000 4,615,712
FRE Ser. 06-C26, Class XC, 10, 0.063%, 6/15/45 4,056,197 811
FRESEr. 05-C1R, Class XC, 10, 2erm 9, 41542 289,363 T
Wells Farge Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 14 LE 16, Class XA,
10, LA43%:, B8/15/%0 T5,567.603 5,159,504
Wells Fargo Commerclal Mortgage Trist 1444
Ser. 12-LCS,ClassE,4.777%, 10/15/45 1,B06,000 1,544,672
Ser, 14-LCLE Class D, 3.95T%, 12/15M47 8,305,550 6,416,064
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser. 13-Cl2,Closs AS, 3.56%, 3/15/48 2,875,000 3,018,664
FRE Ser, 13-C14, Class XA, 10, 0.B66%:, 6/15/40 85,396,224 3,438,906
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444 '
FRB Ser. 11-C2,Class B, 5.602%:, 2/15/44 541 438 562 554
Ser.11-C4,Class F,5,765%, 5/15/44 1545768 1,885, 197
Ser. 11-C4,Class F.5.00%, 61544 5,609,000 5074462
Ser. 11-C3,ClassE,5.00%, 3/15/44 1,601,000 1403517
FRBSer, 14-C19, Class E,4,97%, 3/15/47 3,600,000 20,520
FRB Ser. 12-C7, Class [, 4. 835%; 6/15/45 2,086,000 1,998,405
FRBSer, 12-C9, Class 0L 4. 800%, 11/15/45 1,831,000 1,763,394
FRBSor. 13-LB51, Class E, 4.628%, 3/ 156 2.810,000 2,050,457
FRE Ser. 12-C10, Class E, 4.453%, 12/15/45 3,645,000 2,976,310
Ser, 14-C19, Class 0, 4. 234%, 3/15/47 3,332,000 2,692,585
FRE Ser. 13-CL1, Class D,4.208%, 3/15045 2,567,000 2,728,240
Ser. 14-C20, Class D, 3.985%, 571547 6,328,000 4,806,749
Ser.13-Ci2,Class E, 3,509, 3/15/48 3,607,000 2,777,151
Ser. 13-Cl4, ClassE, 3.25%, 6/1546 3,222.000 2,154,55)
FRESer 12-09, Class kA, 10,2 118w, 11/15/45 BT, %64 {428,105
FREBSer. 11-C6, Class A, 10, 1 794%, 11/15/44 31,115,528 2,277.568
FRBSer, 12-C10, Class XA, 10, 1.7 1%, 12/15/45 73,799,640 5,420,430
FRE Ser, 13-C12, Class XA, 10, 1 384%, 3/15/48 20,466,861 1183519
FRBSer. 13-C11, Class XA, 1, L351=le. 1545 30,040,267 1,612,180
408,241,393

Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) (8.9%)
BCAR, LLC Trust 144A FRE Ser, 15-RRS, Class 242, 1 577%, 1/26/46 B.733,000 1947030
Federal Home Loan Morgage Corporation -

Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRN Ser. 16-HQAL ClassM3,

G.BB4%, 9/25/28 20,113,870 27 456,732

Incame Furd 35
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Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) cont.
FederalHome Loan Mortgage Corporation
Soructured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRM Ser. 16-DNAZ, Class M3,

5.184%. 10/25/28 513,300,000 513,868,882
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRM Ser. 16-DNAA, Class M3,

4.334%, 3/25/29 1,050,000 1,037,202
Structured Agency Credit Risk Debt FRM Ser. 14-DHNZ, Class M3,

413455, 4/25/24 2,630,000 2,771,252

FadaralMational Martgage Asscclation
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 16-COL Class M2,

T4B4%, B/25/28 11,600,000 13,228,861
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser. 16-C00, Class 1M2, ' o
6.534%, 9/25/28 . 14,513,000 15,768,000
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser, 16-C03, Class M2,
6.434%, 10/25,28 18,660,000 20,082,122
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRE Ser. 16-C04, Class IM2,
5.834%, 10/25/28 21773000 12,733,868
Connecticut Avenue Securities FRB Ser, 16-C05, Class 2M2,
4.984%, 1/25/29 12,623000 12,978,810
FIRSTPLUS Home Loan Dwner Trust Ser 97-3.Class BL, T79%,
11/10/23{In default}t 134710 13
Mosgan Stanley Resecuritization Trust 144A Ser. 15-R4, Class CBY, '
0.5%6%, B/26,/47 ) 4,746,000 3,555,500
Opteum Mortgape Acceptance Corp Asset Backed Pass-Through
Certificates FRB Ser. 05-3, Class 3, 1.034%, 7/25/35 7615000 6,015,850
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
FRESer. 05-ARLL Class ALC3, 1.044%, 5/25/457 3,185,254 2930433
FRBSer. 05-AR19, Class ALCE, 1.034%, 12/25/45 4,265,719 3,851,944
FRB Ser. 05-4R13, Class ALC4, 0.964%, 10/25,/45 13,654,014 11,605,912
FRE Ser.05-ARLT, ClassALE2,0.944%, 12/2545 4,670,183 3,927,624
FRESer, 05-AR2, Class JALB, 0.904%, 1/25/45 1,113,081 1,557,191
FRE Ser. 05-4F17, Class ALB3, 0.BE4%, 12/75/45 1,389,528 1,.:21T.EIEIE
167,549,321
Total mortgage-backed securities (cost §951,655,473) 897,608,510

CORPORATE BOMDS AND NOTES (25,5%)"

Basicmaterials {1.5%)

Celanese LIS Holdings, LLC company guaranty st unsec. nates

5.875%, 6/15/21 iGermany) 5835000 §650,405
Celanese LS Holdings, LLC company guasanty st unsec. unsul,

notes4.525%, 11/15/22 (Germany) 1,040,000 1,127,100
Cytee Induwstries ine, srunses. unsub, notes 3. 50%, 471723 _35'5.DEIEI 348,450
Eastman Chemical Co.sr. unsec.notes 3.80%, 3/15/25 1,593,000 1,857,351
Eastman Chemical Co. s, unsec. unsub, naess.30%, 11/15/18 300,000 327,744
Freeport-McMoran Oil &Gas, LLC/FCX Ol & Gas, Inc. company ' '
Buarantysr. unsec. noles5.75%, 2/1/22 474000 4E4,665
Geogia-Pacific, LLC sr. unsec. unsuly, notes 7.75%, 11/15/29 ATO000 562,150
Glencon Finance Canada, Ltd, 1444 company guaranty s Unsec,

unsuby. notes 6.00%, 11/15/4] [Canada) 590,000 544,484
Glencom Funding, LLC 1444 company guaranty =, unsec. unsuly,

nes 4 625%, 4/29/24 4,284,000 4,355,543

36 Income Fund
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_ CORPORATE BONDSAND MOTES {20.5%)" cont.

Basic materfals cont.

Glencore Funding, LLC 1444 company guaranty st unsec, unsub.

notesd 00%, 4/16/25 §2 856,000 $2,813,160

loitermationsl Papser Co. se, unsec, noles 8.00%, 6/15/38 510,000 751,353

LynndellBasell Industries Ny sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4.525%, 2/26/55 3,130,000 2,965,734

NOWAChemicals Corp, 144A st unsec, notes 5.0:0%:,

5/1/25 Canada) 376,000 377410

Sauthern CopperCorp.srunsec, pnsub, notes 5. 375%,

41620 Pery) 200,000 218,750

Lnian Carbide Corp. s unsec, unsub, bands T.75%, 10/1/96 135,000 173,678

Westlake Chemical Carp, 1448 campany guaranty <. unsec. '

unsub, bonds 3600, 8/15/26 5,490,000 5.501.282

WestRock MWY, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec, unsub. notes

B.20%, 1/15/30 5,975,000 8,063,515

WestRock MWV, LLC company guaranty se.unsec, unsuby notes

7.85%, 2/15/31 637,000 847,822

WestRock RRT Co, company guaranty 5r, unsec. unsub. notes

4,450, 371719 393,000 414,741

Wenor haeuserCo or, unsee, insub, nofes 73759, 3 15/328 1,385,000 1,532,464
34,470,541

Capital goods (0.3%)

Crown Americas, LLC forown Americas Capital Corp. W company

Buaranty sr. unsec. notes4.50%, 1/15/23 450,000 461,250

Legrand France 3Asr. unsec. unsub, ntes 8.50%, 2/15/25 (France) 1,333,000 1,875,119

Northrop Grumman Systems Corp, company guaranty S, unsec,

unsub. notes T.875%, 3/1/36 1,355,000 1.BE0,452

Urited Technologies Corp, . unsec, unsub. nobes 5,70%, 4/15/40 100,300 127.362

#F horth America Capital, Inc. 144Acompany guaranty sr. unsec,

unsub, notes 4 509, 4729/72 1.770,300 1873988

6,198,171

Communication services(2.9%)

America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty s ursec. unsub.

notes & 125%, 373040 (Mexico) B20,300 1057434

American Tower Corp.se. unsec. nobes 4,000, 6/1/257 T510.000 1,854,518

CC Holdings GSW, LLCCrown Castle GS 1 Carp, campany guaranty

5¢, noles 3.849%, 4/15/23 1415000 1490278

Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter

Communications Operatng Capital 1444 se sulby bonds

G404%, 10/23/45 3,152,000 6037371
Charter Communications Operating, LLC/Charter

Communications Operatng Capital 1444 sr.sub, notes

4.908%, 1/23/25 1,813,000 1,955,413
Comeast Cable Communications Holdings, Inc_company
BUSANLY SFUNSEC. Ales Q455%, 1115422 3,645 000 5,084 688
Comcast Corp, company guaranty sr, unsec. unsu o, nobes
6.50%, 11/15/35 00,000 943,220
Comcast Corp. company guaranty st unsec unsub. nobes
6454, 371537 1,325,000 1,774,681
Crown Castle International Corp. 51, unsec. notes 5,25%, 1/15/23% 945,000 1,055,952
Crown Castle International Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.875%, 4/ 15/22R 1,337,000 1,472,371

Incarme Fund 37
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€0 IPORATE BONOSAND NOTES (25,
Communication services cont,

Crown Castle Towers, LLC 1444 company guarantysr. notes

4.BB3%, Bf15/20 51,915,000 52,081,316

NECUnversal Media, LLT compaimy guaranty s, wnsed. wirsub,

nofes 5400, 4/30,/40 245,000 1,152,318

Ropess Communications, Ing, compaiy guaranty S unses, unsub,

notes4,50%, 3/15/43 {Canadal 425,000 443,071

Sprint 5pe|;|:ruml|:¢.LLI:.n’SprhtEpec!mmEu,ll,LL[.f

Sprint SpectrumCo. (], LL 1444 company guaranty s noles

3364, B/20/21 4,015,000 3,080,375

TClCommunications, inc. sr.unsec. unsub, notes 7.875%, 2/15/25 2,435,000 3,407,045

Telefonica Emisiones SAL company guaranty sr.unsec, notes

4 57%,4/27/23 [Spain) 682,000 751,539

Yarizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub, notes

6.40%, 91533 920,000 1,147,582

WVierizen Communications, [ s umsec, unsuly. notes 5.90%,,

2/15/54 (units) 127,000 3,431,540

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.05%, 3/15/34 4, 675,000 5,096,255

Yerizon Communications, Inc. sz unsec, unsub. notes

4527%, 9/15M8 3,906,000 3,884,247

Verizon New Jersey, Inc. company guaranty st unsed, unsub.

bonds8.00%,6/1/22 640,000 785,661
54,104,145

Conglomerates [0.6%)

General Electric Co. [r. unsec. sub. FRB Ser. 0,5.00%,

perpeiual maturity 10,100,000 10,706,000
10,706,000

Consumer cyclicals (4.5%:)

215t Century FoxAmerica, Inc. company guaranty st unsec, notes

V855, 3/1/39 1,065,000 1492058

215t Century FoxAmerica, Ing, company guaranty sr, unsac, nates

TT50W, 1/20/24 870,000 1,043,624

215t Contury FoxAmerica, IRc, company ZUAranty . unsec. unsuk,

noies T.I5%, 12/1/45 4,690,000 6,653,154

Autonation, Inc. company guaranty se. unsec. unsub. nates

5.500%, 2/1/20 - 4,348,000 4,150,247

CBS5 Corp. company guaranty s, unsec. debs, 7.875%, 7/30/30 1,263,000 1774.225

CES Corp, company guaranty s, unsec, unsub, bonds

290%, 1715/27 3,576,000 3484187

CBS Conp, company guaranty se, unsec, ursub. notes

4.60%, 1/15/45 1,940,000 1,968,074

Dollar General Corp. sr.unsecsub, notes 3.35%, 4/15/23 1,520,000 1,860,659

Expedia,Inc. l44A company guaranty st unsec. unsub, notes

5.00%, 2/15/26 1,721,000 1,806,332

Ford Motor Co. sr, unsec. unsub, notes 9.98%, 2/15M47 3,790,000 5,907,041

Ford Motor Co.sr. unsec. ursub. notes 745%, 7/16/31 3,453,000 4,537,021

Ford Motor Co.sr, unsec. unsub, notes 7400, 11/1 /6 350,000 450,370

Genoral Motors Co. s, unses. notes 6.25%, 107243 1,860,000 2,129,653

General Motors Co, s, unsec. notes 5,209, 4/ 45 105,000 107,056

General Motors Financial Lo, I, company guaranty srunsec.

noles 4,005, 10/5/26 2,330,000 2,92],357

3B Income Func
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| CORPORATE BONDSAND MOTES [28.5%)" cont.

Consumer cyclicals cont.

General Mators Financial Co., Inc. company guarantysr. unsec.

unsub, notes4.30%, 7/13/25 51,048,000 51072121

Gerweral Mators Financisl Co, Inc. comparny uaranty s, urnsec,

unsub. notes 4.00%, 1/15/25 1,640,000 1,647 200

Garwral Mators Financial Ca, Ing. campany guaranty ss. unsec,

ursub, notes 3.45%, 4/10/22 5,983,000 £,049,704

Grupo Televisa SABsr. unsec. unswh bonds 6625%,

11540 {Mexica] Elﬂ.t]ﬂﬂ 583,971

Grupo Televisa SAB sr, unsec. unsub, notes 5,00%, 5/ 1245 (Mexico) 2,120,000 2,006,374

Hiltan Domestic Operating Ca, Ing. 14445 unsec, sub, notes

4.25% 1724 915,000 917,288

Historie TW, Ine. company guaranty st unsac. unsub. bands

89.15%. 21123 &15,000 B9 064

Host Hotels & Resarts LP sr. unsec unsub, notes 5,009, 10/1/21% 266,000 304,015

Hast Haotels & Resarts LP sy unsec. ensub, nates . 2506, 3/15/22R 2,124,000 2,345 453

Hyatt Hotels Corp, srunsed. unsub, notes 3.375%, 7/15/23 550,300 671,100

L Brands, Inc. company guaranly s, unsec, notes6.62 5%, 41721 913,500 1,048,805

L Brands, Inc. company guaranty s, unsec, sub, notes

5.625%, 3/15/12 #20,000 802,000

Lear Corp. company guaranty st unsec. ursul, notes

5,375%, 3/15/24 1,695,000 1,811,531

MR, Inc. sr. unsec notes 3.95%, 971522 T40,300 780,329

O Reilly Automotive, Inc. company guaranty s unsec. notes

3.85%,6/15/23 640,000 681,336

O'Reilly Automative, Inc. compary guaranty 5. unsec, subs, notes

3.55%, 31526 2,575,000 2,668,704

Ommicom Group, INe, Company Buaranty sfunses. unsul, notes

3.60%,4/15/26 2,535,000 2,633,799

OwensCaorning company guaranty =r. unsac. sulb. notes

0.00%,6/15/19 3,833,000 4445743

Priceling Group, Inc. (The! sr. unsec, notes 3.65%, 371525 3,085,000 3,210,531

NG, Inc.company BUATANTY S Ncles 4855, 4/1 /74 1105000 1,120,964

q‘rﬂlnc.cmpmy@mnbjsr,sub. notes 4 45%, 2/15/25 44 000 4933 OE0

S&P Global, Inc. company guaranty se. unsec. unsub. notes

4.40%, 2/15f26 3420,000 3,192,210

TEGNA, Inc., 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsul, notes

4,875, 9715/21 639,000 £65,158

TimaWarner, Inc.oompany guarantly s unsed. bonds

7.70%, 5/1/32 1,850,000 2,555,725

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub bonds

2.95%, 7/15/26 10000 153,040

Vulcan Materials Co, s unsec. unsub, notes 4, 50%, 4/1/25 411,000 BEYE85

Walt Disney Con (The) sr unsec. unsub, notes 4.375%, 8/16/41 520,300 584.093
85,996,871

Consumer staples |3.0%)

Altria Growp, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub,. notes

4.00%,1/31/14 634,000 161,796

Anheuser-Busch InBey Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

urisub. bonds 4 9006, 21,46 3,057 000 3,445,793

Anhguser-Busch InBey Finance, Inc, company guaranty sr, unsec.

unsub, bonds 3.65%, 2/1/26 BBA,300 913,362
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Anheuser-Busch InBevWorldwide, Inc. company guarantysr.

wnsec. unsub, notes B.20%, 1/15/39 55,593,000 48,846,329

Bacardi, Lid, 1484 urmec, notes4,50%, 11521 (Bermudal LA30000 1,548,213

Constellation Brands, Inc. company guaranty s unsec. notes .

3.875%, 11/15/19 IBE000 382,928

VS Health Corp. st unsec, notes 4 T5%, 12/1/22 ) 2,534,000 4,840,903

C¥5 Health Corp, 5o unsec, unsub, nates 5, 125%, 17045 A ATH000 5, 103,836

CVS Pass- Through Trust st notes6.036%, 12/10/28 66,958 17,698

CW5 Pass-Through Trust 144Asr, mige. notes TS0T%, 1/10/52 1551601 2,478,169

Diageo Investmeant Corfp. company guaranty sr. unsec, notes

B.00%, 9/15/22 675000 a71,043

ERAL L15|l|.1-‘li'|a1|:\e,| LLC 1444 company guaranty sr, unsec_ bands

4.50%, 2/15/45 2615000 2678129

ERAL USAFinance, LLC 1444 company guasantysr, unsec. notes

7.00%, 10/15/37 1,548,000 3,055,328

ERAC USAFinance, LLE 1444 company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5.625%, 3/15/42 2,509,000 2,950,546

ERAC USAFinance, LLC 144A company gUaranty sr unsec. notes

3.85%, 11157 60,000 1,008,386

Grupo Bimbo SAB de CV I44A company guarantysr, unsec. notes

3.875%, 6/27/24 (Mexico) 713000 Ta3.338

GrupoBimbo SAB de CV J44Acompany guarantysr unsec. unsub.

riotes 4. 875%:, 62744 [Mexico) 400,000 395,026

Firaft Foods Group, Inc. company guaranty sr, unsec. notes

Ser. 1444 68T, 1/26/38 1B15.000 2,431,482

¥raft Foods Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6.50%, 2/940 3,905,000 5,083,178

Fralt Heing FoodsCo, company guasarnly sr, unsec. bonds

43755, 6/1M6 LAS000 1,511,134

Mowell Brands, Incosr unsec, unsub, nates4. 200, 4/1/26 4,845 000 5,235,085

SABMiller Holdings, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

miofes 4.95%, 1/15/42 630,000 714,887

Tyson Foods, Inc, company guarantys:. unsec. bands

4.875%, 8/15/34. 461,000 436473

Tysen Foods, Inc. company guaranty s, unsec. unsub, bands

3.15%, 815044 654,000 738,718

Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. sr.unsas. bonds 3.45%, 6/1/26 3,545,000 3,613 461
56,997,343

Energy (1.5%]

Anadarko Petroleum Corp. sr.unsec. unsub. notes5.55%, 3/15/36 2,730,000 3104728

2CP Midstream Operating LP company guaranty st unsec. notes

2.70%,4/1/18 2375000 2,311,563

Devon Energy Corp. sr unsec. unsub, notes 3.25%, 5/15/22 1,238,000 1,264,086

EQT Midstream Partners LP company guaranty si. unsec.sub.

riotes4.00%, 3124 1,930,000 1,906,566

Ken-Molee Corp, company guaranty sr, unsec_unsub, notes

T.B759, /1531 885,000 1129612

Marathon Petroleum Corp, o, unsec. unsub. notes 6500, 3/1/41 525,000 566,680

Mohle Halding Internatisnal, Ltd. comparny gLearanty srunser.

unsub. netes 6 050%, 37141 1,095,000 635,100

40 Income Fund
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CORPORATE HONDSAND NOTES (28,54 cont,

Energy cont.

Petrolecs Mexicanos company guaranty 57 unsec unsub. notes

4.50%, 1/23/26(Mexica) £2,535,000 52,448,810

Pricde intesnational, Inc. compary guaranty i unisec, unsuli, iotes

T8T5%. 8/1540 2,160,000 1,728,000

Sabine Pass Liguefaction, LLC £48%:. bonds 5,009, 3715727 5,705,000 5,804,638

Spectra EnergyCapital, LLC company guarantysr, unsec, nates

5,65%,3/1/20 240,000 259,502

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec, sub.

nates 6. 20%, 4/15/18 130,000 137124

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaanty s, unsec, unsul,

nates 8,005, 1071/19 650,000 745,515

Spectea Energy Partnere LP sr. unsec. notes 3.375%, 10/15/26 1,115,000 1,107,830

Statoil ASA company guarantysr. unses. notes s, 109,

B/17/40 (Norway| 1,500,000 2,217,760

Williams Cos., Inc_ (Thel sr. unsec, unsub. nates 8. 15%, 3/145/32 1R3.000 A473005

Willams Partrers LP & unsee, notes5.25%, 3/15/20 3,785,000 4,093,622

Williams Partners LP s unsec. suly, notes4,30%, 34/ 519,000 344,318

Willkams Partners LP st unsec. sub, notes 3,60%, 3/15/22 635,000 B46,322

;||I'|'.'|I.|Eams F’artrim LPACHP Hﬁ;ance Corp.st, unsec, sub. nates

4.875%, 3/15/24 LA75,000 1614663
33,149,854

Financials (8.5%)

Alac, Inc. srunsec. notes s 45%, 8/15/40 675,000 892,163

Afac, Inc. sr.unsec. unsub. notes 6.809%, 12/17/39 1,725,000 1,345,771

ﬁrmm{:urp.m.unse:.meﬂ.ﬁ%. 31720 1,000,000 l..ﬂ'M.Eﬁl

AirlLeaseCarp.sr.unsec. notes 3.75%, 2177 1,500,000 1,994,355

AirLease Corp. st unset. uhsub, notes 3.375%,6/1/21 1,895,000 1,949,758

Ally Financial, Inc. sub, unsec, notes 5.75%, 11/20/25 3,485,000 3,567,769

American Inbern ational Group, Inc. jr.unsec. sub. FRE

B.173%, 5/15/58 2,574,000 3AATEDE

Aon PLC company guaranty 5. unsec, unsuls, notes

4,250, 1271247 3.255,000 3,1535.506

Assurant, Inc.sr unsec. nobes 6.75%, 2/15/34 LABS,000 1832321

Australiaf New Zealand Banking Group, Ltd./United

Kingdom 1444 jr. unsec. sub. FRB 6, T5%, perpetual maturity

{United Kingdorm) 785,000 BG1,596

AR SA LadA . unsec. sub, FRM 6,463%, perpetusl

maturity (Franca) 1,630,000 1,689,601

Bancoedel Estadode Chile 1444 5e. unsec, notes 2,000,

LLA{1T (Chite) 1,000,000 1,002,478

Barclays Bank PLC unsec. sub, notes 7,625%, 11/21/32

{United Kingdam) 3,275,000 3,655,719

Barclays Bank PLC 1444 unsec. sub. notes 10.179%, 6/12/21

{Lnited Kingdam) 3,252.000 4,105,185

Bear Staarns Cos_, LLC [Thea) s, unsec. unsub, notes T.25%, 2/1 /18 1,665,000 1,802 047

Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corp. compary guaranty s unsec.

nates4.30%, 5/15/43 2,065,000 1,462,131

BGC Partrers, Inc, sr, unsec, notes5. [ 25%, 527721 170,000 176,735

BPCE SA 1444 unsec. sub, notes 5.70%, 10/22/23 [France) 265,000 287,119

BPCE SA Jdah unsec. sub, notes 5.15%, T/21/2 (France} 450,000 483,738
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| CONPORATE BOMDSANDNOTES (28.8%) cont

Financials cont.

CantorFitzgarald LP J4dA unsec. nates & 504, 6/17/22 55,245,000 55,660,950
Capital One Bank USA NA unsec, sub. notes 3.375%, 2/15/23 1.360,000 1,287,019
Capital One Financial Corp. unsec_sub, notes 4, 2006, 10774975 1916000 1,565,542
CBRE Services, Inc, company Buaranty 57 unsec. notes

5.25%, 3/15/25 1,288,000 1,376,902
CBRE Servicas, Inc. company Quafanty sr.unsec. unsub, notes

4.51%%, 310 1.09¢ Hoo A2I3 619
CMA Financial Carp. st unsec, notes 3.95%, 5/15/24 650,000 675,138
CNOFinanclal Group, Inc. st unsec. unsul, notes 5.25%, 5/30/25 1,755,000 L712.550
Commerzbank AL 1444 unsec, sub. notes B.125%,

/1% 23 (Garmory| 1,865,000 2,144,004
Cooperatieve Rabobank LA 1444 jr. unsec. sub. FRN 11.00%,

perpetual maturity (Wetheriands) ) 1255000 1,512,150
Credit Agricole SA 1444 unsec_sub, notes 4, 375%, 3/17/25 (France) 2,600,000 2,656,719
Credit Suisse Group AG 1444 |r. unsec, sub. FRN G.25%, perpetual

maturity [Switzeiland) 538,000 530,809
Dhuke Realty LP company uaranty srunsse. unsulb, notes

4.375%, 6/15/22% 945,000 1,025,746
EPR Properties company guaranty sr. unsec, sub. notes

5.25%, T/15/23% 1150000 1228,502
Fairtax LIS, Inc. 1444 company guaranty s2. unsec, notes

4. BTE%, 81324 1,031,000 1,051,620
Fifts Third Bancorp jr.unsec. sub, FRES. 104, perpetual maturity 626,000 04,215
GE Capital Internatiomal Funding Co. Linlivited Co.campany

guaranty s, unsec. bonds4.4185%, 11/15/35 {reland) 382,000 416,669
Galdman Sachs Group, Inc. {The) unsec sub, notes 6.750%, 10/1/37 950,000 1,196,055
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (The sr, unsec. umsub,

notes b6 4S50, 373040 4,548 000 & AER 036
Healtheare Realty Trust, Inc, 56 ungec, unsub, notes

38755, 5/1 250 1,000,000 1,053,259
Hospitality Properties Trustsr unse. unsulb, nates

4 55%, 3f15/24% 246000 251,205
Hne;pi'r.a.lit'_.lP.mpnrtiﬁTmslsr.unan.unsul:l, nates . )
4.50%, 3/15/250 875,000 BBE,203
HSBC Bank LISA, NA unsec, sub. notes 7.00%, 1/15,/39 3,000,000 2,554,746
HESBC Capital Funding LP L44A company guaranty jr. unsec, sub,

FRE 10.176%, perpetual maturity [Jersey) 4,560,000 B, E8E,B0O0
HSE.C Finance Coro, unsec. sulb. nutes.ﬁ.ﬁ?ﬁ%.u.llﬁﬂl 1,240,000 1415375
ING Bank NV 1444 unsec. sub, notes 5.80%, /2523 (Metherlands] 2,705,000 3,050,518
International Lease Finance Corp. s, unsec, unsub. notes

6.25%, 5/15/19 835,000 966,600
JPMorgan Chase & Co.srunsec, notes Ser MTN, 2.295% B/15/21 3,165,000 3167481
KER Group Finance Co, LLC J44Acompany guaranty 5. unsec.

unsub, notes 6,375, 9/29/ 30 2,655,000 3,063,352
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 1444 company guaranty jr. unsec. sub,

bonds 7 E0%, 31537 130,000 153,150
Lieity Praperty LP st unsec. unsub, notes 3.375%, 5/15/239 225000 230,063
Lioyds Banking Group PLC ursec, sub. notes4,50%, 11/4/24 . o
{United Kingram) 2,145,000 7,715,403
Lloyds Banking Group PLC 1444 unsec. sub. notes 5,300, 13/1/45

{United Kingdam) £.420,000 5,730,679
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CORPORATE BONDSAND HOTES (38.5%}" coot

Financials cont,

Massachusetts Mutual LiteInsurance Co. 14dA unsec, sub. notes

B.875%, 6/1/39 42,539,000 54,004,187
Metrogolitan Life Irsurance Co. 1448 unse, suls, notes

T80%, 1171/25 4,291 000 5612113
Mid-Amaricadpartments LP s usses, notes 4,300, 10/15/21F 150,000 160,423
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub, notes 3 85%,

3f1/26 {Japan) 1,535,000 Ls48111
Neuberger Berman Group, LLC /Neuberger Berman Fimance Corp.

1444 sr unsec. notes 5,875%, 3/15/22 1601000 1667041
MNeuberger Berman Group, LLC/Neuberger Berman Finance Corp,

aAsr unsec. notesd 8T5%, 471545 2,500,000 2,078,125
Onedmerica Financial Partners, inc. 1444 se unsec, notes

7.00%, 10/15/33 L O10,000 1,145,511
PacificLifeCorp L4484 = unsec. notes 6.00%, 2/10/20 1,575,000 1,735,346
Pe-achtm.acnmers Funding Trust 144A company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. bonds 3.976%, 2/15/25 642,000 G4, 324
Primerica, Inc. s unsec, notes4.75%, 71522 357000 3H_T.iEE
Prudential Financial, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6 625%, 621 (40 1,135,000 1,453 599
Realty Income Corp.se. unsec. notes4.65%, 8/1/330 455,000 499,511
Rayal Bank of Canada unsec, sub, notes Ser. GMTM, 4.65%,

1/27/26 (Canada) 2,030,000 2,201,119
Rayal Bank of Scotland Growp PLC unsee, sub, bonds 5 125%,

52824 (Unitad Kingdom) 455,300 480,373
Santander lssuances SAL company guaranty unsec, sub, notes

5.179%, 11/19/25 [Spain) 2,600,200 2584,188
Santarder UK Group Haldings PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 4.75%,

8/15/25 (United Kingdom) 660,300 660,703
Santarsder UK PLC 144Aurisec. subs noties 5.00%, 114723

{United Kingdom) 2,750,000 2,854,402
Sedect IncomeRET &1, unsec, unsub. notes 3.60%, 21720 L125,000 1,121,418
Sedect IncomeREIT sr. unsec, unsub, notes 2.85%, 2/1/18% 1,135,000 1,131,674
5L Green Realty Corg company gUaranty s7. Unsec. unsun, nies

5.00%, 8/15/18% 1,185,000 1,138,793
Sumitoma Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. 1444 unsec_sub, bonds

4.436%, 4/2/24 | Japan) 2,380,200 2,572,014
Teachers Insurance & Annuity Associationof Amarica (448 unsec.

sish, FRMN £.375%, 9/15/54 311,000 345.E74
Teachers Insurance & Annuity Associationof America J44h unsec.

suh. notes 6,850, 12/16/39 853000 1,196,190
Iu.hhtélﬂanagﬁlnﬁrﬁnanc?(.'n., LLE 14ddsr unser sub. nobes . .
4.135%, 11/1/34 80,200 a3983
TIERS Trust United States 144A 0. bonds stepped-coupon zer %

{8.125%, 8/15/17), 3/15/a6 " 3,965,000 4,004 650
Taranto- Cominion Bank (The] unsee sub. FRE 3 625%,

9/15/31 [Canada) 2,955,000 2,951,761
Travelers Property Casualty Corp. company guaranty sr.unsec.

ungub.hund!. T.O5%, 4/ 15/26 975,000 1,308,337
LIBS Group AG jr. unsec.sub. FRN B EI5%, perpetual

maturity (Switzerland) 200,000 1a7,920
UBS Group Funding Jersey, Lid, 1444 com pany guaranty sr. unsec.

nates4. 1 25%, 4/15/ 26 (Jersey] 3,175,000 5410,183
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notes4,60%, 2/6/248 42,925,000 53027375

VEREIT Operating Partnesship LP Cormpabiny guatanty sr ursed.

unsuby, bonds 4 87 5%, 671,368 205,000 215,763

Wells Farpo Bank, NA untec, suls, notes Sor. BKNT, 6.60%, 1/15/38 250,000 332611

Willis Towers Watson PLL company guaranty srunsec, unsub.

notes 5.75%, 31521 Ts0000 B3ER25

WP Carey, Inc. srunsec, unsub, notes 4.60%, 4/1 /248 2,990,000 3114815

162,252,261

Health care (1.0%)

Abbvie, Inc, = unsec, notes 360%, 5/14/25 1,053,000 LOT8.875

Aetna, Inc.srunsec, notess 75%, 12/05/37 1,660,000 2,226,115

Anthem, Inc. st unsec. unsub. nobes 4, 525%, 51543 665,000 €94, 346

Erozenius Medical Cane US Fingnce [, Inc, 1444 company guaranty

sf. unsec, sub, notes 5.625%, TaL/LS 356,000 385,370

Fresenius Medical Care US Finance, Inc. 1444 company guaranty

srumsec, ursub. motes 5.7 5%, 311521 839,000 937,583

HCA, Inc_company guarantysr. bonds 5. 25%, 6715/26 605,000 632,125

HCA, Inc.company guaranty sr. sub, notes 5,00%, 3/15/24 2,300,000 2,395,450

OmegaHealthcare mtnm_l'nc.:umpam gmrantg AL UMSEC.

notes 4,500, 4/1/2TR 2,820,000 2,805,900

OmegaHealthcare lnvestors, Inc, company gUaranty s unsec.

unsub. notes 4.95%, 4/1/24% 2,201,000 2,286,101

Quest Diagnostics. Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.75%, 1/30/20 244,000 264,700

Shite Acoulsetions mestrients eland DAC company guaranty si.

unsec. unsub, notes 3.20%, 3/23/26 (Ireland) 680,000 B6B, 662

TevaPharmaceutical Finance Netherlands il BV company

guaranty s, unsec. unsub. bonds 3.15%, 107126 (Netherlands) 3,651,000 3,589,630

UnitedHealth Group, Inc. s unsec. unsub, notes 4,625%, 11/15/41 975,000 1,085,629
19,060,586

Technology {1.5%)

Appla, Inc. 51 unsec, notes 3.45%, 5/6/24 2,578,000 2,731,195

Apple, Ing, s, unsec. unsub, notes4, 3755, 5/13/45 8E9,000 Q44,457

Apple, Inc, 51, unsec. unsub, notes 3. 55%:, 5443 1,232,000 1,218,351

BMamend 1 Finance Corp/Uiamond 2 Finance Corp. J44A

comipany guarantysr. ensec. notes 71250, 6/15/24 1 TET,000 i 145,468

Diamond 1 Finance Corp,/Diamvond 2 Finance Corp. 144Asr. bonds

8.35%, /15046 1262000 1,520,154

Diamend 1 Finance Corp/Diamond 2 Finance Corp. 1448 s notes

5.45%, 6/15/23 5,732,000 6,138,158

Fideliﬁrﬂatiunallnﬁxrnatim Services, Inc. company guaranty sr, B

wnsed unsub. noles 5.00%, 3/15/22 1.075.000 Li1Z,543

Jabil Circuit, Inc_sr. unsac.sub, notes 8 25%, 3/15/18 425,000 458000

Microsalt Corp.ar unsec, unsub., bonds 2 40%, 8/8/26 3,170,000 3,109,104

Oracle Corp.sr.unsec unsub. notes 2.65%, 7/15/26 6,865,000 677,831
28,182 451

Transportation (0.4%)

Hurlington Karthern Santa Fe, LLC sr.unsec. notesh 40%, &/1 4] 1 5000 | Hi5, ]

Continental Alines, Inc, poss-through certificatesSer, 97-44,

6.90%, 1/2/18 16Y,160 169,168
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_ CORPORATE BONDSAND MOTES {20.5%" cont.

Transportation cont.

Cantinental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser. 98-14,

6.645%,9/15/17 576,259 477,589

MarTealk Soutbirr o, s, unsec. unsutbs, bonds 6.00%, 5/23/11 1,115,000 1,310,801

Penske Truck Leasing Co. Lp/FTL Finance Corp. 144Asr. unsec.

bands 3.40%, 11/15/26 2.309.000 2,306,416

Southwest Airlines Co. 2007-1 Pass Through Trust pass-through

certificates Ser, 07-1,6.15%, 8/1/22 168,089 188,100

Linited Alrfines 2004 -2 Class A Pass Through Trustsr nobes Se A,

3.75%,9/3/16 A33 468 454,058

Urited AlrLines, Inc, pass-through certificates Ser, 07-4,

B.636%, T/2/22 343062 385,361
6,717,785

Utilities and power|(2.1%)

AESCorp./Virginia [The) st unsec, unsub, niotes 7.375%, 7/1/21 382,000 431,660

American Transmissian Systems, Inc. 144Asr unsec. unsub. bonds

5.00%. 9144 1,895,000 2,084,538

Appalachian Power Co, srunsec, unsub. notes Ser. |,

5.80%, 104135 580,300 591,996

Arizana Public Services Cousr, unsec. notes 4,500, 4/1/42 390,060 435,770

Beaver Valley || Funding Corp. s, bonds9.00%, 6/1/17 6,300 6,000

Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co. sr.unsec. bonds 6, 50%, 3/15/37 410,000 558,052

Berkshire Hathaway Energy Co, st unsec, unsub, bends

6.125%, 4/1/36 1,000,360 1,308,568

Commenwealth Edizon Co. se. mige. bonds 5.875%. 2/1/33 480,000 600498

Cansolidated Edison Ca, of Mew York, Inc. sr.unsec, unsub, notes

4,20%, 3715042 710,000 753,872

Duks Energy Carolinas, LLC st mige. notesd.25%, 12/15/41 T25,000 T8T668

EDP Finance BY 44ASr unsac unsib, notess 76%,

1/14/2] (Netheriands) 845,000 908,612

El Paso Natural Gas Co, LLC compary guaranty sr. unsec, unsubs,

natess.375%, 6/15/32 . B30,000 L0G2 764

Electricite deFrarce (EDF) 1444 jr. unsec. sub. FRM 5.625%,

perpetual maturity (France) SEE,300 580,140

Emusra USFinance LP l4A company guaranty s ursec. notes

3.55%.6/15/16 2027000 2,070,351

Energy Transfer Equity LP . sub. nobes 5.875%, LF15/24 990,300 1,006,211

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub, bands

£.125%, 12/15/45 £50,000 677.662

Energy Transfer Partners LP-sr. unsec. unsub, notes 6.50%, 2/1 /42 2,265,000 2,430,365

Ernergy Transfer Partners LP srunsec. unsub, notes 5.20%, 2/1/22 780,000 854,272

FirstEnergy Transmissicn, LLC 1444 s unsec, unsub. nates

54506, 7/15/44 ) 2,710,000 2,990,084

|berdrola International BY company guaranty s unsec. unsub.

bands 6.75%, 7/15/36{5pain) 510,300 663486

ITC Holdings Corp. 1444 sr, unsec. notes 6,050, 1/31 /18 330,000 347,039

Kinder Morgan EnergyFartners LP company guaranty sr.unsec.

notes5.40%, 31144 1274000 1.276,213

Kinder Morgan EnergyPartners LP company guaranty sr, unsec.

nates 3.50%, 371,21 1,455,000 1,491,522

Kinder Morgan, Inc, company BUaranty sr, unsec. unsub. notes

3.05%, 12/1/19 750,000 768,472
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: Priniipal
CORPORATE BOMDSANDNOTES [28.5%)" cont amakint Walue
MidAmerican F'undlng.LLtsr bonds6.827%, 3/1/23 $380,000 5501,798
Onecor Electric Delivery Co., LLC s, notes 8109, 61722 1,455,000 1,594,345
Fan!l:ﬁas&l:'lec‘tnctu SFUNSEeC nul:Es.EJ.'SW E,FIS,BH 295,000 I-EII:] UIE
Fad!l:Gm&Elmri:Cn.sr urr:ﬂ:.unﬂb netes 5.8, 3/1/37 785,000 1,006,195
PaciliCorpsr, mige. bands€,25%, 10/15/37 480,000 618,750
PPLWEM Lid./Western Pawer Distribution, Ltd, 144Asr, unsec.
unsulb notes 5.375%, 5/1/21 (United Kingdom) 3220000 3,552,298
Puget Energy, Inc. st sub. notes 3.65%, 5/15/25 2,105,000 2160271
TexasGas Transmission, LLC 144Asr unsec. notesd.50%, 2/1/21 1,404,000 1,463,009
Texas-NewMexico Power Co. 144A It 5. bonds Ser. A,
91/3%,4/1/19 2,840,000 3,MT.H5
35'.3!1 152
Total corpaorate bonds and notes (cost $510,050,759) $538,187,060
Prihcipual
ASSET-BACHED SECURITIES (06861 Aokl Value
Station Place Securitization Trest FRE Ser, 16-1,Class A, 15345,
2/25/17 acquired 7/4/16, cost §11,077,000) 511,077,000 EII.WTWD
Total asset-backed securities (cost §11,077,000) 511,077,000
Prineipal
MUNICIPALBONDSAHNDNOTES (0.2%)" amaknt Walue
CAState ¢.0. Bonds (Build America Bonds), 7.50%, 4/1/34 §770,000
Horth TX, Tolhway Auth. Rev. Bonds (Build America Bonds),
6.T1B%, 1f1/49 675,000 1,009,807
OH State U, Ry, Bonds [Bulld Ametlca Bonds), 4.91%, 6/1,/40 B45,000 1,036,683
Total municipal bonds and notes (cost §2,294,804) §3,182,484

PURCHASEDSWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING [t

Cou

Flieed right Ve to receive or [pay)/ Enpiration Contract
Floating rate indew/Maturity date dateiatribe amoun|
Goldman Sachs International

1023/ 3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Nov-18 New-16/1.023 5525,096,600

5185,035

Total purchased swap options outstanding [cost $840,155)

5189,035

Expitation
PURCHASED OPTIONS datefatithe Contraet
OUTSTANDING (0. 3%)" ice amouni
Federal National Morlgage Asscciation 30y 2.50% TBA
commitments [Pu) Jan-17/5100.17 5125,000.000
FaderalMational Mortgage Assaciation 30yr 2,509 TBA
commitments [Puf) Jan-17 100,58 135,000,000

Federal National Mort gage Association 30yr 2.50% TBA

commitments Put) Jan-7/10002 125000000

Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr 2.50% TBA
commitments Put) Jan-17/59,83 125,000,000

51,937,250

1,760,625
1,285,375
1,146,875

Total purchased options outstanding (cost $5,117,185)
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SHORT-TEAMINVESTMENTS [11.5%)° .

Putram Shert Term Investment Fund 0.50% ¢ Shares 185,198,930 £185, 198,930
LLS. Treasury Bills0.260%, 12/15/16% 310,000 8,998
LS. Tregsury Bills0.260%, 12/1/164% L061,000 LDG0, 84T
LIS, Traasury Bills 0.794%, 1 1/75/16 44 74,564,000 74,561,175
L5, Treasury Bills 0.270%, 11/17/1648 1051000 1,000,914
U.5. Treasury Bills 0.283%, 11/10/168% 3,603,000 3.602,888
LLS. Treasury Bills 0.245%, 11731684 1,244,000 1,243,993
Total short-terminvestments [cost 5216,766,550) 5216,768,745

Total investments (cost $3,752,612,700) $3,723,447,705
Key o holding's abbreviations

bac Designated Activity Campary

FRB FloatingRate Bonds: the rate shown s the current interest rate zt the close of the reporting period

FRE FloatingRateNotes: the rate shown isthecurment interest rate ar yield at theclose of the

reporting period
G.O.Bonds  General Obligation Bonds
IFB Inverse Floating Rate Bonds, which are securities that pay interest rates that varyinversely to

changesin themarketintorest rates. Asinteest ratesrise, inverse floaters produce less curient
Income. The rate shown s the current interest rateat the closeof the reporting perbod,

1o intarest Only
PO Principal nly
TEA ToBeAnnaunced Commitments

Motes to the fund's pertfolio

Linlgss noted atherwise, the notes tathe funds partfalio ane for the close of the fund ‘s reperting period, which ran
from Movernber 1, 2015 throwgh October 31, 2016 (the reporting pariod). Within the fallowing notes to the portfalio,
references o *ASC 8207 represent Accounting Standards Codification 820 Foir Violue Measirements and Disclosires
and relerencesto “0TC", i any, represent over-the-counter.

* Percentages indicated are based on net assets of $1,691,320,380.
T Thissecurity is non-income-praducing,

it Theinterest rate and dateshown parent hetically represent the new interest rate to be paid and the date the fund will
beginaccruinginterest at this rate,

&4 Thissecvrity tsrestricted with regard to public resale, Thetotal fairvalue of this security and anyather restricted
secufitios jextluding 1428 securities), i any, held at the close of the reparting period was 511,077,000, o 0.6%
of net assats.

# This security, in part orin entirety, was pledged and segregated with the brokerto cover margin requirementsior
futurescontracts at the close of the reporting penaod,

& Thissecurity, in part orin entirety, was pledged and segregated with the custadizn forcollateral on certaln derivative
cantractsat the close of the reposting pediod.

# Thissecurity, in partorinentirety, was pledged and segregated with the custodian for collateral on theinitial margin
on certain centrally cisared derivative contracts at the close of the reparting period.

* Forward commitment, in part or inentirety (Note 1)

F Thissecurity svalued by Putnam Manageeent at fainvalue foliowing procedures approved by the Trustees. Securities
may beclassified as Level 2 or Level 3 for ASC B20based on thesecurities' valuation inputs (Note 1.

L Affillated company (Note 5). The rate quoted in the security description Isthe annualized T-dayyield of the fund at the
close of the reporting period.

Incame Fund 47

174/286



F Real Estate Investment Trust.

At the closeof the reparting period, the fund maintained lguid assets totaling 51,515,593 708 te cover certaln

derivative cantracts and delayed delivery securit'es.
Unlessatherwise noted, the rates quaoted in Shors-term investment s security descriptions represent the weighted

average yield to maturity.

Cebtobligations are consadond socured unbessatherwise indicated,
1444 after the name of an |ssuer representssecurities exempt from reglstration under RBule 1424 under the Securitles

Actof 1933, as amended. These securities may be resold in transactions exempt from registration, narmally

1o qualified institutional buyers,

See Hote | tothe financial statement s regarding THA commitmants.

Thedatesshownon detd obligations are the orginal maturity dates.
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Unrealized

Humber of Expiration appreciation/

contracts Value date epreciation)

L5, Treasury Band 30 yr {Lang) 312 £50,768, 250 Dec-16 5(2,272,371)
U.5, Treasury Bond Ultra 30y (Long) &7 119109688 Dec-16 (7.569,660|
5. Treasury Hote 2 yr(Long) T 16,796,825 Dec-16 {3,763}
U5 Treasury Note 5 yr Long) 994 120,072.0%4 Dec-1& {312,603
U5, Treasury Hote 10w {Long) 7 907,375 Dec-16 {8,545
U5, Treasury Hote 10yr {Short) T 907,375 Dic-16 8517
U5, Treasury Hote Uitra L0yr (Shart) M 45,851,063 Decd6 218653
Taotal 5(9,939,772)

!:ounurpr

 WRITTEN SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING a1 10/31/16 (premiums 36,716,193).

Fixed Obligation % to receive or (pay)/ Expiration Contract

Floating rate index/Maturity date date/strike amount Malue
Goldman Sachs Intarnational

{0,6665)/3 month USD-LIBOR. BEA/Dec-17 Dec-16/0.6655 $525,096,500 35,251
{L.15}/3month USD-LI BOR-BEANov-18 Mow-16/1.15 535,096,600 57761
1.1665/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEADec-17 Dec-16/1.1665 525,096,500 609,112
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.

{0.634)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBADec-17 Dec-16/0,634 525,086,500 525
1.134/3month USD-LI BOR-884/Dec-17 Dec-6/1.134 525,096,500 108,880
{6.00 Flooe /2 manth USD-LIBOR-BBA/Mar-18 Mar-18/6,00 21,202,000 1,602,659
Total 42 984,188

WRITTEN DPTIONS OUTSTAMDING at 10/31/16 |pren

Expiratio

Contract

date/strike price ameunt Value
Federal Mational Mortgage Association 30y 2.50%
TBAcommitments [Put) Jan-17/5100.02 $125,000,000 §1,265,375
Federal Mational Martgage Association 30yr 2.50%
TBA commitments (Put) Jan-17/99.83 125,000,000 1,146,875
Fadaral National Mart gage Association 3y S0%
TBA commitrments [Put) Jan-1T/99.27 125,000,000 124,375
Federal Mational Martgage Association 30yr 2.50%
TBA commitments (Pui) Jan-17/99.27 125,000,000 794,375

48 Income Fund
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Contract
date/strike price amount Value
Federal National MortgageAssociation 30yr 2.50%
TEA eammitments (Pul) Jan-17/%99.08 515,000,000 5697250
Federal National Mortgage Association 30yr 1.50%
TBA commitments (Put] Jan-17/90.08 125,000,000 647,250
Federal National Mortgage Association 30yr 2.50%
TEA commitmants{Put] Jan-17/9B8.53 135,000,000 462,375
Federal National Mortgage Association 30yr2.50%
TBAcommitments (Put] Jan-17/98.33 125,000,000 400,875
Tostal 56,278,750
Counterparty
Fixed right or abligation % to receive Premium Unrealized
ar [pay)/Floating rate index/ Expiration Contract  receivable!  appreciation/
Maturity date date/strike amount [payable] (depreciation]
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A,
(5,00 Floor)/ 2 month USD-LIBOR- BEAS
Mar-21 (Written) Mar-21/5.00 51,000,000 SE32,000 544,570
Total $222,000 $44.970
Principal Settloment
_ Agency amount date Value
Federal HomeLoan Mortgage Corparation, 3 50%, 11/1/46 56,000,000 11/14/16 56,296,250
Faderal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 3.00%, 11/1 /46 2,000,000 11714/ 16 2,058,750
Federal Maticnal Maortpage Association, 4.50%, 11/1/M46 14,000,000 L1714/ 16 15,301,563
Federal National Mortgage Assoclation, 4.000%, 1171 /46 &0,000,000 11/14/16 B 246 5712
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.500, 11/1,/46 437,000,000 11/14/16 458,786,329
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3.00%, 111,46 279,000,000 11/14/16 235,762,645
Federal National Maortgage Association, 2.50%, 11/1/46 68,000,000 11714/ 16 67,873,180
Government National Mortgage Association, 4.00%, 11/1/46 2,000,000 L2116 2,142,188
Gevernment Mational Mortgage Association, 2.00%, 11/1/46 2,000,000 1172116 2082989
Total $854,550,766
Upfromt Payments Payments Unrealized
premium  Termination made by received by appreciation/
Motional amount received (paid) date fund perannum fund perannum  [depreciation)
§3.474 100E SHLY)  IN2LE1 125 Amanth LS 518,361
LIBOR-BBA
2250630008 [3715,355] 12/21/18 1.015% Amonth USD- 72,882
LIBOR-BBA
612,700 869 12/21/18 3 menth USD- LO15%: {354}
LIBOR-BBA
200,662 BO0E 571,030 L2721/26 16l Amanth UsD- 2,610,368
LiBOR-BBA
105,300E Bl 12/31/46  |.90% Imonth US3- 3,560
LIBOR-BEA
10,890,200 € (287,516) 122146 I month USD- L80% (688,711}
LIBDR-BBA
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Payments Unrealized
premium  Termination madeby received by appreciation/
Hotional amount recelved (paid) date fund perannum fund perannum  [depreciation)
£40,274.000 §(534) 9/22/26  3ImanthUSD- L5365% §(523,514)
LIEOR-BBA
379,000 {5} G263 1 486%: A3maonth USD- B, 7B4
LIBOR-BEA
133,901,200 (1,776} IT/26 3ImonthUsD- 1A6T% (2.641,350)
LIECR-BEA
1,106,000 il 8r30/18  0.989% Imonth USD- 1,715
LIBOR-BEA
£20,000 (11 9/30/26 | 36755 dmonth USE- 21,569
LIBOR-BEA
91,066,600 11,208) 10/%/26 1.52% Amonth UED- 1,367,130
LIBOR-BBA
91,066,600 {1,208} 10626 L 52236% Imanth USD 1,346,855
LIBOR-BRA
40712218 [135) 4/24/47  ImonthUSD- 1.92% {145 B34)
LIBOR-BBA
114,439 500¢ (194533}  11/23/26 158% Fmonth USD- 1.073,343
LIBOR-BEA
Total £(291 722) $2,523.748
EExtended efectivedale
.I = o £ = < ! i
Upfront Payments Tatal return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination received (paid)by  received by appreciation/
Hotional amount recehved |paid) date fund perannum or paid by fund (depreciation)
Bankof America M. A.
51,005426 b 1712441 4.00% (L month Syrithetic TRS Index 45,839
USO-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 vear Fannie
Maepocls
1,748,231 = 1/12/4] 4.50% | manth Symthetic TRS Index 10,071
USO-LIBOR) 4 50% W year Fanmie
Mae pools
Barclays Bank PLC
3,266,169 = /12/36 (550%) 1 month  Synthetic TRS Index 7,600
Ush-LIBOR 5.50% 20 year Fannie
Mae poals
754,786 2 [f12/40 4.50% (L manth Synthetic MBXIndex {1,304
USD-LIBOR 4504 IDyear Fannie
Mae pools
Tal,266 - 1/12/4] 4.00% (L manth Synthelic TRS Index 4,545
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
o7L4T - 1/12/40 4.00% (L manth Synthetic MEXIndex 133
USD-LIBOR) 4 Dr%h 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,155,228 - 1/12/39  6.00% (L manth Syrithetic TRS Index 2310
Ush-LIBOR 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mo pocls
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Upfront Payments Totalreturn Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination received (paidiby  received by appreciation/
Motional amount received [paid) date fund perannum or paid by fund [depreciation)
Barclays Bank PLC cont.
54,150 433 5— 112780 4.00% (1 month Synthetic MEBX Index 51402
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 yesr Fannie
Mae pools
233,639 = 11238 650% (L manth Synthetic TRSIndex (366)
USD-LIBOR) B.50% 30 year Fannie
Mas ponls
441,810 - 1f12/41 5.00% (L month Synthetic MBX Index (56T)
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Ginnie
Mae |l poals
2,571,331 - 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 14932
USD-LIBOR) 4 00% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
2,845,185 - 1/12/40 45059 (1 manth Synthatic MBX Index (14,618}
USD-LIBOR) 4. 50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,830,173 - 1/1239  (E.00%) 1 month Synthotic MBX ndex (16,420}
LIS0-LIROR 6.[Hr# 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,069,967 - 1f12/38  6.50%{L manth Synthetic TRS Index 3417
USD-LIBCRS B.50% 30 vear Fannie
Mae poods
619,271 - 11241 (5.00%) 1 menth Synthetic TRS Index [2,565)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Ma=pools
3,853,551 - 1/12/43 3.50%{1 manth Synthetic TRS Index 20,766
LSD-LIBORE 3500 I year Fannie
Mae pools
5977 - 1/12/43  350%(1 manth synthenc TR Index PR
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30year Fannie
Maepools
13,128,300 = 1/12/39 (5.50%) L month Synthetic MBX Index (39,906}
USD-LIBOR 5.50¢ 30 year Fannie
Maa pools
3,163,660 — 1/12/40 5.00%il month Synthetic MBEX Index (193
USD-LIBOR) 5.00%h 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
60,135,301 - 1f12/01 50091 month Synthetic MBY Index B2.517
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
63,631,742 - 1/12/38 [E.50%) 1 month Synthatic MBX Index (335426)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% I year Fannie
Mae pools
Citibank, N.A.
4,920,061 — 171241 5.00% 1 month Synthetic MBX Index 6,751
USD-LIBORp 5.04/% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1165776 - 1/12/41 5.00% (L month Synthetic MBX Index 1500
USD-LIBOR) 50030 year Fannie
Mae pools
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Payments Totalretum Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination received (paidiby  received by appreciation/
Hotional amount date fund perannum or paid by fund [depreciation)
Credit Suisse International
511,387 391 1/12/41 4% (I manth Synthetic MBXIndex 541,529
USD-LIBOR: 4 500 W vear Ginnie
Mo pools
1,827,762 1/12/39 {5.00%) Emanth Synithetic TRS Index B.429)
USD-LIBOR 5.00% ¥ year Fannie
Mo pooils
1,114,035 1/12/43 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 5,987
ush-LIBoR 3.5006 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
3,429,342 1/12/43 3.00% {I month Synthetic MBEXIndex (19,735
USD-LIBCR: 3.00% M0 year Fannie
Maepodls
2,996,608 1f12/41 {5.00%i Lmanth Synithetic TRS Index {12,414)
Ush-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
6,146,879 1/12/41 S.00% () manth Synthetic MEXIndex 20,663
WS0-LIRGR) 5.00% M year Ginnie
Maell pools
3,379,959 1/12/44  3.50% [ morth Synthetic TRS Index 18215
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30year Fannle
Mae pocls
3,880,538 11241 4,00% (1 month Eynthetic TRS Index 22,363
USD-LIBOR) 4. 00% 30 year Fannse
Mae pocls
1,039,935 1/12/44  3.50% (L month Synthatic TRS Index 16,382
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 20 year Fannie
Mae poals
2215855 1/12/44 3509 (1 manrth Symthetic THS Indiex 11,934
USD-LIBOR; 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,420,028 1712745 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Incles 20,053
USD-LIBOR 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
10,566,752 1712745 4,00% (L month Synthetic TRS Index 63,045
USD-LIBOR, 4 00 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
3700451 112445 4.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index 22,078
USO-LIBCR) 400 30 year Fannie
Mo poals
3,671,058 1r12/45 3.50% (L marth Synthetic TRS Index 21,525
USD-LIBCR: 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Maepocls
15,610,023 1/12/4]1 {4.00%) lmonth  Synthetic TRS Index {50,651)
USD-LIBGR 4. (% 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
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Upfront Totalretum Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination recelved (paidiby  received by appreciation/
Motional amount received (paid] date fund perannum or paid by fund [depreciation]
Goldman Sachs International
4,968,351 i— §/12/38 6.50% (I manth Synthetic TRS Index 4(4,900)
USC-LIBORY 65010 Wyear Fannie
Mae pools
2,289,854 — 112738 6.50% 1 manth Synihetic TRS Index [3.780)
USD-LIBOR) B.50%% 30 year Fannie
Maepools
T.211,685 - 11238 6.00% il month Synthetic TRS Index 14421
USD-LIBDA) .00 30 year Fannie
Maepools
LATE3 - 1/12/38 6.50%0 {1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (4,748}
USE-LIBOR) 6.50% M0 year Fannie
Maepools
1,168,138 - 112041 4.50% (L maonth Synthetic TRS Index T.301
USD-LIBORY 4. 50% 30vyear Fannie
Maepools
4,248,789 - 1/12/38  (6.50%) 1 month Synthotic MBX Indesx {22,347}
USE-LIROR 6.50% 30year Fannie
Maepools
1596153 - 112/38  §5.50%) L month Synthetic MBX Index (8.414)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Maspools
3,266,169 - 112436 5.50% (L month Synthetic TRS Index {T&05)
USE-LIBOR)Y 5.50% 30yvear Fannie
Maepools
268,164 = 1f12/4]1  4,00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 1,558
USD-LIBOR) A.00% 30 year Fannie
Maepools
1,464, 144 - 1/ L3740 4,00% {1 month Synthetic TES Indiex 1,820
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30year Fannie
Maspools
93,267 = 112738 6.00% (L month Synthetic TRS Index 187
USD-LIBOR) 6,00% 30year Fannie
Maepools
2,668,354 - 1/123/38  6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index 5,736
USD-LIBOR) 6.00%: 30year Fannie
Maepools
5,820,391 - I/12/28  (5.50%) | month Synthetic MBX Index {30,641}
USD-LIBOR B6.50% 30year Fannie
Maepools
215819 T If12/38 (6.50%) lmonth  Synthetic MEX Index {1,138}
USD-LIBOR 6.50% M year Fannie
Maepools
575454 = 1/12/38 (6.50% lmonth  Synthetic MBX Index (3,033)
LST-LIBOR B.50% Iyear Fannie
Maepools
588,079 = 1/12/38 6.50% (L month Synthetic TRS Index i1,633)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% I year Fannie
Maepools
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| OTCTOTALRET NTRACTS DUTSTANDING 2t 10/31/ 16 ot
Upfront Payments Total returm Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination received (paidjby  received by appreciation/
Hotional amount recenved (paid) date fund perannum or paid by fund (depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont.
53,253,016 G— 1/13/38 6.50%(1 month Synthetic TRS Indsx §(5,310)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Maapools
5,177,956 - 1/12/39 6.00%{L manth Synthetic TRS Index 10,354
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,302,509 - 1/12/41 4.00% (L month Synthetic TRS Index 36,600
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% J0year Fannke
Mea pools
5,846,820 - 1/12/4] (5.00%) Imanth  Synthetic TRS Indox (24,221)
USD-LIBOR S.00% M year Fannie
Meepools
6,142,062 - 1/12/44 3.509% L manth Synthetic TRS Index 33,100
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year Fannle
Mzepools
3671614 - 1/12/45 4.00% (L month Synthetic TRS Imdax 21912
USH-LIROR) 4,000 30year Fannie
Maepools
4,013,349 - 1/12/43  (3.50%) I manth Synthetic TRS Index (21,622
USD-LIBOR 31.50% 30year Fannie
Mze pools
1527194 - 11244 (3,00%) Lenanth Synthetlc TRS Index [32,706)
USO-LIBOR 3.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1462134 = 1/12/40  4.00%) L maonth Synthatic TRS Index (78200
USD-LIBOR A.00% 30year Fannie
Mae pools
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
&20,290 - 1/12/41 4.00% (L manth Synthetic TRS Index 4764
USD-LIBOR) 4,009 30 year Fannse
Mee pogls
5847073 - 1f12/41 §5,00%) L manth Synthetlc TRS Index {24,222)
USO-LIBOR 5.00% 30 yeaf Fannie
o Iee pocls
JPMorgan Securities LLC
12,435,002 - 1/12/44 4.00% (L manth Synthetic TRS Index 70,317
USD-LIBOR) 4.00r% 30 year Fannie
Mpe pools
11,397,223 - 1/12/44 3.50%) Imonth  Synthetic TRS Index (E1.420)
USD-LIBOR 3.50% 30year Fannie
Mee pools
12,439,002 - 113044 44.00%) Lmonth Synthetic TRS Index [70,317)
USD-LIBOR 4,00% 30 year Fannke
Meepools
Total §=— 5(263,908)
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Upfront Payments

premium Termi- recaived Urirgalized
Swapcounterparty/ received Hotienal nation {paidibyfund appreciation/
Referenced debt®  Rating*** (paid)** amount date PEFanmum [depreciation)
Bankof America N.A,
CMEXMNABBE-Index BEB-/P 513,534 5198000 5/11/63 0 bp 5(2.567)
CMEBXMNABBE- index BBB-/P 6,395 438000 S/11/63  300bp (9,221)
CMBXMABER= Index BEE-/P 4,079 EIB,000 S/11/63  300bp {11.154)
CMEXNABBE- Index BEB-/P 51,528 04000 51163 3I00bp i21.582)
Credit Suisse International
CMBANABB Index — {240,124) LT1L,000  LAI7AT {500 bp} 24,102
CHMBXMAAIndex AP 104,823 2520000 L/ATMAT 200 bp [2,221)
CMBXNAA Index AP 266,992 T 254,000 L4747 200bp 135,933}
CMEXMNABE Index - {237,208 13430000 5/11/63  [500bp) 1,834 711
CMBXNABBIndex — (8.311) BRG,000 1/074T (500 b} 123 879
CMBXMABBIndex  — {110,507} 675,000 1/A747  [SO0bp) (5,268
CMBXMABBB-Index BBE-/P 375879 TE62,000 5/11/63 00bp (247170}
CMEXMABBE- Index BEB-/P 232421 3,530,000 1/0747 0 bp (56,328}
CMEBXMNABBR-index BBE-/P 2,654,505 ST 0M  1ITET I00bp (3TT.151)
Goldman Sachs International
CMEXNABH Index — Be0ILL 6,355,000 5/11/63  [500bp) 324972
CMBXNABBIndex — [241,670) LEOT000 LATMT  [S00bp) 4,831
CMBXMNABBIndex  — (204, 744) L210,000 L/A7AT {5040 by (17,732}
CMEXMNABBE- Index BBE-/P 34,791 667000 S/LL/63  300bp {19447
CMBXMNABBB-Index BBB-/P 13,283 BTL000 51163 300bp (21,280}
CMEXNABER-Index BEBE-/P Er A0 BTLO00 S/11/63  300bp {21,852}
CMEXNABBE-Index BRB-/P 78,583 1647000 5/11/63  300bp {54,245)
CMBEXMABBE-Index BBE-/P 162,317 2196000 1ATMT  300bp (23.062)
CMEXMNABBE - Index BBE- /P 201, L4 417,000 1/I747  300bp 161 468)
CMBEXNABBB-Index BEBE-/P 581,956 T516,000 LATMT 0bp 42.520)
JPMargan Securities LLC
CMEXNABRE=Index BEE=/P 189,953 FA34 000 5/11/63 0 bp (39 2EE)
CHBXNABBE-Index BEB-/P 2,848 S4000 1L/ITMT  300bp {1,710
CHBXNABBE-Index BBE-/P 532,035 S5T9.000 L/7MT  300bp 5{16,842)
CMEXMNABEE-Index BEE-/P 30,743 LIT6000 LATMT  300bp (B8,531)
CMBXMNABBE-Index BBR-/P 385,538 2916000 1/ITAT 300 bp 139,379
CMEXNABBR-Index BBB-/P 612,163 5064000 L1747 300bp 184,675
Total 54,566,645 $1,398,645

* Fayments related tothe referenced deot are made upon a credit default event.,
** Upfront premium is based on the diference betweer the original spread on saueand the market spread on doy
ofexecution,

U Ratings ane presorted for eredit default contractsin which the fund hassold protectlon on the undedlying referenced
debz. Ratingsforanunderyingindex represent the average of the ratings of all the securitlies included in that index.
TheMoody's, Standard & Poor's oo Fitch ratings are believed to be the maost recent ratings available at October 31,
2016, Securities rated by Putnam are indicated by */F " The Putnam rating categories are comparable to the Standard &
Paor'sclassifications.
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ASC 820 establishes athree-level hierarchy for disclosure of fairvalue measurements, Thevaluation hierarchy is based
upan thetransparency af inputs to thevaluation af the fund s investments, The three levels are defined as fellows:
Level 1:Valuations based on guoted pricesfor identical sacunties in active markets.

Level 2: Valuations based ongquoted pricesin markets that are not active of for which all significantinguts are
ohzervable, either directhyor indirectly.

Lewvel 3:Valuations bazed oninputs that are unobservable and significant tothe fairvalue measurement,
Thefollowing Is a summary ofthe Inputs used to value the fund's net assets asof the close-of the reporting period:

Valuationinputs
Investmentsin securities: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Aszor-backed securities G 511,077,000 L
Corporate bonds and notes = 534182 410 4,004,650
Mortgage-backad securities - 897,608,510 -
Municipal bonds and notes - 3,182,484 -
Furchased options outstanding - £,130,125 -
FPurchased swap aptions outstanding - 189.035 -
U5 governmentand agency martgageobligations - 2,048,862 474 -
U.5. reasury obligations - 442 372 —
Shori-tenmimnestments 185,198,930 31,569,815 —
Tatals by level $185,198,930 §3,534,244,125 $4,004,650
Valuation inputs
Other financial instruments: Levell Level 2 Level 3
Futures cantracts 509,929,712 §— 5=
Written optionsoutstanding — (6, 278,750) —
Written swap options cutstanding - (2,964,188} -
Forward premium swap optn contracts - 44,970 -
TBAsalecommitments — (54, 550, 764 -
Interest rate swap contracts - 4,815,471 -
Total return swap contracts - {263,508 -
Lredit defoultcontracts = 13,168,000} =
Totals by level 5(9,939,772]  $(864,385,171) —

Duringthe report:ng perlod, transters between Level 1 and Level 2within the fairvalue hierarchy, itany,did not
represent, inthe aggregate, more than 1% afthe fund's net assets measured as of theend of the period. Transfers
are accaunted for usingthe end of period pricing valuation method.

56 Income Fun
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Thie following s areconciliation of Level 3 assets asof the close of the reparting period;

Changeinmet
unrealized Tetal Total
Balamee Keerued  Realized  appreciation) transfers transiers Balance

Irnestments asofl  discounts/ n {deprecia- Costel  Proceeds inta outof ascf
inseganties: 103015 premicms tion|* purchases  fromsales  Leweld' Level3T  10/3116
Asset-bhacked
sequritios £112,67.000 5 5 5 S SsTong - e -
Corparate bonds
andnates 4047425 (280,58) - 141 8l6 - = - — 54,004 550
Mortgage backed
sequities S146153 4392715 - QOII6ET 298455 - = ([FS0%AT -
Totals SI58,2IT964 $(4)673,308) §—  S[LA%0ETL) 5298455 §(112.617,000) §— 5035350,502) 54,004,650

! Transfersduring the reporting period are accounted far using theend of period market value. Translers outinclude
valuations where aseoondary pricing source wais abtained forcertain securnties. Such valuations involse cartain inputs
and estimates that were urohservableat the end of the reporting period.

® inciudes 141,816 related to Level 3 securities stillheld at period end, Tatalchange in unrealized appreciation/
(depreciation) for securities (inchuding Level Land Level 2) can be found inthe Statement of operations.

Thie accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(2) 2015 10 31

2015 10 31

)
( 4277230353 ) 4,248,632,442 483,536,858
( 274830847 ) ( ) 274,830,847 31,278,499
21,036 2,394
21,004,946 2,400,816
10,264,322 1,168,182
52,839,217 6,013,631
() 359,048,763 40,965,769
() 9,894,251 1,126,065
() 2,861,542 325,672
() 1,240,368 141,166
() 384,349 43743
64,336 7,322
4,982,076,419 567,010,117
46,386,796 5,279,281
() 1,495,730,294 170,229,065
4,292,541 488,534
() 793,043 90,256
() 75,519 8,595
) 615,579 70,059
() 434,821 49,487
() 8,656 985
() 503,326 57,284
() 8,676,527 987,476
«C ) 636,997 72,497
() 2,147,966 244,460
() 4,224,008 480,734
) ( 36,767,486 ) 21,030,499 2,393,481
( 1020731016 ) ) 1,015,872,174 115,616,412
353,841 40271
2,601,782.587 206,108,876
2,380,293.832 270,901,241
( ) ) 2,586,856,998 204,410,195
() 13,556,582 1,542,875
() (196,488,504) (22,362,357)
(23,631,244) (2,689.472)

- 2,380,293,832 270,901,241
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( )
2015 10 31
(1,087,633,481 =+ 156,771,386 )
(6.94 96.00  100)

(30,089,289 =+ 4,380,650 )
(221,882,018  + 32,238,494 )
(103524438 =+ 15282,113 )

(6.77 96.75  100)t
(29,236,907 =+ 4,246,500 )
(4,462,654 =+ 635694 )
(123635384  + 17,566,035 )
(779,829.661  + 110,859,848 )

* 10 10

* %
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7.23

6.87

6.88

6.77

7.00

6.88
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783

770

797
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449,123
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) 78,119,239 8,890,751
78,119,239 8,890,751
9,012,966 1,025,766
3,479,766 396,032
170,636 19,420
117,286 13,348
6,004,490 683,371
61,270 6,973
919,190 104,613
19,765,604 2,249,523
(7,969) (907)
19,757,635 2,248,616
58,361,604 6,642,134
(21,437,173) (2,439,765)
(41,955,817) (4,774,992)
14,169,707 1,612,654
49,351,433 5,616,687
(94,960,039) (10,807,402)
(94,831,889) (10,792,817)
(36,470,285) (4,150,683)
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2015 10 31 2014 10 31
58,361,604 6,642,134 51,729,213 5,887,302
128,150 14,585 (5,299,759) (603,166)
(94,960,039) (10,807,402) 25,179,985 2,865,734
(36,470,285) (4,150,683) 71,609,439 8,149,870
(34,589,245) (3,936,602) (38,938,130) (4,431,549)
(772,105) (87,873) (1,256,067) (142,953)
(5,244,288) (596,852) (5,319,484) (605,410)
(3,436,129) (391,066) (5,406,622) (615,328)
(886,652) (100,910) (544,055) (61,919)
(141,7412) (16,132) (143,604) (16,344)
(3,969,199) (451,735) (1,228,006) (139,759)
(22,731,624) (2,587,086) (10,977,537) (1,249,353)
615,459,914 70,045,493 637,429,287 72,545,827
507,218,646 57,726,554 645,225,221 73,433,082
1,873,075,186 213,174,687 1,227,849,965 139,741,605
2,380,293,832 270,901,241 1,873,075,186 213,174,687
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/
a
)
2015 10 31 7.26 0.18 (0.28) (0.10) (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.20 0.27 0.12 0.39 (033 (033
2013 10 31 7.27 0.29 (0.12) 0.17 (0.24) (0.24)
2012 10 31 6.84 0.21 0.43 0.64 (0.22) (0.22)
2011 10 31 6.86 0.28 0.05 0.33 (0.35) (0.35) f.9
2015 10 31 7.19 0.13 (0.28) (0.15) (0.17) (0.17)
2014 10 31 7.13 0.21 0.13 0.34 (0.28) (0.28)
2013 10 31 7.20 0.23 (0.12) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18)
2012 10 31 6.78 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16)
2011 10 31 6.80 0.22 0.06 0.28 (0.30) (0.30) f.g
2015 10 31 7.21 0.13 (0.29) (0.16) (0.17) (0.17)
2014 10 31 7.15 0.21 0.13 0.34 (0.28) (0.28)
2013 10 31 7.22 0.24 (0.13) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18)
2012 10 31 6.80 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16)
2011 10 31 6.82 0.22 0.06 0.28 (0.30) (0.30) f.g
2015 10 31 7.10 0.16 (0.28) 0.12 (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.05 0.24 0.13 0.37 (0.32) (0.32)
2013 10 31 7.12 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (022 (022
2012 10 31 6.71 0.19 0.42 0.61 (0.20) (0.20)
2011 10 31 6.74 0.26 0.05 0.31 (0.34) (0.34) f.g
2015 10 31 7.21 0.16 (0.28) (0.12) (0.22) (0.22)
2014 10 31 7.16 0.25 0.12 0.37 (0.32) (0.32)
2013 10 31 7.23 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (022 (022
2012 10 31 6.81 0.19 0.43 0.62 (0.20) (0.20)
2011 10 31 6.83 0.25 0.07 0.32 (0.34) (0.34) f.g
2015 10 31 7.35 0.20 (0.28) (0.08) (0.25) (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.27 0.15 0.42 (0.36) (0.36)
2013 10 31 7.35 0.32 (0.12) 0.20 (0.26) (0.26)
2012 10 31 | 7.11 0.08 0.23 0.31 (0.07) (0.07)
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.27) (0.07) (0.25) (0.25)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 0.14 0.43 (0.36) (0.36)
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.12) 0.19 (0.26) (0.26)
2012 10 31 | 7.11 0.08 0.24 0.32 (0.07) (0.07)
2015 10 31 7.36 0.20 (0.29) (0.09) (0.24) (0.24)
2014 10 31 7.29 0.29 0.13 0.42 (0.35) (0.35)
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.13) 0.18 (0.25) (0.25)
2012 10 31 6.91 0.23 0.45 0.68 (0.23) (0.23)
2011 10 31 6.93 0.29 0.06 0.35 (0.37) (0.37) f.g
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) ( O° Q) )
2015 10 31 6.94 (1.37) 1,087,633 0.85 2.52 793d
2014 10 31 7.26 5.57 1,004,198 0.85 3.67 505d
2013 10 31 7.20 2.31 783,735 0.87 4.03 267¢
2012 10 31 7.27 9.59 878,866 0.86 3.02 204e
2011 10 31 6.84 4.95 843,019 0.86 4.02 339e
2015 10 31 6.87 (2.12) 30,089 1.60 1.77 793d
2014 10 31 7.19 4.79 32,142 1.60 2.94 505d
2013 10 31 7.13 1.58 34,514 1.62 3.28 2678
2012 10 31 7.20 8.75 41,215 1.61 2.27 204e
2011 10 31 6.78 422 39,859 1.61 3.29 339e
2015 10 31 6.88 (2.24) 221,882 1.60 1.76 793d
2014 10 31 7.21 4.84 181,142 1.60 2.96 505d
2013 10 31 7.15 1.58 133,269 1.62 3.28 2678
2012 10 31 7.22 8.72 166,407 1.61 2.27 204e
2011 10 31 6.80 421 169,692 1.61 3.27 339e
2015 10 31 6.77 (1.74) 103,524 1.10 2.26 793d
2014 10 31 7.10 5.31 121,065 1.10 343 505d
2013 10 31 7.05 2.15 128,376 112 3.79 2678
2012 10 31 7.12 9.27 151,113 1.11 2.77 204e
2011 10 31 6.71 4.66 170,347 111 3.82 330e
2015 10 31 6.88 (1.73) 29,237 1.10 2.25 793d
2014 10 31 7.21 5.27 21,255 1.10 342 505d
2013 10 31 7.16 211 8,040 112 3.79 2678
2012 10 31 7.23 9.26 5,265 111 2.77 204e
2011 10 31 6.81 4.74 4,723 111 3.74 339e
2015 10 31 7.02 (1.16) 4,463 0.56 2.77 793d
2014 10 31 7.35 5.83 2,683 0.58 371 505d
2013 10 31 7.29 2.75 11 0.58 4.33 267¢
2012 10 31 7.35 4.39* 10 0.19* 1.2 204e
2015 10 31 7.04 (1.02) 123,635 0.49 2.82 793d
2014 10 31 7.36 5.98 48,755 0.51 3.97 505d
2013 10 31 7.29 2.62 6,188 0.51 4.25 2678
2012 10 31 7.36 454" 10 017 1.14* 204e
2015 10 31 7.03 (.27 779,830 0.60 2.76 793d
2014 10 31 7.36 5.90 461,835 0.60 3.93 505d
2013 10 31 7.29 2.52 133,717 0.62 4.30 2678
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2012 10 31
2011 10 31

7.36
6.91

10.00
512

193,550
132,550

0.61
0.61
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3.26 204e

4.25 339



Tt 2012

@
(b)
(©

(d)
C)

®)

©)

2012 10 31
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2013

2012

2011

30

30

30

2011 7 21

0.01
0.01
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2015 10 31

2014 11 2015 10 31

1940

4.00 3.25
2015 11

1.00
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6,291,732 7,359,489

292.5
100 392.5
235.5 2015 24
392.5

2015 24
1.25
1.30 0.04
0.04
0.16 2015 24 0.11

199/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1986
4982
740 740 740
2015 10 31
179,403,707

23,207,754 23,207,754 *

92,884,454 92,884,454 2016 10 31

63,311,499 63,311,499 2017 10 31
2010 2010 12 22

5,265,036

200/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

39,929,819
(83,520, 620)

(43,590,801)
14,993,739

(179,403,707)
4,567,015,403

50
100
200
300
800

1,300

0.25

50
100
200
300
800

1,300
2,300
2,300

2017

28

PIL

PIL
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2015
0.320
0.12
0.05
1,721,981 5,034
49,287 58,561
340,017 1,080,551
176,794 3,479,766
47,541
7,969
1,539
1995
2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31

2003
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1940 12
0.35 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
0.25 1.00 1.00 0.50 0.50
2,773,995 570,364
317,898 152,924
2,189,309 6,004,490
158,931 4,187
14,498
6,045
1.00 0.40
2015 11
5,169
TBA 20,787,334,801 19,135,616,385
27,153,984 27,089,648
20,814,488,785 19,162,706,033
1,414,635,500 11,613,079 656,000,000 2,567,031
32,712,534,130 194,914,034 5,543,000,000 33,273,750
(3,482,271,000) (34,497,393)
(6,898,062,625) (42,779,988) (984,000,000) (4,894,219)
(13,789,572,605) (97,714,746) (4,383,000,000) (25,714,062)
9,957,263,400 31,534,986 832,000,000 5,232,500
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2015 10 31 2014 10 31
58,019,092 417,416,250 57,666,388 419,883,361
4,159,168 29,745,903 4,784,692 34,680,025
62,178,260 447,162,153 62,451,080 454,563,386
(43,699,803) (312,705,634) (33,024,511) (240,081,268)
18,478,457 134,456,519 29,426,569 214,482,118
2015 10 31 2014 10 31
783,284 5,561,145 609,341 4,392,069
92,478 655,672 147,979 1,061,664
875,762 6,216,817 757,320 5,453,733
(964,057) (6,828,922) (1,128,513) (8,118,578)
(88,295) (612,105) (371,193) (2,664,845)
2015 10 31 2014 10 31
13,118,738 93,618,215 10,228,990 73,912,667
559,445 3,971,321 555,345 3,994,243
13,678,183 97,589,536 10,784,335 77,906,910
(6,575,856) (46,585,911) (4,292,060) (30,913,862)
7,102,327 51,003,625 6,492,275 46,993,048
2015 10 31 2014 10 31
1,068,632 7,529,758 1,427,653 10,183,192
84,009 586,893 82,205 582,977
1,152,641 8,116,651 1,509,858 10,766,169

(2,924,955)

(20,469,878)

(2,673,607)

(18,947,381)

(1,772,314)

(12,353,227)

(1,163,749)

(8,181,212)

2015 10 31 2014 10 31
2,979,794 21,291,942 2,160,285 15,664,326
111,070 788,768 67,915 489,597
3,090,864 22,080,710 2,228,200 16,153,923
(1,792,106) (12,675,528) (404,178) (2,923,043)
1,298,758 9,405,182 1,824,022 13,230,880
2015 10 31 2014 10 31
363,416 2,647,388 678,749 4,977,935
19,605 141,741 19,529 143,604
383,021 2,789,129 698,278 5,121,539
(112,478) (814,543) (334,598) (2,460,707)
270,543 1,974,586 363,680 2,660,832
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2015 10 31 2014 10 31
16,059,858 117,566,331 6,532,797 48,197,371
547,845 3,969,199 166,969 1,228,006
16,607,703 121,535,530 6,699,766 49,425,377
(5,664,803) (41,171,022) (925,263) (6,820,937)
10,942,900 80,364,508 5,774,503 42,604,440
2015 10 31 2014 10 31
80,260,841 584,374,422 59,520,471 439,579,737
2,574,258 18,642,148 1,201,266 8,836,015
82,835,099 603,016,570 60,721,737 448,415,752
(34,748,180) (251,795,744) (16,293,128) (120,111,726)
48,086,919 351,220,826 44,428,609 328,304,026
1,598 0.25 11,218
144,207,935 419,253,256 563,461,191 114,878
289,802,238 475,752,208 490,723,599 334,245 274,830,847
434,010,173 895,005,464 | 1,054,184,790 449,123 274,830,847
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512,700,000

6,033,900,000

895,500,000

5,912,800,000

4,000

6,007,000,000

520,400,000

88,600,000

690,000

815

439,457

1,934,868

39,508,979*

73,108,215*

39,948,436

75,043,083
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815
672,238 672,238
(10, 388,609) 14,169,707 (42,628,055) (38,846,957)
(10, 388,609) 14,169,707 (41,955,817) (38,174,719)
« ) ( )
815
(713,031) (713,031)
215,420 367,129 (15,674,984) (15,092, 435)
215,420 367,129 (16,388,015) (15,805, 466)
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Barclays )
Bankof | BAIYS | coniaing, | Gitibank, | Credit Suisse |Goldman Sachs| JPMOr9an | JPMorgan (Merrill Lynch,
AmericaN.A Bank | eari N.A International International ChaseBank | Securities |Pierce, Fenner
Al pLc (dearing A NA. LLC  |& Smith, Inc.
broker)
8,551,048 8,551,048
8,404 | 306,855 42,105 113,159 169,827 20,430 660,780
247,007 158,757 22,449 428,213
1,343,203 | 1,343,203
496,004 34,163 2,331,375 2,861,542
5,014 135,799 | 4,826,101 | 6,264,578 | 4,245,262 15,476,754
1,884,896 1,884,896
500,422 | 306,855 |8,551,048 | 212,067 | 5,186,267 | 6,593,162 | 8,481,963 | 22,449 |1,343,203 |31,206,436
8,676,413 8,676,413
221,802 21,213 55,175 16,181 314,371
31,207 | 10,308 1,525,703 307,662 59,988 1,934,868
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114 114

770,590 106,759 3,346,659 4,224,008

13,538 79,882 | 5,000,742 | 7,454,280 | 7,357,465 19,995,907

1,034,592 1,034,592

815,335 | 232,110 |8,676,527 | 186,641 | 6,637,658 | 7,817,117 11,754,897 | 59,988 36,180,273

(305,913) | 74,745 | (125,479) | 25,426 |(1,451,391) |(1,223,955) |(3,272,934) | (37,539) | 1,343,203 |(4,973,837)

(110,978) (1,451,391) |(1,223,955) |(3,272,934)

(194,935) | 74,745 | (125,479) | 25,426 (37,539) | 1,343,203
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Statement of assets snd [abilitias 102015

ASSETS
Irwgtimenl i secunkies, 1 value (Mate 1)
LUnadflisted Bauers Gdentifed cos £4,277, 250, 360)
Adfiliated issuers (iderifed cost $274.630,247) (Mates 1and 53
Cagh
Inberes! and other recerabes
Recesable for shares of the fund sold
Rucessable lor ewvediments sold
Recgasble for sales of delayed dalvery securitees (Hota 13
Recevable for vaeiaton mangn (Nale 1)
Unrealited appneciaticn o formard premaum wwap oaticn canbrocts (Mate 1)
Unrpaloed appreciabion o OTC swag canlracts (Note 1)
Premium paid on OTC swap conlracts (Mole 1)
Prepaid asvels
Tatal assets
LIABRITIES
Payable for rreestmants purchased
Payablo for purchases of delayed deivery secundies (Mabe 1)
Payable for shares of Lya fund repurchased
Payable for comoensation of Manager (Nobe 1)
Payabile for oustodian fees (hote 2)
Payable for rmestor servizing feed (Mabe 75
Payable for Trustes compensation and evpenses (Nole 2)
Payabie for admeresiratee sernces { otz 1)
Payabile foe distribuben fees (Mote 2)
Payable far varistion mbrgin (kote 1)
Unrealized depreciation en OTC swap contracts (Nate 1)
Praeium recehaed on OTC vwap contracts (Mate 13
unrealined deprecistion on forsard premium swap oobcn contracts (Mote 1)
Writhen cptions atstandeng, at vakue (premiams S36.767 462D [Modes 1 and 3)
TEA dals commvitments, 81 viles [procsedd recemalls 51,000,731 005) (Mot= 12
Othe acoued expenmes.
Totad liabamhes

Hel atsets

REFRESENTED BY

Baid-in capital {Undmiaed shares autherzed) (Notes 1 and 4)

Undied ribuled net ivesiment income (Mobe 1)

Accumulated ret resdzed loss o0 investments (Mote 1)

Hel wvealized deprecation of Mvesimenty

Total — Representing net assets appicable to capital shares outstanding

{Continued onreut page)
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Le 24812 442
2T4.B30.847

21036
{1494
10284 322
E2.B19.217

155,540,763
BUERd 35)
2851542
1.240.708

384,343
G4 TIE
4962076419

46,256,706
1.496,730.204
42ERE4L
Tan043
75,519
B15.579

aTd Bl
H656
503,378
BETE ST
636997
2,147 565
434,003
Z1.030.452
L015872. 472
353,641
1,601, 782.587

$280285832

52 586,856,903
13556587
{196,466,504)
[23.631.244)
$2.700,293.852

Income Fund &7
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Statement of assets and labilities (Continued)

COHPUTATION OF NET ASSET WALUE AND OFFERSNG PRICE
Mt assed wilue and redemption price per closs A share

{§1057_633.48] dnacled by 156,771, 386 shanss) 56,54
(Odfering price per chass A share (100y/36,00 of 56.84)" 0.5
it asset valoe and offerisg price per disds B dheee (550,080, 280 dhded by £ TA0 E50 shires 1™ LEET
INet asset value and offering price per chags C share (5201252018 gvioed by 520 35480 snares™ 56.69
et assat valan and redempition price per class M share.

(R103.524, 438 ehvicded by 15,262,113 shaves) L
Offering price per class M shane {100/96.75 af 86,775 £7.00
el asset valoe, offering crice and mdempbion price per dass B shar

(329,236,507 drvidied by 4, 296,500 shones) ]
Mot assut value, offering price and redemplicn price per dass RS share

(54,483, BG4 divided by 635,604 shares) £7,02
Wl ssset value, aMfefing price and redemplion price per dhads RE share

($1.23,£35, 384 dvidec by 17,566)075 thanes) LT
Met aseat value, offering price and redemption price per dlass ¥ sharg

(5770 B0 BEY cirvichec iy 1 HLBS0, 245 thams) 5703

*Cin wrghe redail satos of less than $100,000. On sates of $100.000 or mors e offering price g reduced.
“* RnOemnid D et HOF Thars 1L equil B0 et adel wisue leda ary apclicabile tcontingent deforred sales charge
" O prngle redfail sales of kexs Ehan $50 000, O sadus of $50.000 or mora tne cifering price s reduced.

This secomalTying nobes i anmitogral part ofHthese fnsncial statemaents.
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Statement of operations Year ended 10731715

INVESTHENT INCOME
Interest (incluging inferest ~oome of $443_ 173 hiom rvesiments in alffaled isseersh (Hote 5)
Totsl imvestment income

EXPEMEES

Compensabion of Manager (Mate 3}
Irveston servicing Pees (Mole 2)
Cuslodion fpas (Nole 2)

Trustee comperalion and sxpenged (Mote 2)
Costritsution fees (Mote 2)
Adminestrative senices (Mote 2)
Ot

Tatal expansns

Expensa reductan (Mate 2)

Mt oxpenses

Het investment incoms

Net reatged loss on investments [Nobes 1 and T)
et reaized kais on Ywip contracts (Mabe 1)

Mot repized gan on fy-s contracts (Mote 1)

it reahoed gain on wnke ooiorm Molet 1 899 T)

Het uwealized depreciation of mvestments, fubures contracts, Swal CONtacis, wiilben optons,
el TEA sale cornmilmasits dursing the yaa

Hiet a8 on imeestments
et decrexse in net assets resulling from operations

Treaccompanying notes 3% &7 inbegral aart of these frsncial statemarts.
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$M8.115.259
78,118,273

9012565
3479,766
170,635
117,285
5004250
6127
918,120
16,765, E04
[2.5650
15,757,635

S8.361,E04

(21437173
(41955 817)
14,169,707
49351433

(.960,0300
(94,851,885)

$36,470,283)
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Statement of changes in net assets

INCREASE IN HET ASSETS Year ended 10U'SLNS  Year ended 1075414

Operathons:

et investment income £56,360.504 §51.729.713

Het reafized gain loss) on rvestmenls pri-B R (5.299.753)
Hel uniealized BpCraciaben (Gepreciation) of mediments (94,580,033 15100985

Het increase (decreass) in net assets resulting

from opevations {36,470, 285) 71,609,438

Distritntions i shaneholoers (Mote 11
Fom arclinary income

Mt ivestmantircome
Clags A (34,583.245) (18.938.130)
Clais B [772.105) {L256.067)
Class £ (5,244, 758) (5. 319.484)
Class M (24361000} {5.006,622)
Clais R (EBB.ALT) {544, 055)
Class RS (141741 [143,E04)
[Clats R (LGE9.19 {1#28.006)
CletsY (FLTILELL (10.977.537)
ingrease from capidal share bransactions (Note 4) EIS 450014 E3T.A20.267
Tatal increats in ret assets 507,218,546 45,225,231
HET ASSETS
Beginning of year LBTRO75 1ES L3IT.549,065
Ensd o year frchdrsg undmiribuoted net investnest noome
of $15.556.532 and S 7L 700,955, respestively) $2,380,203,832 $1,873.075,186

Thez aCoompary g nabes 39 04 infegral part of these financial statemerts

70 ncome Fund
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Financial highlights [Continuen)

* kal anniadimd
* For thenpeviod July 3. 2012 (commencement of opéatons) o October TL 2012

o Per share ngl imesbirami ingome hun besn determined on the bass of the weighled awerage number of shaneg
outstangirg durg [he pecad

* Todal returm agsamies dvidend rpmreestment ard does nat reliect the effect of sales Chanpes,

# includes amounts pakd Thicugh exse-se offuel andfor brobersge/servee arangements, f amy (Note 1) ko
enCiuies acguied fund lees and eapenses, I army

i Bortfoloturmover InCludies TRA purchase and sale commitmants.

* Portiohoturnower exciudes THA purchase and sl commitrments. inchadeng THA purchase and sabks COMMATFETS i
cenform with cunnant yeas presentaton. the portfaio turnceer would have been the lolowing:

Fostiollo tumesr %
September 5. 2003 TR
Sepkermber 50, 2012 ]
September 30, 2011 942

P Refecis a non-reurring “gimburiement related (o rekRLUlon 3Mounts o CONNBCHON with 8 destricution pian
apenoved by the Securites and Exthange Comvsaon (e SEC) which amaunled fo s then $0000 pér shang
oulstanding on July 21, 2011 Al reflects a non-recurming reimbursement related ta saort-darm radng refated
kst whichamounted {0 e than 30 01 per share cutstanding on May 1, 2011

® Amipunt repretenls less (han $0.00 per shave

The accomparyng robes are an inlegral pan of thete fnsccial statements.
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Hotes to financial statements 10,3315

Within the following Moles to fnancal statements, references to ~State Street” represant State Streat Bank
and Trust Company, relerences o “the SEC” reprosent the Securities and Exchange Commission, reforences to
“Pulnam Managemént” represent Putnam lnvesiment Manasgement. LLC. the fund's manager, an indiect whaly-
ewned subsidiary of Pulram invesiments, LLC snd nelerences to “OTC™, il any, represent gver-the-couriur, Unless
atherwise nobed, the “reporting perod” iegresents the pericd from Novembar 1, 20014 through Dcteber 37, 2015,
Putram Income Fund (1he fund) is & Massachusietls busingss trust, which |5 registened under the mvestmant
Company Act of 1240, a5 amended, o5 o dversifion cpen-end mangaement investment company. The goal of the
furd I to seek high cufrent incomie eonsitbeat with wiet Putnam Management beligwss bo be prudent risk. Tha fund
rreedds mainly in bonds that s securitized debit instruments (such as mortgaga-hacked imestmenrts) and ot
obdigations of Companies and governments woridwide denomingted in il S dollars, ane cilher imesimeni-grade or
beslow-ifmvestmant-grade in guality (somelimes mbemed to as "jurk bands™) and have intermediste- 1o long-tenm
maturilios (Rhree yoars of longerh Putnam Maragement may consider, amang alber factors, credil, interest rate
and prepaymment risks, & well as general markel conditicns, whon deciding whethes 1o buy or sall investments.
The fund oifers class A, class B, class C, class M, dass R, class RS, class RE and clads ¥ shares Claas A and class M
shares ane $okd wilh a masimmim front-ond sales charge of 4.00% and 3.25%. respoctivaly, and gererally da not
pay & contesgant dedered sales charpa. Effective November 1, 2015, Clacs M shares will no lanpes pay & contingent
delerred sales charge. Class B shares, whith convert to clags A shares after snproximately elght years, donot pay
& frond-end sales change and re subjact to-a contingent deferred sakes charge if Those shases are redeenmed within
sh ypars of purchase. Class C shares hive b ane-year 1009 contingest deferred sales charge and do not convert
to class A shifos Clagt R shaees, which are not available bo all imeestors, am sodd at net assel vabse. The expenses
for class A, cfass B, Cass C iass M and class R shares may differ based on the distribution fee of sach class, wivich
i identified in Nole 2 Class RS, class RE and cles ¥ shares. which aee soid at met assat value, are generally subjec
bo thir sam ok penses a5 class A, class B, class Celass M and chass B shares, But da not bear & distrbution fee and in
thir gage of clets RS snd class AG shaned, bear a lower investor servicing faee, which is identified n Mote 2. Class RS,
‘chass Wb and class ¥ shares are not available to all investors.

In b nce s Cour s oo businesa, hie fund enters inbo contracts that may includi agreements 1o Indemnity ancther
party under given crcumstances. The fund's maximeim evposune under 1hese arrangements is unknown as this
woukd invole futune claims that may be, bul have ot yel besn, made against the fund, Howewer, the fund's
mansgement team expects the ik of materis loss tolbe romoto

Note 1; Significant accounting polickes

The follcwing is a summary of sighifieant bocounting palicies consistontly fnllowsd by the fund i the praparation
ol its financlal statements, The prepatation of fnancial staternants is in contormily with accourting principles
gentally sccepled in the United States of America and requines management 1o mahe g5l mates and assumgtions
tniat atfect the reparted amounts of assets and lalilties In the finandal stabernents and the repered amounts of
lincyeases and deCieases in nel Asels from opéralions. Actual resuits could differ from thoss estimates, Subse-
guenl gvenls alter tha Stalement of issets and liabdities date through the date that he financlal statements wes
lasued have baen evaluated inihe prepasation of e Frandsl sLaements,

Imvestment Incoma. realded and unnoalizod gains and bosses and expenses of thedund are borne pro-rata based on
e refative nat assets of each class o ARe 1Al Pl a5eats of Uhe Fund. cept TRt each class bdars oxponses ungue
Hovifat class (including the distribution fees npplicable ta puch classes). Each class voles &5 b class only wilh respect
T its cram giSITibuten plan or alhir matin o which & class vote @ required by lew or determined by tho Trustces
H ke fund were Bouidated, shares of sach rlaws would receive ther pro-rata share of the ret assats of the fund. In
addition, the Trusiess declae sopasale dnvidends on 2ach class of shanes,

Spcurity valuation Poirtalio securilies and other imestmants aee valued using pabies and procodiwres adopted
By o2 Bowrd) af Trustees. The Trustesss hawe Parmied & Pricing Commilies bo owerson th implemertation of these
procedures and have delegated resporsibiity for valuing the hund's assets in acoordance with these procedurnes to
Putnam Management. Putnar Mansgament b establithed an intérnal Valuation Commities that is resporasible
for making fair value determinaticns, ovalualing the offoctivenass of the pricing policies of the fund and reportisg
fo tha Pricing Coenmithes.

Market quotatiors are not considered 1o be readily availabie for certain debt obligaticns and olher irvestrments,
Fuch irvesimants are vaked on (he basis af valuations fumithed by ar independant pricing service approved

Income Fund 75
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lry the Trustees or dealers selecled by Putnam Mansgement. Such servdes of doaiers detgrming valuations o
ngemal instibutional-sloe trading units of such secunities using methads based on maroet transactians far compa-
rabile securities and vanicws relationships, g iy recognized by tonal traders, botwaen securities {which
consicer such fachors as securmly prices, yields. maturite<s and ratings). These seruites will genemdly bo cale-
qoriped ab Levet 2 Secwritied quoted in foreign dunmencies, if any, ane iranilated inlo LS, Gollirs bt the curnent
exchange rate. Short-larm securities welh remaining maturdies of GO days or less may be vahued st amonized cost,
which appraximates Lair value, and s classified & Level 2 securities.

Imvestmanis in open-end irvestment companies (excluding exthange-traded furds), iF anyg, which can be classi
Tied o Leved | or Level 2 securilies, are valued based on their net asset value. The net asset value of such invest-
mark companias equals tha total value of their assets less thel kabilties and drided by the rumber of Thaw
outstanding shares

To'the etont a pricing servioe or dealer is unabla tovalue a securlty o provides a valuation that Putnam Manage-
ment does not believe accurately reflects the Securnity’s fair value, U tecurily will be vakied o1 (sicvalue by Pubnam
Hanggement in accondancg with policies and procedures approwved by the Trusbess. Cortain investments. inciuding
oeriain nalricted and ilquid securities and dermatived, ane slso vslued ot fair value Bollowing procedunes spproved
by the Trusbees. These valuations. consider such factors as significant market or specific seourity svents such as
inkerist rade OF onedit quality changes, varlous relationshipd with ol secunlies, discount rates, ULS. Treasury,
L5, Swapand credil yaelds, index Ievels, corvmaty unosunas, recowery rates. sales and gther mulhipies and resale
restrictions. Thesa securities ane classilied as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.
T asse (he conlifung appropdiateness of fair valuations, the Vakation Commities reviews and affirms the
reasonatieness of such valuathons on a regular basis after considanng all relevant information that is reasanabdy
ayvailable. Such valualicns and procedures ams reviewed perigdically by the Trusbees. Certan securities may be
valuad on the basts of a prico provided by o single sourc. The fatr vatuo of seounties is generaly determined as
e armaunt 1t the furd cauld reatanably capecd 1o roaline from an orderly disposition of such secunties over
1 reasonadln period of time, By its natur, a faer valuo pnce s 3 good Taith estimate of the value of a security ima
cuirnen] Sale avd dhoes mol rellect an actual marked prce, which may be diferen by amaterial smounl

Spcurty ransactions and related imvestment income Socurity transachions are recorded on the trace date (1he
date the order ba buy or sed is exequied). Gaing or ks on Securites soid are detenminad on the identified cost
basis. Inberest income. net of &y applicable withholding taues, bs recorded on the oocrual basis Al premiums
dracounts are amaitized faccreled on a yield-to-maturily basis.

Securities purchased or sodd on & forwerd commitment or delayed delivery Dasis may be settied at a fulure dale
boyond customany seltiemont Lmo; svieeest income i aocrued based on the torms of the seounties. Losses
by tisg due Lo changes in the Rsir walue af the underiying securitics or if the counterparty does nat perfionm
under th conbract.

Stripped securities The fund may imvest in stripped securties which repretent a particpation in securities that may
b structured in classes wilh rights o receive differant portians of the inferest and principal. Interest-only securi-
L5 poshvz all of the Merest and princpal-only securithes receiv: all of the principal. If the inbeeat-orty securities
experience greater then anticipated prepaymant s of principal, the fund may fallto meocup hully it inftlal irvestment
in thise seouritioes. Corversely, prncipal-Gily securities incraese in value il propagments are groabier than sntici-
pated and decling # prepaymienls ane siowar than anlicipated. The far value of these securitios is highly sensithe
Lo changes inimerest @ies

‘Optiors contracts Tho fund uses opbions contracts bo hedge duration and comxity, o isclabe peenaymant rigk and
19 manage Sownside rks

Thiz patertial risk to iR fund ks that the change in walue of options contracts may not comaspond to tho changa m
value ol the hadged irstruments. In addtion, insses may ance fram changes in 1Re value of Ehe underkarg nstn-
ity (Fikorg i anilliquid secordany markiot for thocontracts, if inboresd or exchanga rates move unaxpad bedly or if
U Sidiatler Dadty fo the contract i3 unabide to pedor Reslized gains afd kasses o purt hased option ane indhided
in realized gaing and losses on investment scourities. i o written: call option & exrosed, the premium onginally
recevied is recondind &5 an addition to sales praceeds. IF a wrilten put option i extrcised, I premium onaginally
received i mcorded a1 0 recuction 1o the cost ol investmants.

Exchangi-lracid cptions and valued 30 Thitast sale prioe oo @l o ssles arergparled, the last bid prico far purchased
cplions and the kst ik pice for weitton opbons. OTC traded cptiang am valued using prices supplied by doaters
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Ciptions on vwaps sie similar (0 opbiors on securiies excepl that the premium paid of received s 1o buy of grant
the right to erter inko & previously bgreed upen interest mie or credit delault contract. Forwand premium swap
oplicn eoniracts inchude promiums that have exiand lpmsn Catns. The delasd settlement of the preevkims
Is factored inlo the daity valuation of the option contracts. In the case of inbenl rate cap and Moot contracty, in
reluen fof @ prdmiam, ehpcing payments bebwedn two parties are based on interest rates exceading a specified
rafe, In the case of a cap contract, o faling below & specified rafs in Lhe case of & Noor contrecl.

Writtenaation corirails outitanding at oariod end. M army ore iisted after the Fund's portiolio.

Futures contracts The fund uses futures contracts for hadgng treasury term siructurs risk and far yield
LI POlRORING.

Tha poterdial risk to the fund Is that the changein value of futures contracts may nol corrspond Lo the chango n
vz ol the hedged intruménts. In additian, lewses may armse from changes in the value of the underdying inshi-
menits, if there is an Hiquid secondary market foe Lhe contracts, i interest oF Bxchangs Fa0es move Urespaciedy
or it 1he counberpary Lo the conlract is unable 1o perform. With Futures, thene is minimal counterparty credd nsk
to the fund since fulures s ouchange aded and the mechange's deannghouse. 05 counlerparty 1o all eachange
Iradad hutunes, guaranless the utisnes sgainst defall. Risks may excood amounts recogrized on the Statamont
of axsets and liabilities. When the contract is closed, the fusd reconds a realized gain of loss equal to The Gfference
Detween the value o T gonleacl al the Gime il wes opened and the value at the lime it was dosed.

Fulunes condracts are valued &1 the qualed daly settlement prices established by the exchange on whech they
trade, The fund and the broker agree 1o exthange an amaunt af cash squal 1o the daily Nuctuaticn in the valos of
the futures eontrack. Such receipts or payments ang known ay “variation margin.”

Fulums confracts outstanding at peviod end. if any, am lisbed after the furd's portfobe.

Ieteeest rate dwap contracts The hund entemned inta OTC and,for cenbralby cleaned inborest mte swap contracts. which
are arrangements betwean beo parties to eschange cash fiows based on a national principal amaeunt, Tor hedaing
e strscture risk snd for yeid curve positioning.

An Q1C and contrally Ceared inbenest rabe swap can be purchased of Sold with an upbrant premium. Far OTC
Intenest rate swap coniracts. an upfronl payrenl received by the furd is recorded as a ilsbiity an the fund's bocis.
An uplrort paymint made by the fund is recoeded 25 an raset on the Tund's books, OTC and contrally cesred
Intarest rate swap conteacts are marked to market dady besed upen quotations trom an independent prcing
Laiie OF Marke! makess. Any change i retoided a% an unmalinsd gein or loes on OTE inforest rate saaps. Daly
Puchsations in the valoe of centrally cleared Interest rale swaps are settled throwgh a central dearing agent and
Bre reconded in varation margin on the Stabement af assets and babilities and recorded o3 urrcakiped gein o loss
Payments, including upfront premiume, reccived or madi ane recoesod o5 realized Qains oF kedsas of tha rosiet dale
or tha chosing of the contract. Ceain OTC and cenrally cheared intereat rate swap confracts may include oxfendad
effective dabes. Peyments relabed 1o these swap contracts are aconsed based on the terms of the confract.

Tha fumed could be exposad bo credit or market risk due tountavarable < hanges inthe Muctuation of intarest rates or
il e counterparty delaults, n the cise of OTC inbersst rabe canbmcts, or the central clearing agency of a clearing
member gefauls, in ihe case of centrally clearcd Interest rabe Swao canlracts, om s respective abligation to
pesfarm under the cantract. The fund's maximum risk of iogs from counkenparty risk or central clearing risk i the
falrvalag of the comract. This risk may bemitigabed for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having o master nelting
Arrangement et ween the furd and the coisnterparty and for cemtrally cleared intorost rte swap contracts theough
e daly exchangs of variaton margin, Tnere is minimal courderparty risk with respect bo centrally cleaned interest
fati Swap conracts due Lo the clearingbouse guatantee Bmd and other resounes thal ae avatlable in the event of
achearing membar cefauit. Risk of loss mey excend amounts recognized on the Slatemen of azsets and lisbilties,
OTC anwd cerirally dwaned inleres] ral swap contracts outstanding, inthuding their respective national amounts at
pariodend, ifany, sre ksind afer the lund's portiolic,

Tatal return swap contracts The fund entend inlo OTC total return swap contracts, which are arangemants 1o
wxchange & market-linked retuen Tor & periodic payment, both based an a nolional orincpal amounl, o hedge
Sichar pxposine and Tor gaining expodsure bo specific secloes.

To the exfent that the total retum of the security, index or other financial measue underlying the ransactian
wcegds of Talls ghart of the oMsetting inlerest rale obligation, the fund will recehve o peymend fnom or make a
paymnt b the countenparty. OTC tolal return swap contracts ane mared |6 markel daly based upon quodations
Trsery am independen pricing service o markad masnrs and the changa, if any, & ecorded a5 an ungalized gain or
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loss, Paymends received or mace ace reconded as reslized gains or losses Cortaln OTC fotal retum swap contracts
my include extended effective cates. Payments related 1o these swap conbracts ane accrued Based oh the berms
of thee contract. The fund could be exposed o credit of market risk dus b5 undavoralle changes in tha fluctuation
of intenest rabes ar in the price of the underhing seqwity o indes, the possibily that there & mo guid markel
for thizse ageeemonts of that the couorparty may default on its obigalion to parform, The fund's maxirum
ek ol leds Froem counarparty risk is tha Fair valug of tha contract, This risk may be miligated by having & masber
netiing asTangement betwesn Ehe lund and the courer party, Rtk of lose may excood amaunts recognized on the
Statement of asiets and lisbilitics.

OTC tokal reburn swap contracts cutstanding, ineluding their nespective notional amaunts at period end, if ang, are
Is1ed afier |re fund's partfolio.

Credit default cortracts The fund entered into DTC and/or condrally clesred credit defaull contracts 1o hedge
cridt fisk, for gaining Bguid expodure bo individual rames. (o hedpe market fisk and for gaining exoosure to
specific seclons

17 OTC and centally cearsd credi default contracts, the protection buyer typacally makes a perodic stream ol
paymans Lo § counberpany, the protection sedles In eae kange foe thi Fight to recehas & Sonlingent baymenl wpan
the gecunmende af & cridil evesst on the reference obligation or all cther equalty ranked obigations of the refenenge
enity. Cradit avents ane contract specific but may inchude banknanbey, tadure bo pay, redtrecburieg ond obligation
soceferation. For OTC credit delau® eantracts, sn upfront payment recoiod by the furd is recceded as a labilty
o the fund's boodc. An upfronl payment made by thie Tund i reconded as an asset on the fund's boaks, Centrally
cleaned credif defau contracts provide Lhe same rights (o Lhe peofection buyer and seller excopt the payments
betweeen partics, inchading upfront premiume, ane settied ivough a cenbral cleanirg agent hesugh vanstion margin
payrmants, Upfront and perlocsc payments recaned or paid by the fund far OTC and centrally cloared crodit dafa
COntracts ant reconded as reaked gare o logses of 1he reset dabe or close of the contract, The OTC and centrly
dharud crech dedault contracts are marked bo macket daily Dased upon quot etians from an independent pricing
aervice of imarkel makers. Any change in value of OTC credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain
crloss Daily luchuaticrs in the vabse of centrally deared credit delault contracts are recorded in vasialion margin
o thie Stabemend of ssets and lisbilies and recomrod as unmalined gain o oss. Upon the oocuwrence of a crodit
ovant, 1he différance between the par value and Fair walue of the reference abkgation, el of sy proportianal
amount af the upfrost payment, is recotded s s realined gain o loss,

In addition 1o Dearing thi: rick that 1he crt event will acour, the fund cowld be exposed to manket rsk due ba
unfagrably changas in intenest rabes of in thie price of Uhe underlying security of indexor the possibiity 1t the
Tured ray be urable 1o close cul ils position af the sama lime or ot the samse: price a5 i it had purchased the under-
lying raderenco ohlgations, in cerfain courstances, the fund may enter into offseiting OTC and centrally clearsd
oredt default contracts which would ribegste ils risk of lots. Resks of lows may pecend amounts recognized om the
Statement of ssets and lipbetios. The fund's maximum sk of loss [rom counler party risk, sithir 85 the protection
ol of 8 the probection Buyer, is the fair value of the cortract, This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default
conlracls by having & mastor retting arangoment batweoon the fund and the eounterparty ond Tarcertrally cheared
credt default confracts theough the dady eschange of veriabion margin. Courdorparty risk Is further mitigated
withrespect to centrally cheared credit defoult swap confracts due to the cearinghouse guarardee furd and other
fREOUNTES that ang avalable n the ewenl of & chearing member defaull, Where the fund is & selior of protoclion. the
maximum potentidl amourt of fubure payrments §he fund mary be nequined 1o make = egual 1o the notianal amoust.
OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts sutstanding, mcluding their respective national amounts at
peniod end, fl any, are listed after the funds portiola.

TEA commitmends Tne fund may enter info TRA (bo be annaundted) commilments 1o parchase secunties for a lived
unit price at & future dabe beyond customary settiemant tme, Although Uhe unit price and per amount hane been
establshed, the actual seoanitles have mot been specified. However, it is anticipabed that the amount of the cormmit:
mignts will nat dgnificantly dilfer freem the principal amount. The Bund holoks, and malntaing unkil settiemsnt date,
cash.or high-grace debt obégations in an amount sullicient fo mesl (he purchase price, or (ke Bund may enber into
cifselling contracts for the farsard sale of other Securities It cwrs. Income on Ehe seourities will not be earnad wiil
settiemand date.

The Tund may sk enler inlo THA S&ie commitmants 1o hedge it5 porfodo posiions, to sell momgge-backed
sacurities it owns under delayed delvery Srangiments of 10 Lake a shan pesition in mangage-backod o
ties. Proceeds of THA sale commitments are not receimd until the cortraciual settiement dste. During the lime
a TBA sale commitment |5 outstanding, either equivalent deliverable securitios or an offsetting TBA purchase
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commitment dolwerable on o before the sale commitment date ane Feld &8 “ooves™ for (he Irarmsaction, or alher
lgind assetd i an amdunt squal bo the noticnal walue of the TRA salo commitment are segrogated. If the TEA sale
camrmitmant i chosed through the acquisition of an offsetting TEA purchase comimitment, the fursd realizes & gain
oF bass I the: hand Delvers secuntles under the commilmient, the fund realdes & gain or & 1oss from the salcof the
securities based upon ihe urit price established at the date Lhe commikmeenl was enlered inlo

TEA commments, which ane accounted for a3 purchiase ard sale lransachons, may be considernd seounties ibame
serhes, and involbvr 2 risk of los cug 1o changes in the value of the sacurity prior (o the setiiement date as well &
the rish that the courderparty ko bhe trarsaction will net perfonm its abligations Courterparty risk ks mitigated by
having a master agreement between tha fund and the counterparty,

Unseitied TBA commibments ane valued af hesr lair value sccording 1o the procedures desoribed under *Securily
valustion” abave. The cortract is marked bo markot daily and the charge in falr value is recorted by thee furd a3
an unreakzed gain of ks Bated on maskel cireumstanoes, Pulnsm Menagement will detenmine whether 1o take
delivery of the underlying securitats or 1o depase af the TEA comemitments prior (o settiemant.

TEA purchase commitmaents pulstanding al pesiod end, if any. are listod within the furd's porifalio and TRA sals
comimtments outstanding al penad end. it amy, ane listed after the fund's porfolio

Master agreements The fund (5 3 party b S0 (Wrtermationsl Swaps and Derivalives Associntion, Ine.) Master
Agreemants that govern OTC derivative and foroign exchange contracts and Mastor Secusitios Forward Trans-
action Agreamenis that govem transactions imeglving mortgage-backed ard othir asset-backed secunties that
Py result in deleyed delvery (Master Agreements ) wilh certain counter perties entuned into from lima Lo time. The
Mazier Agreements may contain proigsans regarding, among olher Lhings, the parties’ general obligalions, repoe-
senistions, bgroempnls, colabersl requirements, events of default and esrly termination, With expect 1o ortain
counlerpanies. in accondance with the terms of the Haster Agreemants. cofateral posted bo the fund Is beld ina
sefregated account by the fund's Ccustodhan and, with nispect 19 1hase amaunts which can be 2ol o réphidaed.
are pretenbed in the fund's portiolio.

Codlateral phedoed biy the fing is segragabed by the fanis eustoian and klentified inihe finds portfolio. Collateral
can be in the form of cash or debt seountics issuwed by the U5, Govemment or relaled sgencies or other securibes
5 agreed te by the fund ard the apolcable counterpary. Collateral requirements are determined based on the
funi's nat position with sach countamparty

‘With rexpect bo IZDA Master Agregments, fcrmination ewents applicable to the fund may coour upon a decline
in the fund's net assets below a specified theeshold oves @ certain period of time. Tesmination events apphicabile
Lo counferparties may occur upon & decling in the counterparty’s long-term or shor-tenm credil ratings below a
specified k. Ineach case, upon coourrence, the olher party may elect o lerminate sarty and cause setllement of
ol derivalive and fonsign exchange contracts outstending, including the payment of any losses and costs resuiting
from such oaely Lesminaticn, a5 asonabily determined by the terminating party. Ary decition by one or mose of
h funel's counlespartes fo elec] eary herminaton could impact the fund's future derivative activity,

Al tha cicse of the meporting periad, the fund had a net lisbéity pesition of $6,291,732 on open derivative cantracly
abject to the Masher Agreements. Collateral potted by the fund al period ond for these sgreemants fotaled
$7.354, 465 and may include amourts refated to unsettied agreements.

Interfune bending The fund, Bang with ather Putnam funds, may padticipale in an interfund lending program
pusuant 10 &n exemptiveg onder ixsued by the SEC. This program aliows the furk to botros rom or kend to other
Putriam funds thal penmil sudch andactiond. Imerfund lending Iraniactions ane subject to each fund's imsestmont
policies and borrawing and lending kmits. Interost earned o paid on the interfund lencirg transaction wik be bassd
o e average of cerain current maiket rabes. During the reporting penad, the fund did not utiiz the program
LLines of credit The fund partcipates. slang with gther Putnam funds, in 8 5352 5 milcn syndicated ursecuned
commitied line of credit provided by State Street (32925 millien) and Northern Trust Company (5100 million)
and 8 $¥355 million unsecured uncommitted ling of credit provided by State Street. Prior to September 24,
2015, the tund parbonalad 0 a 33025 mallion urtecuned commilled line of oedi provided by State Stroot and a
substantislly similar useouned uncammitied ling of cred. Borrowings may be made fof (2Mparaey of BMagercy
Purposes, inchuding the furding of shareholder redemplicn requests snd trade seitiements, inferest is charged
15 the fund based on the fund’s borrowing at a rate equal to the highoe of (1) the Fodersl Funds rale asd (2) the
aoveiright LIBOR (the Fedeml Fusds rabe priot o Seplernber 24, 20153 plus 1.25% for the commiited lina of credit
and Ihe Federal Funds rate ghes 130% for ihe uncommitied line of credit. A Cosing fee agual to QDA% of Ihe
coimmilied kne of credil and 0.04% of the urcammitted Bne of credt has beer paid by the participatling funds.
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In: adidition, a commiment foe of G1E% (0T1% priar bo Scptember 24, J015) per annwm on any Lutilizod poticn
of the comeitied Ene of cregit & allocatod 1o the pafticipating Tunds besed an their redstive et sssets and paid
cuarterly. During the reperting periad, the fund had no bormowings against these amangemerts.
Foceral taces 1 ks the pelicy of thi hund to distribate 2l of s taxake incame within the preseribed time period and
atherwise comply with the peovisions of the intermal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), appiicable
Io regulaled invesiment companies. 11 is also the intention of the fund to distribuate an amound sulficient 1o svold
impadition of any excise lax under Seclion 4382 of the Code.

The fund (s subsect bo the provisioes of Accounting Standars Codification TAQ foome Taes (ASC 7400 ASC 740
set4 forth b misimum threshold foe financial statement recognition of the benedit of a tax position taken or expecied
o ke takenin a tax return, The hand did not have a Habiity bo record for any unrecognized tax banedils in the accom-
panying financial stabements. No provision has besn mad for fadaral Lams on income, capital gaing or unrealized
supeecialon on securites held nor tor ecse tax on noome and capitall gairs. Each of the und's beders’ tan meiums
Tor e prios e fiscal years remaind subjcl bo examination by the Infarnal Raovenue Service.

At Ochober 31, 2005, tha fund had a capital loss carryover of $178.403,707 avallable to the peient allowed by the
Code to odfset hrtune nel capital gaim, il any, The amdants of 1he caryovars Bnd the gxpiration dates ane:

Loss camyover
Short-term Lang-lams Tatsl Expiration
$23.207.754 = £21,207.754 "
92,884 454 Hia 92,864,454 October 31, 2015
EL.511.499 MR E3.311,459 Oelabes 11, 2007

" Undder tha Reguiated imsstmend Company Modennzalon Act of 2000, the fund will be permidited b caery forward
capital losses mcurmed in taxsbie years beginning alter December 22, 2010 for an unimited period. However, any
losses incurrod will ba reguired to be wsikaed prior bo the losses inourmed in ore-enactment tas years. As a result of
s crclering ruie, pre-enactmat Catal ioas canylonvande My De more By o utied. Sddtiorally post-
enaciment captal iosses that ane chmiod forword will relain ther character aseither short-1ermm of gng-semm captal
Iazess rate 1hen b corcened B Short -Tenm as under prevaous kv

Distributions to shareholders Cistriution to tharcholdens tnom net irvestment income ane recorded by the fund
on the ex-dividend date. Dwstributions from capdtal gairs, d any, s recorded on the ex-dividend date and paid
at least anrually, The amount and chacacter of indome and gars (o be distributad are determined in accordance
wilh Eneame oy repulitions, which may Gffer from generally accepted actounting principles. Thase differences
inchude bemparary andfor permanent diiferences Irom iNCoME on Swap 2ontracts nd inberedd only seountios.
Reclassificalions are mads (o the fund's capital acoounts to reflect incomae and gains available Tor distribution
{ar avallable capital kss carryovers) wnder intorme tax regulsticons. Al (ke clode of the reparling period, the husd
reclassified §5,265.036 to increase undistrbubed net investmend incomw and 85,265,036 1o increase accumutated

it reakeed toss

Thar e baeirs campaners of distmbutabie aamisgs and the fodcral fax cost a5 of 1he dose of the reporting period
were ans il

Unrasalired aprwacatan 35200819
Unrealized deprecation (E3520.6200
Hat urrealeed depreciation (43.500,801)
Ungdatribted ordinary income g
Canitil ks carrylorwird (179 803.707)
st For fedenalingomae bax prposes %4.567.015.408

Nobe 2: Management fee, administrative services and other transactions
The bund pays Pulnem Maragement a mansgement fea (basedon the fund's sversge mel assets and comput sd and
paid moniiy) al annual mbes that may vacy batsed on the mvetage of the aggregate red assets of most open-end
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funds, as defined in the fund’s management contract, socrsoeed by Putnam Management. Such annual rates may
vary a5 fotlows

D.550% of the: first 55 billicn, 10,3505 of thes rest £50 billion,
0,500 o the nast 55 bilian, 0.330% of the ret 850 billion,
0.450% of the nesi S0 billan, 0.320% af bhe raset $100 bifeon and
0,400 of the nid $10bion, 0.515% of any excess thereatied,

Putram Managemant has contractually agreed, throwgh Febnaary J8. 3017, 1o wane bees o reimiburse the fund's
expenses b the extent nacassarny bo I the-cumelative pepanses of (Be Tund, exelutive al brakemge, intorest,
laes, Invesiment-related expenses, extracedinary expenses. acouied fund fees and expenses ard paymants
onger the fund’s imvestcr servicing contract. investment management contract and distribulion plans, on & Fecd
year-to-clabe basis 1o an annwal rabe of 0.20% of the fund's awrage nat assets ower such fiscal year-to-date perind
During the reporting pavicd, the fund's excpenses wane not reduced as a result of The limi

Putnam ksvesiments Limited (PIL), an affilate of Putnam Management, s authorized by the Trustees b manage
a goparate portion of tha assats of the fund a5 determined by Putnam Mansgemant from bme o time. Pulnam
Managemeni pays a quanerdy wh-managerment foe 1o PL for fs services 8 an anmualmate of 0.25% of the mwrage
et assetsof the portion of the fund managed by FiL.

Thea fund reimburses Putnam Management an allacsted amaunt for the compensation and related experses of
ceitain afficers of the fund bnd their stalt who provide adminestrative services to the fund. The agaregate amount
o all such reimiursernents & determnsd arcuwally by Db Trusbees.

Custodial funcians bor Lhe fund's asets o provided by State Street. Custody fees are based on the fund's asset
Iewiad, the murmbes ol its segunily Ioddings and transaction wlumes.

Futnam imvestor Senvicies, Inc, an aififiale of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functians to
e fund Putnaminvestor Services, Inc. receded fees for irvestor servicing (excegt Taf class RS and BE shaned) (Rat
inchuded (1) & per scooumt fee for sach dinect snd underlying non-defined contribution account (“retad scoount™)
of the fund and sach of the cther funds In its specified category, which was tataled and then allocated bto each
fuesd in the category based on its sverage daiy net assets: (2) a specified rale of the fund's sssots aliributable to
defined contribution plan atcounts. and () tor the portion of the fund's fiscal year beginning after January 1, 2015,
a spacifind rate based on 1he average net assets in retail acoounis. Pulnam knveslon Sennces has agreed (hal the
FGROGHE irvestor serviting feed for each fund's retall and defired contribution acoounts will net excesd an annual
rats of 0.320% of the fund'’s average assets altributable to such accounts. Class RS shases paid & monthly fee based
on e Bverage nel assets of class A5 shaned & a0 annial rate of (112%, Class RE shares paid a monthiy fee based on
e pverage nel assols of dass RS shares at an annual rate of 0.05%. During the reporting Dencd, the evpendes o
wach cass of shared related Lo irvester Servicing Tees wene as follows:

Class A il eE Class BS 5034
Class B 49287 Cleg RS L
Class C 40,007 Clarss ¥ 100531
ClasmM 176,154 Total £3.479, Tk

Class B 47,541

The fund has enfered into expense olfset arrangemenls wilh Pulnam Imesior Services, Inc. and Stale Siront
whetchy Pubnam Irveston Services, Inc's and State Street's Tees are recuced by credits allowed on cash baarces
Far the reporting pericd. the fund s expenses werne reduced by 57959 under the expenss offgel arangemants.
Esch Independent Trusdee of the furd receives an annual Trusies foe, of which §1.575 as & quarierhy retainer, has
been allocabed 1o the fund. and an addtional fee for each Trustees mesting attended Trusiees also ane eimbwssd
Par pxpaased thiry incu rilabing o their services as Tnostess

The fund has adopied a Trustee Feo Defornal Plan (the Deferral Plan) wiich alows the Trustees 1o defer the receipt
of all &¢ & portion of Tiustees becs payablo on or aftor July 1, 1885, The deferred fees remain invested bn cetain
Putmam funds wril distribution in aooordance with ihe Delerral Plan

Tt fund has sdopled an ualundéd noncontribuficry defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) cavering
all Trusstees o the hund wha have served 25 a Trustee doe at Beadl ive years and were fiest elecled prioe to 2004,
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Benelits under the Pensian Flan kne pgual to 50 of the Trustes's average annual attendance and retamer foes for
thee Ehrea years ended December 31, 2005, The relirement bansdit is payable during a Truslee's Eelime, beginning
e year Pollowing retingmend, Tor 1he numer of years of service through Decermber 31, 2006, Persion expense
tow tha fund Is included in Trustee compensation and experses in the Stalement of operalions. Accrued peraian
Eability & inzlhudedin Payable for Trestee compensation and expenses in the Stabament of assets and labdties. The
Trusieas have Rerminated the Pension Plan with respect o any Trustes first elected alter 2003,

Thie tund his adopied detribution plans (tte Plans) with respect 1o its class A, class B, dlass €, class M and dlass B
shargs pursuant to Rule I-1uncer the irvestment Cempary Act of 1940, The purpose of the Plans is lo compen-
aale Putnam Refal Managoement Limiled Patnershio, an indirect whalty-ownied subsidiany of Putnam lrsgstments,
LLE, for servicogs provided ang expenses inourred in distribating shanes of the fund. The Plans provide for payments
Ly e funid 1o Pubfiam Ritail Mansgerment Uimiled Parirership af an annual rale of up 1o 0.95%, 100%, 100%,
L00% and LOOS of tho average net assets aftributalle bo class A, Class B, class C, class M and clads B shates respec-
Lty Ther Trustizes haree approved paymienl by the fund at an annual rabe of 0.25%, 1.00%, 1005 0.50% and 0.50%
of the mverage nat assels sttibutable to class A class B, dass C, class M and class R shaves, respact hely. Diirksg the
reporting pariod, the Oass specific experdes related 1o SR1ribution hees were as Tollows:

Class A §2.773.005 Class™ 570.354.

Class 8 17808 Ciane R 152 924

Class © 2,189,509 Toital $6,004,430
Firr 1hezr repoiting period, Putnam Retail Manag 1l Limited Por hip, acting as undorwnitor, recehed ret

commissions ol $158.921 and $4187 fram the sale of class & and class M shares, respectively, and recetved $14.438
and §6,045 incontinpent deferred sales charges Iram redemplions of class B and class C shanss, respectively

A deferred sales charge of up ba 1,00% and D.40% {ng longer applicebie elfective Bovember 1, 2015) is assessed
on cartain redemptices. of class A and class M shases, respectively. Far the reporing period, Pulnam Retad
Hanagement Limihed Parnesship, acting as underwriler, moeived 35365 and no monles on class A and class M
edemplions, respectiely

Mote 3: Purchases and sales of securitios
Dy 1P repeotting period, the cost of purchases and he procoeds from sales, aschuding shor -Leem invast ments,
ware a5 follows:

Costof puechuses  Proceeds from sabes
vestments n securities, inciuding TBA commitments

{Lng-Canm) 520,787,258, 01 £19,135.516,365
US, goevemnmet securibes (Lorg-term) 27153984 27083648
Teidad $20,814 488 785 $19,162,706,033
Wit B0 opbion iransactions during the repaning peticd are summarized as follows:
Written swap
option condract Writtan seap ‘Writtan optics Written optics
amounts  aption premiums  conlrac amousts premiumy

‘Wiritien cptions cutstanding
8t ihe beginning of the
reporting peviod £1.414,635 500 £11,613.073 $E56,000.000 52567051
Opons opened R TL5N 124,084,074 5.547.000.000 InaTsTH
Options mercrmed (2.482,271.0000 (34 467530 -
Opkions expired [B.H3H,062.525) {42 170 088) (024 000.020) {4,834 219)
Opbiossclased (13, 789,570.605 (B7. 704 740) (4, 350,000.000) (25, T10.060)
Wirittan cptons outitandng at
the ondof thempertngpariod  $5.557,265.400 £31.5%4 986 £8.52,000,000 $E.2312500
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Mobe 4: Copital shores

Al the close of the reporting period. there were an uniimiled number of shares of beneficial imtesest autharized.
Transgctions incapital shares were & falows:

Clays A
Shares sold

Shanes wsJed inconnechon with
miwestmend of distributions

Shands rRpaichaned
Hgt incroasa

Class B
Snares sold

Shared 1856 i conneclic wilh
reivetiment of ditribubions

Tha'es repurchaced
Het decreate

Class C
Shoed sold

theres isssed n connectonwith
rerreidimient of distrdutsn

Shiayes epurchaced
Het increass

Cleis ™
Ehirews sold

ShigRg 158580 W 00NOE DD Wath
resvvestmiant of disbributicns

Shaps tourthised
Mt degroate

Class B
Shares sold

Shizms irs.ed i connection wath
rarwstment o distributions

Shews wmounchased
Med ine rease

Year ended 10/31/15
Shares. Amaunt
SR0IR0EE B41TALEISD

4,159,168 9745503
62 178 260 447162 153
(4T699.B0T)  (312.705.E34)
1BATRAST  $134,456,519
Year ended 10/31,/15
Shares Amrount
T3 254 $5.561.145
R AT EE5ETZ
§75,782 6216817
{964.05T) (6 B2E.92F)
(88,295 $0612, 3053
Year snced 10/51/15
Sharned Amount
13118,738 §53.518.215
b 31571301
13.678,183 7,589,535
(6.575,856) (46,585,511)
7.102,327 $51,003,625
“Year ended 10/51,/15
Shares Amaount
1068632 §7.529,753
84,005 556,893
1157 541 B11&E51
(2.924,955) (0,450,678}
(1772334  ${12.353,.237)
Year ended 10,/31/15
Shares Amount
1879754 §30.391,542
111,000 788,763
090,854 22.080,710
(LT32.108) {11575,528)
1,208,758 $0,405, 182
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Year ended 10/31/14
Shares A i
57056388  SA19.823TEL

4.784.0692 34,680 025
EZ,451,080 54,561 386
[(RO24.510  (240.081.258)
19,426,569 $214,462.118

“foar anded 10,/31,/14
Shares Amount

£09,341 14,352.058

pERR T LOELGS

751520 5455733
t1128513) (B.E18.578)

(I71,153)  S(2.EE4.845)

Yeur enced 1071514
Chami Amoant
10,238,850 573912667

Lt g 15947438
10784335 77.806.910
(4792,0600 (30,913 852}
6,492,375 $46,553,048

‘ear ended 10,/31,/14
1427853 S10.1837.192

52,205 SERATT
1509.858 10,766,169
L6730 (16.947.381)
(1163745 $U8,051 13

‘et ended 10,/31/14
Shares Amount
2,160,285 $15.664,326

87,315 ABDQ.SGT
2128300 16155923
{404, 1TH) (2925,043)
1p24,012 $13,2%0,800
Income Fund 83
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“Wear ended 10,/31/15 Yeur ended 10/31,/14
Clags RS Shares Amaount Thanes Amowunt
Shures sodd IEZ416 £2547,783 £78,748 54477915
Shares ixsued inconnecbon with
renwasiment of dislributions 10E0E 141,741 19,529 14360
FAE0E1 2705129 98,278 5121579
Shares repuichited {112.475) [314.245) (334,598 (2.480.707)
Net increase 170,543 $1.974,585 57,680 $2,6E0A32
‘Year anced 1051715 Year gnded 10,3114
ClassRE Shanes Amount Shares Bymiunt
Shanes sold 1E.050.558 £117.56€,331 BSI2.707 S4B, 157 371
Shares He.ied in connectc with
meirvasiment of salribulions 547 B4E 3960158 165,969 1238006
16,607,703 121.535,530 B,E53, 766 43435377
Shavey sepurchased (5,654, B0T) (41171032 [925,263) (6.820937)
et intrease 10,942,900 $80, 564,508 5774508 £43,604.480
Year ended 10,/51/15 Year ended 10/31,/14
Class Y Shares Amount Shares Amourt
Shaves sokd BOIEIAA  SSBAITAAR GOEX0ATT  SARAG79.7IT
Ehargs ksed in connechion with
reirvestmaent of distriubons 1574358 16,542.145 1701266 8AI6015
B2 B35 099 603,016,570 60,721,737 440 415 752
Shiras redurthaed (34,7401B0h {251,795, 744) (162951280  (A20110.726)
et increase 46,086,915 351,220,626 44428600 $328,304.026

AL the closa of the reparting penod, Pubnam irvestmant s, LUC owned e folioning shargs of the fund;

Shares owned

Class RS 1,588

Note 5: AMflliated trangactions

Parcentage of awnership Value
0358 L3 Bt

Tearsactions curing the mperting pericd with Pulnarm Money Markel Liguidity Fund and Putnam Shert Tarm
Imagsbmaent Fund, which ang uncier comman gwnershio of control, ware as Tollows:

Fair value al the Falr valie at
Bbaginning of the end of
the reporting Inviestment  Ehe reparting
Mams of affiliate perisd  Purchatecodl  Saleprocseds
Pustriaen Maney Markot
Liguidt by Fund® 144,207,935  BA1B25E05E  3563.46L191 S1144 i=-
Putram Sheet Torm
Imvgsimigng Fynd” B%.B02. 238 475,752 208 420,723,592 3342485 Z74,B30 A47
Tatats $434.010,173 4805005464 $1.054, 184700 $449.123  5274.830,847

*Manapement lees charped (o Putnam Money Marke! Liguichly Fund and Putiar Shorl Tertn imsestrnent Fund kv

peer wansed by Putnam Management

B4 Ingome Furdd
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Note 6: Market, credit and other risks

Ix the normal course of business, the fund trades financal instrumants and enbers inta financlal transactions wherne
rigk of potential loss exltsts dua to changes im (he market (market risk) or lailune of ihe contracting pary to the
transacticon to perfarm (oredit rsk]). The fund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an instibubon or cther
entity with whichihe fund has unsettied or open transactions will default. The fund may imvest asignificant portion
ol ity assets in seuritised debat inatrumens, including maortgage-boecked and assel-backed imasimants, Tha yieks
and values of these invest ments ore sensitive 1o changes in interest rates, the rate of principal payments on the
underhying assels and the market's percoption of the issuers. The market for thess imvestments may be volalle and
liritad, which may mase Hhem ditfioult ta by or sei,

Maote 7: Summary of derivative sctivity
Thiz volumo of activity for the reparting petiod for amy derbrabane Type thal was hald duging (he pericd is lated
by e wiad based o an verae of Lhi haldings o he end of gach fiscal quarter:

Purchased TBA commitmant aption conlrcts (oontract amaodnt) $512, 700,000
Purchased swap bobion contracts {eonlrest smount) $£.033, 500,000
Wwiitten TBA commitmant oodicn contracts (oontract amauni] { Mabe 53 5895500000
Wirikben fwa p ootaen contradks (cont<act amount) {Hote 1) $5.912,800,000
Fubures contracls (number of contractish 4000
Cenkrally cleared inkerest rabe ywiap contracts {notonal) SE.007,000.000
OFC tetal refurn swad conbracts (netional ) £520.400,000
OTC credt defaul conirdits (noticnal) 253,600,000
Cenbrally cheared cred t default contracts {notiona) 690,000
Fair willui of disivitive Fitrumsnts & of the clode of the reporting pariod
Aset dortvatives Liabiry derathes
Derivatives not
accounted for as Statemant of Statement of
hedging instruments assels and assntsand
under ASE 418 liabilities bocation Falr value liabsilities location Falr value
fiecenaties, Met
assety = Unrealoed
Credit contracts AppreCiation 8430457 Fayales 51,534 868
(L5 21 i
Fecnnaig, Mel FaynbiaL, ey
nasels — Ummealzed maasts — Jasnskzed
Interpst rabe coMracis ADOECAN0N 3508 079 OEEFBCADN 73108 235"
Tatal $33,940,435 75,045,085

*Inciudes Cumilahve BpareCabonAlenpration of fubunes Conbracls andior cent raly Cieaned Svansd S meooried in e
Turel's portfolio. Oniy curment Gar's warkstion msangin B recoried wikinthe Statement of assess and Rabililes.

Ircame Fund B3
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Thee lelicraing i & summany of resired and change in unrealized gains or losses of dervats instroments on the
Statemeent of operations for the reporting perlod (see Note T

Amount of reallzed gein of (loss) on derivatives recagnited in ret gain o (logs) on investmsnts

Derbvatives not accounted for

228/286

25 hedging instruments under

ASCE15 Options Fistures Swaps Totsl
Creoit contradis 5= - $672.236 5672,274
ienssl rale 2ol (0388 B9 14,163,007 (A3 B2 055) LN B4R9ET)
Total $(10,%88,606) S14188707  SALGSSELT)  BEALTATIM
Changeir fat onar P Sonjon gcognizedinnat gainor (loss) onl
Derivatives not accounted for

a3 hadging instrumssis under

ASCE15 Oplsons Fuures Geaps Tatal
Cradit contracts - = STIT03L) S(713.031)
Infercst rafe contracts 215,430 IE7.12% {15,674304)  B(15,092.425)
Total $215,420 $367.128  H(16338015)  $415,805456)

BE Income Furd

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000(E14869)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

SUBAGRISIP I J3SNIELS N2 Byl MOUS B §10F ABTIUET LT NOA O] D3P 20 e 1By BE0L LU 43U

SIDD{OUIES LD JUSDISARCA O] SPUBPIAIR LIES [B]I0ED LLUD)-150US S pXE] 80 C SH|LIDW O e maodspny
U SpUDPANID PIRYE- 1SRN S© K] 56 C) BUIPTD ST PIET SUCHNGUISD J0 616 585 PSS SO0y Bt o e, s S P 5 b L o
-Grap AQREy DUNy ALy apCTaNURAaH |PUIEIY AU 9 (1L EE OF IEnsInd “Doued Bulliods gl K4 T N

L AL YL AL AT LUVAOR P R A O AACPEALEY LA AL 1 O LR sk A
LN FRNRRES Il 1 g s,

e O A L 0] SRS IV 00 L AL 61 ) AL AT LR,

SN PR SR 0 MRS B0 0 S T S |, P,

ST 0 SIS U I S0 R 10 0 LA ) [P O N [T 11 P ey E:HHL“.
OIENETE (EEG LM -4 -4 -4 Fhi=s ] LTEE*40 8 St (S50 HIE bFoaR 1
4 o | LT, ] SSTEE T (TBETR'TH -4 . -5 e § i (POEDN) PN AR E|
USHRIEYH rTETE lees Lo LT (50T MECTE' T L= (ST A T [13{n7050 ] ST [ AL PR AL 0L
frrqiinad e | 6 LREVSLTHE gl B9 Tr'sEng LN otz g1k H Sl 0]
LEEwEOT - EHF0T = = £ = = RIERRIE Y,
AT - - Lo (g IR TR - - BCIT Ao PR TR,
T - . B = = G500 - = mETL WL 1 0 SR I LM
e - = - = = (TRIRC) ST
A - - . N - - ¥l - - L L Ly
BEERT = BRLES - b RIS = - gl e w SRR IR0 R 140
i = - hiin STSS arard - - e = < SHOD 00V PRI RS 0
fai s 5 = - IFaree = - FEIDPTLION HEmE 110 U PN AR TR
SHEENTY
BYWITEE FOPEFETE 6T TG TR TOTERS 5 1OTETE 50T TS SE rig’ind R R
965 P T = = ST - - - = P e LR
AT TESkEE BCTEY 0wy GELSET - - FIE'S £, SN DO IR 1
eIt = = SITTEET = - v : - bl ] L RV 0 LN P
e e T - - - - - - - ek G ST
- = - = SR | R A Ry
sy 2 GHEE LTy o O RE = = - - o TR MR 30T J10
B0y = s L1 1Rt 810 STr - S FRE TR el L i) 74}
LT -1 = -4 . | - -4 ST -4 -4 VSRR R T T e e

Apey

I O A

S| FRIE FISE [ WRRUNRLS Bl U SReeuauhe Buri e s o) s
AT PR SRR FEURUY PUS SR ROUtUY JGH0 1U S0P pury ayj Sanodind Buroca) [eEueuy 0 | 8oy
35 VLU |1 LSO [HOS S UM 1118 DRIRIOSEE SUOTIESLEI | FLEMONI00 S0 SUCHESIRIN FUIR) SHUTEs 104 |
DR SRFLLS IO JUasd B BUjikd JBivi HOREaGjD Ul 0] 130l00 fult ) POUDA Burliodig B (B pud g
1 FUSMAIAEEE ASRRINCR FSIAN PUR SJUDLLDMGE DSBIINGR ‘SEAREALDR AR SITHPLAING 2F0) Gupaoiio) )

N R 2

229/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2017 )
( ) ( )
4,092,330,601 465,748,146
2,380,785,330 270,957,178
( ) 1,711,545,271 194,790,967
110,757,942
3,366,566
23,894,349
12,592,367
3,239,820
736,886
10,299,326
83,793,227
6.86 781
6.79 773
6.80 774
6.69 761
6.80 774
6.94 790
6.97 793
6.96 792

( ) 2017 10
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(©)
2017
114 ( 729
(2017 )
(100 )
6 2,195.70
1 6,857.91
36 23,828.00
61 39,982.92
114 72,864.53
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2016 2015 12 31
131
23 103
23 25 193
29 31
113.81
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

29,571,295 3,365,509 37,702,944 4,290,972
5,018,975 571,210 3,246,767 369,515
34,590,270 3,936,719 40,949,711 4,660,487
54,408 6,192

42,277 4,812 148,038 16,848
34,632,547 3,941,530 41,152,157 4,683,527
15,641,603 1,780,171 3,453,964 393,096
7,209,341 820,495 5,439,806 619,104
22,850,944 2,600,666 8,893,770 1,012,200

(313,081,398)  (35,631,794)

1,000

751,016,039 85,

(439,747,317)  (50,047,642)

114

473,135

(188,494,350)  (21,452,542)

1,000 114
751,016,039 85,473,135

(538,968,687)  (61,340,026)

13,593,279 1,547,051 8,704,385 990,646
11,781,603 1,340,864 32,258,387 3,671,327
34,632,547 3,941,530 41,152,157 4,683,527
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

392,442,927 44,663,930 468,538,041 53,324,314

(30,655,272) (3.,488,877) 7,990,559 909,406

361,787,655 41,175,053 476,528,600 54,233,720

155,472,556 17,694,332 184,335,766 20,979,254
23,122,791 2,631,605 23,186,533 2,638,859
15,234,777 1,733,870 14,477,582 1,647,694
9,560,263 1,088,054

59,175,898 6,734,809 62,537,291 7,117,369

262,566,285 29,882,669 284,537,172 32,383,176
99,221,370 11,292,384 191,991,428 21,850,544
4,888,894 556,405 1,212,992 138,051
4,888,89% 556,405 1,212,992 138,051

104,110,264 11,848,789 193,204,420 21,988,595
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2015

2015 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000O0000O00Oonoo(EL4869)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

2016 2015 12 31
(188,494,350)  (21,452,542) 1,000 114 751,016,039 85,473,135  (538,968,687)  (61,340,026) 8,704,385 990,646 32,258,387 3,671,327
(124,587,048)  (14,179,252) (124,587,048)  (14,179,252)
4,888,894 556,405 4,888,894 556,405
99,221,370 11,292,384 99,221,370 11,292,384
(313,081,398)  (35,631,794) 1,000 114 751,016,039 85,473,135  (439,747,317)  (50,047,642) 13,593,279 1,547,051 11,781,603 1,340,864
6,376,920 725,757 1,000 114 751,016,039 85,473,135  (730,960,115)  (83,190,571) 7,491,393 852,595 33,925,237 3,861,031
(194,871,270)  (22,178,299) (194,871,270)  (22,178,299)
1,212,992 138,051 1,212,992 138,051
191,991,428 21,850,544 191,991,428 21,850,544
(188,494,350)  (21,452,542) 1,000 114 751,016,039 85,473,135  (538,968,687)  (61,340,026) 8,704,385 990,646 32,258,387 3,671,327
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
99,221,370 11,292,384 191,991,428 21,850,544
160,169 18,229 299,147 34,046
8,131,649 925,463 5,398,849 614,443
3,116,686 354,710 2,171,421 247,129
12,187,639 1,387,075 106,588 12,131
1,769,535 201,301 (5,096,163) (579,994)
124,587,048 14,179,252 194,871,270 22,178,299
(373,035,990)  (42,455,226)  (484,098,870)  (55,095,292)
248,448,942 28,275,974 289,227,600 32,916,993
(124,587,048)  (14,179,252)  (194,871,270)  (22,178,299)
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2016 2015 12 31
2,514 108,275 2016
568,477 508,117
2015 12 31 105,761
12 31
2015 12 31
12,732,704 10,449,520
7,990,559
301.7701-3
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2015 12 31
2016
190,331 2016 2015
2016
36
2015 12 31
7,990,559

a single member limited liability company
disregarded entity
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2016 12 31 2014-15 -
205-40 -

2015 2015-14 606 -

2014-09 606 2019

2016 2016-08
2016 12
2016-10 2016-12

606 2016-20 2016

2016 2016-09 - 718

2016-09 2018

2016 2016-15 230

2016-15 2019

@3
12 31
2016 2015

12 31 613,192 613,192

(558,784) (449,968)

(54,408) (108,816)

12 31 (613,192) (558,784)

12 31 54,408

2016 2015 12 31 54,408

108,816
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2016
313,081,398 188,494,350
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
49,839,935 (53,122,418)
242,577,901 223,758,553
28,574,992 24,470,572
4,359,475 2,770,373
1,152,968 2,668,066

(26,484,140)

(23,978,577)

9,476,283 8,394,887
2,317,773 2,468,845
19,867 15,305
1,183,047 986,237
51,138 49,417
12,159 13,090
313,081,398 188,494,350
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401(K)

2016
3,594,065

476,528,600

2016 2015 12 31

2016 2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2016 2015 12 31
28,931,410

2015 12 31
3,390,549
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2016 2015 12 31
29,571,295 37,702,944
7,666,320
85,785,230 91,468,701
26,609,332

242/286

361,787,655

6,305,526

2016
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2016 12 31
12,056,127 3,129,493 2015 12
31 15,005,459 2,296,532
2016 12 31 28,380,181
3.98
(@€
2016 9,560,263
2016 12 31 8,355,888 2017
(6
2016
@
2016 12 31 2017 13
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ASSETR
Chmenl seicts
Imvesmmeni munspemert foes reconable (Mole 4)
Prcpasd cupemiacs and oUher T s
Total curtent assgls

Progeny snd oquipmsent, met (Note 1)
Entangible end other sviess, med

TOTAL ASSETS

EIABILITTES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Piabikites.
Avonasd conkpeniation aad enssloyee beadfits
Aicounts payabls and soonsal evpemsas
Total Batalitics

Member's expuisy
Agvounts receivable frem Panent asd alfiliates. met (Note 4)
Mgmnber's Comiribuiion
Addditseal paid-ia capizal
Acoumulaed deficn
Avccumulabiod otber comprosmanve mcome

Tiotal pensbher’s ety

TOTAL LIARILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

The scoompanying medcs are an avicprl pan of these froncial sEsfements.
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Decomber 30, M06 Dcsgmber X1, 2015

5 AT 08 17 70004
SOIHUTE 226767

AL ST

& 3 406K

42,377 [EEAIEE

5 M2 8T 41152157
5 150640,603 ARG
T 5 AV

2250944 BEIATT0
(313081, 305) (IEE AW 50)

1008 [RLe]

TELOIO03T TELDN G055
(IR (18065 64T
13593279 70 355

11.TR1 603 12288 38T

% HeILT 41152157
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REVENTUE
Investiment mamagononl foo, et
Performance fees

Total pevenue (Mote 1)

CPFEHATING EXPENSES
Compensaiion and benefiis
Profieainal snd extornal senase
by oprat ing ¢ apmnes
Restructeisp (Note 5§

Allegated expemes from Pagent and allitiate, net (Note 4)

Tial ogsvating expamas

KET INCOME

OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME

Forcign curooxy ranslation sdpustimsuts
OTHER COMPREIENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPRENENSIVE INVCOME

The adesm pamying fodes ane an micgral pan of ihese Erancial statenaents
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Year Ended Year Eaded

December 31, 2016 Decembsr 31, 2005
L A0k 442037 5 Bos Sk o
| 30,658 315y T 85
161 747,655 4765 15.600
5 155472 454 5 154,555 Tk
a3 23186833
1524 717 14 ATT 552

DEROI6E -
59,173 898 283730
62,506,385 254537072
5 FEATD 5 101 S AE
5 Rt T 12125992
o BER B 121252
5 100110268 § 193 20,430

245/286



EDINETOOOO

OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MU [eputug) g o ond prit ue s o0 Tuplisdoease g

LECRSL TN 5 SEYTOLR 5 LevsReRis) S GE0RIOUISL S 000K 5 ISy rer'ssl) 5
R ] = Crd o T | * = -
TETIT TEVTETN - -
L Thal e T = - & TR TS
AT TN & THE16°L s Freess) s GEFRID IS S LUL N 5 [ ] 3
wajabeg v agEay S| [T TERE) BIDi]  seopngaisey [ECT T
LT anpsmayardmny 13g10) Py FpRERYY [eustE PRy s gy PUE DAY om0l
AIE IRy HEE] A2 a2y ) EnaxY
D0 IR 5 ELTNGS R 5 lLicrd'sird S GEORID ISL S A1 5 (R6E 180 15 S
DLE 1iL b - [ e 3 = ?
T PR - -
LR e A - = - - (5ta'ess st}
SFURETIE & SEUFOLR 5 Levswssl S GECHIO IS 5 AR 5 (o rerER1) 5
by s iy Stmusn| EETE] TERIE) BIpiRg  sEepngrieeg TF 3165} 130 e
LIS angsmayanidmny s P PR R Lae DL Y T ARy PUe FUAIT, ] M)
R DRI AJENFII Y

FI0T 1 SMauann “saupEg
sz

IOM) 3 AP 0D 19 W0H

s ey e eocuss | k)
F107 "1 Aaenuwp uepeg

FIOE 1§ A=asn “ssun|w)
alman) By

Fz 4 FUMPAiIIs 1910

siEM ey e e | g
FI0T *) ArEnuep SaaEpmg

246/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THAMLINY b} EAIE I
sl PO A TATEVIENTS

Veur Endad Yiewr Ended
Deceenbaer S1, 2006 Dewembeer 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM DFERATING ACTINTTIES
Rl et s I I % 1990 =¥] A5
Mudpistienty b peconohe B chiomsd i il casl provided By

peTEl g SotivTie

Eeprociation and off property and equiperent asd capatatued sofwarne b, 1 T 4T
oy | JexToai in agssling st
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PUTHNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
WO INANCIAL STATEMEN

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company™) is a wholly indircctly-owned subsidiary of
Putnam Investments, LLC (the “Parem™ or “Putnam”), which is a majority indircctly-owned subsidiary of
Great-West Lifeco Ine. ("Lifeco™), The ULS. dollar ($) is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The Company's primary business is to provide imvestment advisory services 1o Pulnamesponsored mutual
funds (the “Funds™). In connection with providing these services, the Company reccives 2 management
fee, which is based upon the averape asset value of the respective fund or account 10 which the services
arc provided. The Company's revenue is largely dependent on the total value and composition of asscts
under management of the Funds, which include domestie and intemational equity and debt portfolios.
Accordingly, fluctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under management affeet
revenue and results of operations,

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates, have significant interdependencics, as deseribed in Notes 2 and
4. The accompanving financial statements have been prepared frenn the separate records mamtaimed by
e Company and may not be imdicative of the financial positions or the results of operations that would
have existed if the Company had been operated a5 an unaffiliated company.,

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Estimates

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, which require management to make significant judgements involving
estimaies and assumptions regarding the poiential outcome of Bitigation and other matters that affecied the
reported amounts in the financial statements and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from these
eshmatcs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment 15 recorded at cost 1245 accumulated depreciation or amonization,  Depreciation
expense 15 calenlated using the stmight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of cach asset group
as follows: computer cquipment (servers and mainframes) — three to five vears, office and other
equipment = five yvears, and furmiture = seven years.  Leaschold improvements are amortized using the
lower of siraight-line method over the periods covered by the applicable leases, or the estimated useful
life of the improvement, Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or
amtortization 15 removed from the accoums and the resuling gain or loss, if any, is reflected i net
income.  Additions, renewals, and bowerments of fixed assets are capitalized,  Expenditures for
mainignance and repairs below a certain threshold are charged to expense when ingurred,  Depreciation
and amomizalion expense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repans and mamtenance, is
included in Other operating expenses in the Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income,  The
Company annually reviews the carrying value of property and cquipment for impaimment, or more
frequently if events or changes indicate that the carrying value of assets may not be recoverable. There
have been no property and equipment impairments during the year or gvents that would indicate
impairment.
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Capitalized Sofiware

The Company capitalizes certain costs related to purchased soflware as long-lived assets, which are
amoriized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of three years or estimated useful life. Amortization of
the capitalized costs commences when the application is put into production. Capitalized software asscts
arc cvaluated for impairment quarterly, or more frequently il events or changes indicate that the canrying
value of asscis may not be recoverable,  Asseis deemed unsuiiable for implemeniation, or obsolete, are
expensed wpon such determination.  Net capitalized software costs were $2,514 and S108.275 for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which included accumulated amorization of
SS68ATT and S50%. 117 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are
considered intangible assets, which are included in Imtangible and other assets, net in the Balance Shects.
Amorlization expense on capitalized software aseets is meluded 1n Oiher operating expenses in the
Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income and was S105,761 and $190.331 for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 201 5, respectively. There were no additions of capitalized software assets for the
vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Righi of Sctoll

Intercompany receivables and pavables are offset and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheets.
This occurs when the Company and its Parent and affiliates owe cach other a determinable amount, the
Company has the right to sct off the amount owed with the amount owed by the affiliates, and the
Company intends o set off the amaunt awed,

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fiees, net are recogmized as services ane performed.  Investment management fees
are camed daily and paid monthly or quarterly. depending on ihe terms of the agreemenis with the Funds,
Investment management foes are primarily based on percentages of the average asscts under management,
Investment management fees are shown net of fees waived pursuant to specified contractual expense
limitations of the Funds totaling $12,732,.704 and 510,349.520 for the vears ended December 31, 2016
and 2003, respeatively, Performanee fees resull from the achicvement of specifivd performance thresholds
aver 4 rolling thirty-six month period, and are recorded when such levels are amained and when such fees
are nol subject to forfeiture,  These performance fees are symmetric, and therefiore ¢an be cither positive
ar negative based on the Fund's performanee refative to the applicable benchmark index.

During the year, the Company reclassificd cenain comparative figures to separiely present performance
fiees. This resulted in a deerease to imvestment management fees, net of 37 990,359, and an increase o
performance foes of S7.990,.559 for the vear ended Decomber 31, 2005 The reclassification had no
impack on the equity or net income of the Company.

Foreign Currency Translation

Exchange rate differences anising from the ranslation of inereompany reeeivables and payables with
affiliates are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income on the Balance Sheets, and are shown
et of txes. These differences are also recorded in Other Comprehensive Income on the Statements of
Ingome and Comprehensive Income using current exchange mites as of the end of ¢ach agcounting periogd,

Income Taxes

The Company is a single member limited liability company and is treated as a disregarded entity pursuant
to Treasury Regulation Scction 300.7700-3 for federal income tax purposcs, Generally, disregarded
entities are nol subjeet to entity-level foderal or state mcome taxation and, as such, the Company 1% not
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required to provide for income taxes. The Company's mxable income pnmarnily becomes taxable to the
respective member,

Changes in Accounting Palicies

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company adopied the guidance in Acgounting Standards
Update ("ASL™) 2014-15, Presewration of Fisanciol Statemenis - Going Concerit (Subtopie 205-30),
Lisclosure af Uncertalnties abomt an Eniliv's Abiline to Continre as a Coing Concern, which requires
the Company’s management to evaluate whether there are ¢onditions or events thal rase substantial
doubt about the entity™s ability to continee as a going concern within one year from the issuance of the
financial statements.  The Company evaluated its ability to continue as a going concerm as well as the
need for refated footnote disclosure. The Company has concluded no disclosure 15 necessary regarding
its ability 1o continue as a going concem.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopied

In August 2005, ihe FASE issugd ASU 2005-14, Revemee From Contracis with Custoniers (Topic 606),
Deferval of the Effective Date. which defers the effective date of ASU 2004-09, Revenwe fram Comiracts
with Crsromers (Topde 60%) 10 January 1, 2009 for the Company, with early adoption perminted. The
new guidance requires cither a retrospective or a modified retrospective approach 1o adoption. In March
A6, the FASB issucd an ASL which ¢lanfics the implementation guidance on Principal versns Agent
Consrclgrarions (ASU 2016-08) In Apnl, May and Docember of 2006, the FASE ssued further
euidance on fdemtifving Pevformonce Obligaions amnd  Licensing (ASU 2016-10), Marrow.Scope
Impraverrents and Practical Expedicats (ASU 2006-12), and Fechmica! Corrections and fmprovemenis
o Tapic 606, Revemee from Confracts with Cusronters (ASU 2006-20), respectively,  All four 2016
ASU's have the same cffective date and transition requirements as noted above, The Company is
currently evaluating the available ransition methods and the potential impact on its financial statements
and related diselosures.

I March 2016, the FASE issued ASU MN6-09, Compensation — Stock Compeisamon {(Tople T18):
fmpavements fo Emplovee Share-Based Payment Accopnting. I provides for an election to account for
forfeitures as they occur, and clanfies the classificanion of these mansactions in the Cash Flow
Staements, ASL 2006087 12 effective January [, 2018 for the Company, with early adoption permtied.
The Company is currently evaluating the tramsition methods and potential impact on the financial
statements and related diselosures.

In August 2006, the FASB issucd ASL 2006-15, Statenent af Cash Flows fTopic 2308 Classification of
Certain Casht Receipis and Casdy Payments. The now guidanee addresses several new cash flow issucs 1o
reduce the existing diversity in practice in how certain cash reccipts and cash payments are presented
and chassificd in the Cash Flow Sutements. ASU 2016-15 is effective January 1. 2009 for the
Company. with carly adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected o have a
significant effeet on the financial statements and related disclosures,
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{3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net is recorded at cost and consists of the following as of December 31

26 2015
COST
At Janeary | and Deceniber X 5 G113, 192 L] 613 192
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Ad Jamueary | 3 (558,734) 5 (BRI R
Drepreciation for the year 154,408 (108,516)
A December 3 (6]3,192]) {F5E.T54)
NET BUOK VALUE
Al December 31 5 - 5 Sd. 40K

Depreciation and amortization cxpense for property and cquipment, net was 354,408 and S108.816 for the
vears cnded December 31, 2006 and 2015, respectively, and is included within Otler operating cxponscs
i the Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

(4) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES

The Company has significant interdependencics with its Parent and its affiliates, which are desenibed
below. The Company is responsible for establishing processes to identify all related parties and fo
disclose all significant transactions involving related parties,

Accounts Receivable from Parent and afTilintes, net

The Company instructs third partics to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instracts the
Parent to disburse cash on its behalf. The receivables or payables on the Balance Sheets represent
amounts for which the Parent has et to pay or receive on the Company’s behalf, The Paremt also
alloeates cortain expenses (o the Company, Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, nel represents
the net of intcreompany ransachons between the Company and the Parent and affihaies due @ (i) the
above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the Pareni on its behalf and (i) the recording of
expenses. These balances are recorded as corresponding incrcascs or deereases in the Member's equity
section of the Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays of receives, nor anficipates paying o receiving
cash related 1o these balanges. The gross changes in receivable and payable for the vear related to these
transactions are disclosed scparately on the Cash Flow Statements as financing activitics.  As of
December 31, 2006 and 2015, the Company had a net intereompany reccivable balance of $313 031,308
and 5188494, 350 respectively, which is ingluded in Accounts reccivable from Parent and affiliates, net in
the Balance Sheets.
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Intercompany balances due fromf{to) Parent and affiliates as of December 31, 2006 and 2015 15
comprised of the following:

[recemiber X1, December 21,
2006 2005
Non-interest bearing., unsecurcd receivable/{payable)
Due from Putnam US. Holdings 1, LLC 5 ADRI0035F 5 (31,12241%)
Bue from The Putmam Advisory Company, 1LC 242,577,901 223,758,553
Due from Puinam Faducsary Loust Company 28574902 24470572
Due from Putnam Hetal Management, LP 4359475 2TI03TR
Due from Putnam Investor Services, loc. 1152 96% 1668 (4
e 10 Putnam Investments Limitesd {26,454, 140) (21,978,57TT)
Due from Puimam Investmens (lreland) Limited PATH IR B0 BRT
Due from Puinam Investments Canada ULC 2371 2468 845
Due from Putnam hyvestmemts Austialia Pry Linated 19.867 15,305
Due fromn The Puinam Advisogy Company, LLC - Smgapore Branch 1LI83,047 Q86,237
Due from Puinam Investments Secuntics Company Lid, 51,135 49417
Due from PIL Beiging Represeniative (HTiee 12,150 13, 04K
Total accounts reccivable from Parent wnd affiliates, net S JIA0RII0N S IREJ94I0

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Pareat, and other subsidianies of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 400(k) defined
coninibulion retirement plan {the “Plan™) covering subsianiially all employees. Under this Plan,
cmplovees may defier a pereemtage of cligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a
portion of which is matched by the Company. The Company also provides for an annual discretionary
contribution 55 determined by the Parent’s Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 20016
and 2015, the Company’s share of the annual expense to the Plan totaled 53,594,065 and 53,390,544,
respectively,  This amount is included in Compensation and benefits in the Sutements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

Revenue from Affilinted Funds

In conneciion with providing invesiment advisory services 1o the Funds, the Company carned revenue of
S361, 787,655 and 5470,528,600 for the years cnded December 31, 20016 and 2015, respectively, which is
included in Toial revenue in the Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. As of December 31,
2016 and 2015, the associated reccivable was S29.571.295 and $37.702 944, respectively. and is included
in Investment management fees reocivable in the Balance Shoets,

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets,
which is amortized on 2 straight-line basis over the lesser of three years or estimated useful life. The
amoriization expense is allocated fo cach subsidiary of the Parent, by Pumam U5, Holdings 1, LLC,
including the Company, based on the subsidiary’s usage of cach capitalized software project,

Amortization expense allocated during the vears ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 57,666,320 and

56,305,526, respectively, and & included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the
Statemens of Income and Comprehensive Ingome.
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Allocated Expenses from Parent and Affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilitics, persennel and other arrangements further deseribed in this note with
other subsidiarics of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangements have been allecated
b the Parent and by affiliates among the various subsidiarics in a manner which management belicves is
representative of the actual costs incurred. Additionally, i the course of the Company's day-to-doy
busincss operations, ceriain personnel from other subsidiaries of the Parent are utilized o suppon the
Company. the related costs of which have been allocated to the Company in 3 manner which management
belicves is representative of actual costs incurred.  During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 201 5,
the Company waos allocated S85. 785330 and S91468.701, respectively, of costs. These charges are
mcluded in Allocated cxpenses from FParent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

The Company also allocates certain of us own costs ameng vanous affiliates i a manner which
management belicves is representative of the actoal costs incurred. During the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, the Company allocated 526,600,332 and 525,931,410, respectively, of costs 1o various
affihates, which are netted aganst the allocated expenses from the Parent, as described above, and
ingluded in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Stacments of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Flan (the “EIP7). Certain employecs
of the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are ehigible to recive restricted
shargs of the Parent’s Class B commaon shares and Class B stock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards gramted under the EIP over the stated vesting penied and based
on the grant date fair value of the award, A portion of these cxpenses arg allocated 1o the Company in a
manner consistent with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company has employees who were granted restricied Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant
1o the EIP. The Company was also allecated a portion of the compensation charged o the Parent. The
fair market value of the Class B common shares was determined under the valuation methodology
autlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the mnge of values determined by a nationally
recognized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIF committee. Compensation expense for these
awards 15 being amortized over the vesting period of up to five vears. Compensation expense charged
dircctly and allocated to the Company during the vear ended December 31, 2006 was $12,056,127 and
£3,129,493, respectively. Compensation expense charged direetly and allocated to the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2005 was S15,005. 459 and $2,296.532, respectively. As of December 31,
2016, there was $28. 380,181 of wnrecognized compensation ¢xpense related 1o the Company's portion
af restricted Class B common shares. The weighted average peniod over which that expense is expected
10 be recopnieed is 398 vears.

Expenses changed directly wo the Company related o the EIP are included in Compensation and benefits
in the Statements of Ingome and Comprehensive Ingome, while the offset is presented in Accounts
receivable from Parent and affiliates, net, on the Balance Sheets, as there 15 intent to settle per the
intereompany settlement progess. Additionally, allocated expenses related 1o this plan are included in
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statemenis of Income and Comprehensive
Income.
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(5) RESTRUCTURING

In 2016, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of 59,560,263, which is presented as Restructuring
m the Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. OF this amowm, 53,355 888 remains unpaid at
December 31, 2006, and the Company ¢xpects o pay these oustanding amouwms during 2007, This
charge reflects expense reductions and a realignment of the Parent's resourees 1o best position itself for
current and fuwre opporunitics. These expense reductions addressed costs o the Company mainly
through a reduction in saff. A majority of the restructuring charge and unpaid ameunt relate o
compensation and benefits activity,

(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Claims, Lawsnits and (ilier Confingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject 1o legal actions, including class actions, ansing in the normal
course of business, It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have o matgrial adverse effect on
the financial position of the Company. In addition, the Company reccives inguirics, including requests
for decuments and information, in the course of its business from vanious state and federal regulators
inquiring about certain of the Company’s policics and procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the
ordinary course of busingss, The Company fully responds to these requests and fully cooperates wath all
regulatony inquiries, and there are no such mamers pending that the Company believes could have a
material adverse effeet on its results of operations, cash flows or financial position,

Chher Purnam Matters

Tn early 2016, Putnam began reviewing overight fixed income mortgage transactions in the context of
Putnam’s interfund trading compliance policics, the impagt of which is recorded in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. The US. Sceurities and Exchange
Commission 15 conducting an investigation of these mransactions.  Based on the information presently
known, the outcome of this matier is not cxpected fo have a material adverse impact on the financial
statements of e Company.

(T) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occuming after December 31, 2006 through

Mareh 13, 2017, the date these financial statements were issucd,  The Company is not aware of any
subsequent events which would require recogmiion er disclosure in the financial statemenis,
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A
(1994 12 2017 )
( ) ( )

1994 12 0.039 1994 12 15 6.46
1995 0.041 1995 16 6.48
0.039 1995 15 6.55

0.039 1995 15 6.65

0.039 1995 17 6.70

0.040 1995 15 6.84

0.039 1995 15 6.96

0.039 1995 17 6.95

0.039 1995 15 6.82

0.039 1995 15 6.98

10 0.039 1995 10 16 7.04

11 0.039 1995 11 15 7.03

12 0.038 1995 12 15 7.12

1996 0.038 1996 15 7.14
0.038 1996 16 7.13

0.038 1996 15 6.86

0.038 1996 15 6.84

0.038 1996 15 6.81

0.037 1996 17 6.72

0.036 1996 15 6.73

0.036 1996 15 6.84

0.036 1996 16 6.83

10 0.036 1996 10 15 6.91

11 0.036 1996 11 15 7.06

12 0.071 1996 12 16 6.95

1997 0.035 1997 15 6.93
0.036 1997 18 7.05

0.036 1997 17 6.89

0.036 1997 15 6.80

0.036 1997 15 6.88

0.036 1997 16 6.97

0.036 1997 15 7.02

0.035 1997 15 7.02

0.038 1997 15 7.03

10 0.036 1997 10 15 7.09

11 0.036 1997 11 17 7.07

12 0.060 1997 12 15 7.05

1998 0.036 1998 15 7.11
0.036 1998 17 7.11

0.036 1998 16 7.09

0.036 1998 15 7.08

0.036 1998 15 7.04

0.035 1998 15 7.11

0.035 1998 15 7.07

0.035 1998 17 7.00

0.036 1998 15 6.90

10 0.036 1998 10 15 6.84

11 0.036 1998 11 16 6.77

12 0.036 1998 12 18 6.89
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( ) ( )

1999 0.036 1999 15 6.86
0.034 1999 16 6.78

0.034 1999 15 6.74

0.034 1999 15 6.75

0.034 1999 17 6.62

0.034 1999 15 6.47

0.034 1999 15 6.54

0.034 1999 16 6.41

0.034 1999 15 6.40

10 0.034 1999 10 15 6.35
11 0.034 1999 11 15 6.43
12 0.034 1999 12 15 6.35
2000 0.034 2000 18 6.23
0.034 2000 15 6.27

0.034 2000 15 6.29

0.034 2000 17 6.27

0.034 2000 15 6.09

0.034 2000 15 6.19

0.034 2000 17 6.21

0.034 2000 15 6.28

0.034 2000 15 6.26

10 0.034 2000 10 16 6.26
11 0.034 2000 11 15 6.25
12 0.062 2000 12 15 6.31
2001 0.034 2001 16 6.32
0.034 2001 15 6.35

0.034 2001 15 6.44

0.029 2001 16 6.34

0.029 2001 15 6.36

0.029 2001 15 6.42

0.029 2001 16 6.43

0.029 2001 15 6.48

0.029 2001 17 6.53

10 0.029 2001 10 15 6.56
11 0.029 2001 11 15 6.51
12 0.029 2001 12 17 6.36
2002 0.029 2002 15 6.50
0.029 2002 15 6.47

0.029 2002 15 6.36

0.029 2002 15 6.43

0.029 2002 15 6.41

0.029 2002 17 6.49

0.029 2002 15 6.49

0.029 2002 15 6.51

0.024 2002 16 6.59

10 0.024 2002 10 15 6.50
11 0.024 2002 11 15 6.54
12 0.024 2002 12 13 6.56
2003 0.024 2003 15 6.58
0.020 2003 18 6.61

0.020 2003 17 6.63

0.020 2003 15 6.61

0.020 2003 15 6.74

0.018 2003 16 6.82
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2003 0.017 2003 17 6.66
0.018 2003 15 6.49

0.017 2003 17 6.63

10 0.018 2003 10 17 6.59
11 0.018 2003 11 17 6.67
12 0.017 2003 12 18 6.69
2004 0.018 2004 15 6.75
0.018 2004 17 6.76

0.014 2004 17 6.86

0.014 2004 16 6.68

0.014 2004 17 6.56

0.014 2004 17 6.57

0.014 2004 16 6.66

0.014 2004 17 6.72

0.014 2004 17 6.75

10 0.014 2004 10 15 6.78
11 0.013 2004 11 17 6.77
12 0.014 2004 12 16 6.77
2005 0.014 2005 14 6.77
0.014 2005 16 6.80

0.015 2005 17 6.72

0.015 2005 15 6.75

0.015 2005 17 6.78

0.018 2005 17 6.80

0.018 2005 15 6.78

0.017 2005 17 6.75

0.022 2005 16 6.75

10 0.022 2005 10 17 6.67
11 0.022 2005 11 16 6.65
12 0.022 2005 12 16 6.67
2006 0.022 2006 17 6.71
0.021 2006 16 6.64

0.022 2006 17 6.63

0.022 2006 17 6.54

0.023 2006 17 6.50

0.023 2006 16 6.49

0.023 2006 17 6.49

0.023 2006 17 6.57

0.025 2006 15 6.60

10 0.025 2006 10 17 6.60
11 0.025 2006 11 16 6.65
12 0.025 2006 12 15 6.67
2007 0.024 2007 17 6.64
0.026 2007 15 6.66

0.026 2007 16 6.70

0.026 2007 17 6.67

0.026 2007 17 6.64

0.025 2007 19 6.56

0.025 2007 24 6.58

0.026 2007 21 6.63

0.026 2007 19 6.65

10 0.026 2007 10 19 6.70
11 0.026 2007 11 19 6.67
12 0.072 2007 12 19 6.61
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2008 0.028 2008 18 6.69
0.028 2008 19 6.56

0.028 2008 18 6.50

0.038 2008 21 6.41

0.038 2008 20 6.49

0.038 2008 19 6.34

0.038 2008 21 6.24

0.038 2008 19 6.16

0.038 2008 19 6.05

10 0.038 2008 10 21 5.58
11 0.038 2008 11 19 4.94
12 0.038 2008 12 19 4.66
2009 0.038 2009 20 5.08
0.038 2009 19 5.11

0.038 2009 19 5.10

0.038 2009 21 5.17

0.038 2009 19 5.52

0.038 2009 19 5.64

0.038 2009 21 5.94

0.038 2009 19 6.10

0.038 2009 21 6.25

10 0.038 2009 10 20 6.46
11 0.038 2009 11 19 6.53
12 0.038 2009 12 21 6.50
2010 0.038 2010 19 6.59
0.037 2010 19 6.64

0.042 2010 18 6.67

0.042 2010 19 6.72

0.042 2010 18 6.66

0.042 2010 18 6.65

0.042 2010 20 6.73

0.037 2010 19 6.82

0.037 2010 21 6.75

10 0.037 2010 10 19 6.74
11 0.033 2010 11 19 6.66
12 0.033 2010 12 20 6.57
2011 0.033 2011 19 6.64
0.033 2011 18 6.63

0.028 2011 21 6.70

0.028 2011 18 6.71

0.027 2011 19 6.78

0.027 2011 21 6.77

0.028 2011 19 6.74

0.028 2011 19 6.79

0.018 2011 20 6.76

10 0.019 2011 10 19 6.63
11 0.019 2011 11 18 6.63
12 0.019 2011 12 20 6.62
2012 0.019 2012 19 6.65
0.019 2012 21 6.69

0.019 2012 20 6.66

0.015 2012 19 6.75

0.015 2012 21 6.79

0.015 2012 19 6.84
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2012 0.015 2012 19 6.94
0.014 2012 21 6.94

0.015 2012 19 7.03

10 0.015 2012 10 19 7.08

11 0.015 2012 11 19 7.10

12 0.016 2012 12 19 7.09

2013 0.017 2013 18 7.13
0.017 2013 19 7.13

0.017 2013 19 7.20

0.019 2013 19 7.22

0.019 2013 21 7.14

0.020 2013 19 7.00

0.020 2013 19 6.95

0.020 2013 20 6.88

0.020 2013 19 6.92

10 0.020 2013 10 21 7.03

11 0.019 2013 11 19 7.04

12 0.054 2013 12 19 6.98

2014 0.025 2014 21 7.04
0.024 2014 19 7.08

0.025 2014 19 7.10

0.025 2014 21 7.13

0.024 2014 20 7.18

0.025 2014 19 7.17

0.025 2014 21 7.14

0.025 2014 19 7.12

0.025 2014 19 7.10

10 0.024 2014 10 21 7.09

11 0.022 2014 11 19 7.06

12 0.022 2014 12 19 7.04

2015 0.022 2015 20 7.04
0.018 2015 19 7.03

0.019 2015 19 7.06

0.018 2015 21 7.07

0.019 2015 19 7.02

0.014 2015 19 6.98

0.014 2015 21 6.94

0.014 2015 19 6.92

0.014 2015 21 6.81

10 0.014 2015 10 20 6.76

11 0.014 2015 11 19 6.74

12 0.014 2015 12 21 6.72

2016 0.014 2016 19 6.63
0.014 2016 19 6.55

0.016 2016 21 6.58

0.016 2016 19 6.64

0.016 2016 19 6.65

0.016 2016 21 6.67

0.019 2016 19 6.77

0.019 2016 19 6.77

0.019 2016 20 6.74

10 0.019 2016 10 19 6.73

11 0.019 2016 11 18 6.57

12 0.019 2016 12 20 6.55

2017 0.019 2017 19 6.64
0.019 2017 21 6.68
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2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994

12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31

D N OO N OO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO NN OO

.62
.70
.04
.99
.12
.64
.63
.55
.91
.63
.67
.69
.78
.68
.63
.44
.33
.32
.88
.07
.98
.20
.47
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2015 10 31

2015 12 11
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income Fund (the fund), including
the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2015, and the related statement of operations for the year then ended, the
statements of changes in net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the financia
highlights for each of the years or periods in the five-year period then ended. These financial statements and
financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements and financia highlights are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our
procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of October 31, 2015, by correspondence with the custodian
and brokers or by other appropriate auditing procedures. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financia highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financia position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2015, the results of its operations for the
year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended and the
financial highlights for each of the years or periods in the five-year period then ended, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMGLLP
Boston, Massachusetts
December 11, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income Fund (the fund), including
the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2016, and the related statement of operations for the year then ended, the
statements of changes in net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended, and the financia
highlights for each of the years or periods in the five-year period then ended. These financial statements and
financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements and financia highlights are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our
procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of October 31, 2016, by correspondence with the custodian
and brokers or by other appropriate auditing procedures. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financia highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financia position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2016, the results of its operations for the
year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period then ended and the
financial highlights for each of the yearsin the five-year period then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

KPMGLLP
Boston, Massachusetts
December 9, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Member of
Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the

“ Company” ), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in member®s equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor®s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company®s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Putnam Investment Management, LLC as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, and 4, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its
affiliates. These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or
the results of operations had the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 13, 2017
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